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Directors and Senior Management

ERAREEHEAR

As at 7 March 2018, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, age 71, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and
worked as a professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company
listed in the PRC, namely Founder Technology Group Corporation,
and a director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely Founder Holdings
Limited, and has work experience in international trade, finance,
asset management and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was
honoured with many awards, including being selected as the young
entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China, and won the
first prize of national golden award for enterprise initiators in the 4th
National Technology Industrialist Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 51, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking University
in the PRC with a master’s degree in international relations and
has over 26 years of experience in the information technology
industry and investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman,
chief executive officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the
Company’s substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000,
Mr. Kui was the president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the
Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, age 49, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu
is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003,
Mr. Xu was the president of a system integration company and
has extensive experience in computer systems integration of the
financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 54, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s
degree in law. He has over 26 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also a director of HSL. Prior to
joining HSL in 1999, he had worked for several companies in the
PRC and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li has also
been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company and a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 24 February
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 51, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in international economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr.
Xu had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
He has over 26 years of experience in corporate management of
enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 55, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 26
years’ experience in auditing, corporate advisory services as well as
financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently
an executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a
major red chip company) and an independent non-executive
director of KWG Property Holding Limited, both of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 61, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm,
Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public
in Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience
in law both in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a member
of the Inland Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and
has been appointed as a China-appointed Attesting Officer since
January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, age 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas
at Austin, United States of America with a bachelor’s degree in
Statistics and Operations Research. Mr. Chang possesses more than
22 years of experience in electronic payments industry in Southeast
Asia, Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang was the Senior
Vice President, Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc. (“VISA”)
in Singapore. He was previously VISA’s Greater China General
Manager, Japan General Manager, and senior country manager for
Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines and Indochina. He joined the
Group in 2009 as a Non- Executive Director and was re-designated
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 February 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of the Report of the Directors, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Liao
Lizhi, Mr. Liang Jing Jing, Mr. Zhao Yue Hui, Mr. Li Li and Ms. Hui
Lok Yan were the Company’s senior management.

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 38, is the president of 87T SN BR AT (“VBIll”). He
graduated from Hubei University of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in Electrical Technology. He joined the Group in 2008. He
has over 11 years of experience in third-party payment industry
management.

LIAO LIZHI

Mr. Liao, age 45, is the general manager of Hunan Hisun Mobile
Pay IT Ltd. He graduated from Renmin University of China with
a bachelor’s degree in Corporate Management and received a
master’s degree in Business Management from Sichuan University.
He joined the Group in 2005. He has over 11 years of experience
in the communication industry.

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 36, is the president of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited. He graduated
from Central South University with a bachelor’s degree in
Telecommunications Engineering and received a master’s degree
in Engineering Project Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University. He joined the Group in 2003. He has over 14 years of
experience in the information technology industry.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, age 53, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou
PAX Electronic Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang
University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and received a
master’s degree in engineering from Tongji University. He has over
16 years of experience in corporate management. He joined the
Group in 2000.

LILl

Mr. Li, age 42, is the president of Mega Hunt Microelectronics
Limited. He graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and a master’s degree in engineering. He also
received a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School. He joined the
Group in 2010. He has over 20 years of experience in the integrated
circuit design industry.

HUI LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 39, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager
of an international public accountancy firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

During Year 2017, consolidated revenue amounted to HK$2,910.0
million, as compared to HK$1,921.2 million in Year 2016. Such
increase was mainly contributed by the increase in transaction
volume and hence an increase in segmental turnover of our
payment processing solutions segment during the year. Segmental
EBITDA totalled HK$491.2 million, 65% up compared to Year
2016. The Group's share of results from an associated company,
PAX Global, decreased by 32% as a result of a drop in the net
profit of PAX Global as compared to last year. Profit for the year
totalled HK$389.5 million as compared to HK$312.7 million last
year. With regard to our balance sheet, the total assets as at 31
December 2017 amounted to HK$5,657.5 million, as compared
to HK$5,499.0 million as at 31 December 2016. Among of which
short term bank deposit and cash and cash equivalents amounted to
HK$2,557.6 million.

Our payment processing solutions segment keeps its growth
momentum in Year 2017. During the year, we have disposed our
then subsidiary in Japan and accentuated our focus in the PRC
market, leading to a disposal gain of approximately HK$63.3
million. Segmental turnover amounted to HK$1,979.9 million, 89%
up compared to last year. Segmental operating profit amounted to
HK$260.7 million as compared to HK$169.7 million in Year 2016.
By the year end of 2017, total accumulated number of domestic
merchants was exceeding 2.5 million, with a monthly transaction
volume of over RMB110 billion in December 2017. During the
year, we launched the “smart payment platform”, an integration of

various payment methods, such as “UnionPay QuickPass ( #REE

PAfT) ”, “WeChat Pay (81532 1) 7, “Alipay (3214 ) " and bank
cards, and various terminals ranging from traditional POS, MPOS
to APP Cashier (APPUER & ), card accepting facilities, easy code-
scanning terminals and Smart POS, to provide a comprehensive
set of application solutions to industry players. In June 2017, we
successfully passed the review of the People’s Bank of China, and
renewed the licenses for bank card acquiring, internet payment
and mobile payment until June 2022. Besides, we obtained the
“internet micro-lending license” in September 2017, allowing us to
commence lending business for online merchants and individuals.
Looking forward, we expect to benefit from the regulatory policy
in favor of licensed institutions and enjoy better development
opportunities under the business strategy of “Payment + Financial”.
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Financial solutions segment and platform operation solutions
segment were generating stable operating profit to the Group
during the year. With regard to our financial solutions segment,
on the basis of strengthening our presence in the traditional
customer market, we will continue to invest strategically in three
aspects, namely: (1) expanding mid-to-small-size customers groups
such as city commercial banks.; (2) actively extending to foreign
banks and overseas customers groups; and (3) exploring other
financial services market on top of banking customers. Meanwhile,
our platform operation solutions segment continued to provide
high-quality and efficient supporting services, such as product
development, business operation and system maintenance, to the
E-commerce Base of China Mobile, the IVR Base of China Mobile
and the Animation Base of China Mobile. In the future, we target at
new opportunities for product innovation and business development
in the areas of e-commerce, payment and internet finance.

To promote better efficiency and effectiveness in management,
during the year, we have split our “Information security chips
and solutions” from the “Electronic power meters and solutions”
segment. Driven by the significant growth of the payment market
in China, the information security chips business expanded rapidly
in Year 2017. Segmental turnover amounted to HK$177.2 million,
213% up compared to last year, primarily due to drastic increase in
the sales of security micro-controller (MCU). Segmental operating
profit amounted to HK$26.4 million as compared to HK$5.9 million
in Year 2016. In Year 2018, we will closely monitor the impact of
policy changes of the central bank which target the payment market.
Other research projects are progressing smoothly and cost reduction
initiatives of various products is rolling out in an orderly manner.

Year 2017 was a challenging year to our electronic power meters
and solutions segment. Despite we were not awarded with any
tenders in the first tender conducted by the State Grid in Year 2017,
we have conducted a throughout self-review and we were awarded
with tender in the second tender conducted in Q4 2017. However,
the business environment will still be difficult in Year 2018. As the
State Grid continues to promote new technological development,
especially the DLT698.45 object-oriented interchangeable data
exchange protocol. Currently, the development of products related
to DLT698.45 protocol is progressing well, which is expected to
provide us certain advantages in the tender in Year 2018.
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Combined with our strong financial position, management will
remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and take
hold of various opportunities for the Group’s business growth in
Year 2017. On behalf of the Board, we would like to take this
opportunity to express our utmost gratitude to our customers,
bankers, suppliers, business associates and most valued
shareholders for their continuous trust and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
OUTLOOK

AND BUSINESS

Review of business performance of the Group during the Reporting
Year and the Group's business outlook are disclosed in the section
headed “Business Review” of the Report of the Directors in this
Annual Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group reported total assets of
HK$5,657.5 million (2016: HK$5,499.0 million), which were
financed by total liabilities of HK$1,493.9 million (2016:
HK$1,913.3 million) and equity of HK$4,163.6 million (2016:
HK$3,585.7 million). The net asset value was HK$4,163.6 million
(2016: HK$3,585.7 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$1.499 as at 31 December 2017 as compared to HK$1.291 per
share as at 31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of HK$2,541.5 million (2016: HK$2,726.7 million) and short term
borrowing of HK$9.6 million (2016: Nil). The net cash position as
at 31 December 2017 was HK$2,531.9 million as compared to
HK$2,726.7 million as at 31 December 2016. The gearing ratio
(defined as total borrowing divided by total capital) was 0.2%
(2016: zero). The gearing ratio is considered healthy and suitable for
the continuing growth of the Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had bank borrowing of
HK$9.6 million (2016: Nil) and banking facilities of approximately
HK$19.2 million (2016: HK$17.8 million). The bank borrowing
was charged at an interest rate of 4.57% per annum (2016: Nil). As
at 31 December 2017, the bank borrowing and banking facilities
were secured by the leasehold land and buildings of a subsidiary of
the Company, with a net carrying amount of HK$3.1 million (2016:
HK$2.9 million) and HK$9.0 million (2016: HK$9.3 million),
respectively.

Approximately HK$1,820.7 million, HK$317.9 million, HK$211.5
million, HK$188.8 million and HK$2.6 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US
Dollar, Japanese Yen, and Macanese Pataca (“MOP”) respectively as
at 31 December 2017.
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Approximately HK$1,977.7 million, HK$468.6 million, HK$273.8
million, HK$0.2 million and HK$6.4 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US
Dollar, Japanese Yen and MOP respectively as at 31 December
2016.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2017.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan
for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2017.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in US Dollars, Renminbi, Hong Kong
Dollars and Japanese Yen. Currently, the Group has not entered into
any agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group's
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi or Japanese Yen may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A)

(B)

Performance Guarantee Agreement with a customer

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance of
a service project by a subsidiary of the Group with a surety of
not more than HK$60,000,000 and to indemnify the customer
against any third-party claim of intellectual property right
infringement resulting from the acts of the said subsidiary. As
at 31 December 2017, the Company does not recognise any
liability in relation to the Performance Guarantee Agreement
as the Directors of the Company consider the possibility of
reimbursement not probable.

Guarantee Agreement with a subsidiary of the Group

In respect of the increased credit limit of manufacturing orders
of semiconductor products to be placed by a subsidiary of the
Group (“Subsidiary A”) to manufacturer from US$1,000,000
to US$6,000,000, the Company, upon request of the
manufacturer, had in 2017 entered into a guarantee agreement
(“Guarantee Agreement”) with Subsidiary A, pursuant to which
the Company shall guarantee to repay the due and unsettled
debts of Subsidiary A owed to the manufacturer to be incurred
in relation to the aforesaid manufacturing orders, should
Subsidiary A cease or fail to honour its obligations prescribed
thereunder, subject to a surety of not more than US$6,000,000.
As at 31 December 2017, the Company does not recognise any
liability in relation to the Guarantee Agreement as the Directors
of the Company consider the possibility of reimbursement not
probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 respectively.
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EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2017 was 2,226. The breakdown of employees by division is as
follows:

W PLRE Z  i B gy T

(==

REBR -_ZE—+E+-_A=1+—H2ZESEHKA
2,226\ o R BIZZBPIMA DN ¢

Payment processing solutions XN R GERBHRT R 713
Financial solutions SRR R 291
Electronic power meters and solutions BRI EEMRBRAAR 283
Information security chips and solutions ERERNA RBATR 86
Platform operation solutions FRELHRATER 806
Others Hitb 10
Corporate office EE 37

2,226

The Group ensures that its employees’ remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive. Employees are remunerated with
fixed monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses.
The Group also operates certain share option schemes for the
purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating the employees. The
Group also sponsors selected employees to attend external training
courses that suit the needs of the Group's businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group’s
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as
an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding
of the Group’s current financial performance. Additionally, as
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to
investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holdings.
The principal activities of the Group are provision of payment
processing solutions, provision of financial solutions, sales of
electronic power meters and solutions, sales of information security
chips and solutions and provision of platform operation solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 76.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend (2016:
Nil).

RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer
given there will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement
of the shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting (“Annual General Meeting”) to be held on Friday,
20 April, 2018 will be Friday, 13 April, 2018. All transfers of shares
of the Company accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday,
13 April, 2018.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in notes 26 and 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating
talented employees in order to strive for future developments and
expansion of the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme (the
“Participants”) include any full-time employees, executive and non-
executive Directors of the Company or any subsidiary or associated
companies. The Scheme became effective on 29 April 2011 and
unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date. Further details of
the Scheme can be found in the circular of the Company dated 28
March 2011.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme, and any other share option schemes of the Company
in issue, shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its
Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all exercised and/or outstanding options
granted to each Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the
relevant class of securities of the Company in issue in any 12-month
period. Any further grant of options in excess of the aforesaid 1%
limit shall be subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the
Company with such Participant and his/her associates abstaining
from voting.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 Shares were available for
issue under the Scheme, representing 9.63% of the total number of
Shares in issue.

The exercise period of the options granted is determinable by the
Directors, and such period shall commence on the date of the offer
of the options (the “Offer Date”) and expire on the last day of such
period which must not exceed 10 years.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and no performance target needs to be
achieved by the grantee before the option can be exercised.

A share option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have
taken effect when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the Participant together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by the Company.
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The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the Offer Date, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (ii) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five Trading Days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

No share option of the Company was granted or exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017, and
up to the date of this report, there was no issued and outstanding
share option under the Scheme which has not been exercised or
lapsed.

Share Option Scheme of VBill

Subsequent to the reporting period and as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company on 15 January 2018, the directors
and shareholders of VBill passed resolutions to adopt the share
option scheme for VBill (“VBill Share Option Scheme”), which
complies with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The adoption of the
VBill Share Option Scheme was approved by the Shareholders at
the special general meeting (“SGM”) of the Company held on 5
February 2018 and became effective on 5 February 2018. Please
refer to the circular of the Company dated 19 January 2018 and the
announcement of the Company dated 5 February 2018 for further
details. Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the VBill Share
Option Scheme will be effective for a period of 5 years from the
date of grant of options (i.e. 5 February 2018). The purpose of the
VBill Share Option Scheme is to enable VBill to grant options of
equity interest of VBill (“VBill Options”) to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to VBill and its subsidiaries (“VBill Group”). Eligible participants of
the VBill Share Option Scheme include any directors, supervisors,
general managers and other employees of any member of VBill
Group. Further details of the VBill Share Option Scheme can be
found in the circular of the Company dated 19 January 2018.

As at the date of approval of the VBill Share Option Scheme,
the total registered capital of VBill (“VBill Registered Capital”)
was RMB199,900,000. The total VBill Registered Capital which
may be contributed by grantees upon the exercise of all options
to be granted under the VBill Share Option Scheme and other
share option schemes of VBill shall not in aggregate exceed
RMB19,990,000, being 10% of the VBill Registered Capital as at the
date of approval of the VBill Share Option Scheme unless otherwise
approved by the Shareholders for refreshing the 10% limit.
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The total VBill Registered Capital contributed and to be contributed
upon exercise of the VBill Options granted to each participant
of the VBill Share Option Scheme (including both exercised and
outstanding VBill Options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the VBIill Registered Capital, unless otherwise approved by
the Shareholders with such participant and his close associates (or
his associates if such participant is a connected person) abstaining
from voting.

The exercise period of the VBill Options granted is to be determined
by the board of directors of VBill, commencing on the date of the
grant and expiring within 5 years therefrom.

There is no minimum period for which a VBill Option must be held
nor any performance targets to be achieved by a grantee before a
VBill Option can be exercised subject to VBill’s board of directors’
discretion, on a case-by-case basis or generally, to impose such
conditions, such as minimum performance targets and other terms
as they consider appropriate.

A VBill Option shall take effect when the grantee returns the letter of
acceptance and VBill receives from the grantee a total remittance of
RMB1.00 as consideration for the grant.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price to
be determined by the board of directors of VBill in its absolute
discretion at the time of the grant of the VBill Option with reference
to factors which may include the business performance, value of
VBill Group and individual performance of the grantee, but in any
event, the subscription price shall not be less than the net asset
value of the interests of VBill subject to the VBill Option calculated
from the latest audited accounts of VBill.

The subscription price of VBill Options granted in respect of VBill
after the Company has resolved to seek a separate listing of VBill
on the Stock Exchange, the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing date
of VBill must be not lower than the new issue price (if any). In
particular, any VBill Options granted during the period commencing
six months before the lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for
listing on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the
overseas stock exchange) up to the listing date of VBill are subject to
this requirement.

Grant of VBill Options after the reporting period

On 15 January 2018, the directors and shareholders of VBill passed
resolutions to approve the grant of VBill Options to Mr. Shen Zheng
(“Mr. Shen”), Mr. Li Huimin (“Mr. Li”) and Mr. Guo Yi (“Mr. Guo”).
The grant of VBill Options to Mr. Shen, Mr. Li and Mr. Guo was
approved by the Shareholders at the SGM.
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Mr. Shen is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill and a
director of certain members of the VBill Group. Mr. Li is the chief
executive officer of VBill and the supervisor of a member of the VBill
Group. Mr. Guo is the senior vice president of VBill. Each of Mr.
Shen and Mr. Li is a connected person of the Company at subsidiary
level. None of Mr. Shen, Mr. Li and Mr. Guo is a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or an associate
of any of them.

The subscription price of the VBill Options granted was RMB12.51
for every RMB1.0 in the VBill Registered Capital. The amount
of enlarged VBill Registered Capital subject to the VBill Options
were RMB13,629,500 for Mr. Shen, RMB6,814,750 for Mr. Li
and RMB6,814,750 for Mr. Guo. Assuming all the three grantees
exercise their VBill Options in full, Mr. Shen, Mr. Li and Mr. Guo
will be interested in approximately 6%, 3% and 3% respectively
of the enlarged VBill Registered Capital, which would exceed the
individual limit of 1% as prescribed under the VBill Share Option
Scheme. The grantees may exercise their VBill Options within three
years from the date on which the VBill Share Option Scheme took
effect (i.e. 5 February 2018). As at the date of this report, no VBill
Options has been exercised and VBill Options in the amount of
RMB27,259,000 of the enlarged VBill Registered Capital remained
outstanding, representing 12% of the enlarged VBill Registered
Capital.

As at the date of this report, none of the VBill Options has been
cancelled or lapsed.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as calculated under the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to HK$115,979,000
(2016: HK$77,820,000). The Company’s share premium account, in
the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2016: HK$1,290,857,000) may
be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 188.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Shares during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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BUSINESS REVIEW 3, qC1)-C
CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS IGLbECES ks
Turnover EBITDA
EE L EBITDA
2017 2016 2017 2016

ZE—+tF ZE-RFE ZE-tF ZETKE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
KisE TERT TEr TER FTEx

(restated)* (restated)*
(E50)* (E50)*
Payment processing solutions SNRPRERBRIR 1 1,979,939 1,050,313 432,375 253,239
Financial solutions Ea ) IS 2 295,328 351,407 23,942 26,473
Electronic power meters and solutions TR EEMRBERLR 3 250,960 258,239 1,692 16,374
Information security chips and solutions EER2 L RERATER 4 177,224 56,539 26,867 6,370
Platform operation solutions FREERRANE 5 209,683 210,766 7,259 8,055
Others e - - (948) (13,438)
Segmental results NEFE 2,913,134 1,927,264 491,187 297,073
Less: Inter-segment turnover B EREER (3,156) (6,027) - -
Total At 2,909,978 1,921,237 491,187 297,073
Depreciation il (179,040) (92,589)
Amortisation %1 (8,950) (10,504)
Segmental operating profit DELEER 303,197 193,980
Unallocated other income AP B EAMIA 5,161 4,900
Unallocated corﬁ)orate expenses APECERY (71,443) (66,557)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR W 63,262 -
Operating profit BERN 300,177 132,323
*  Note 4 o MiEE4
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT | B &E &
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$’000 HK$\ 000
B 5 FHET FAT
Revenue WA A 2,909,978 1,921,237
Cost of sales HE AR B (2,165,949) (1,328,542)
Gross profit EFI 744,029 592,695
Other income Hfh e A ) A 46,721 46,205
Other gains/(losses), net Haplezs  (E18) /35 A 21,139 (1,120)
Selling expenses HERX B (113,394) (101,631)
Administrative expenses fTHE A B (461,580) (403,826)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & M B A R 2 W C 63,262 -
Operating profit LR 300,177 132,323
Finance costs A& A AR 9 -
Share of result of an investment accounted for ~ JEMEAEZAAR 2 — B EXEE D
using the equity method ) . 134,531 198,992
Gain on dilution of interest in an investment UARE 305 AR 2 —IARE D
accounted for using the equity method Rl 113 826
Profit before income tax R A4S 550 Al A 434,812 332,141
Income tax expense TSR (45,298) (19,485)
Profit for the year F A% A 389,514 312,656
Profit attributable to: FEMEE A
— Owners of the Company ~AREEBA 346,144 283,964
— Non-controlling interests — IR 43,370 28,692
389,514 312,656
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AREBEE ANEL HK$ per share HK$ Ber share
the owners of the Company: B ZBREF R % 7T &7 7T
Basic E-9N 0.125 0.102

Diluted s 0.124 0.100
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= A =
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HRFEEERAGER
As at 31 December
AMZR=t-
2017 2016
“E—+F —ERE
Note HKS000 HKS'000
i TER T
ASSETS
Investment properties, property, plant and equipment and leasehold land ZEREELH E 540,904 301,383
Intangible assets F 1,985 10,466
Investments accounted for using the equity method G 1,823,245 1,663,250
Available-for-sale financial assets TEEE H 178,385 106,113
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss . En e BEE | 96,187 76,880
Inventories J 95,407 74,972
Trade and bills receivables FEA AR N e S K 278,319 243,534
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits R BNFERES K 69,095 41,474
Amounts due from investments accounted for using the equity method BULMER E AR IRE 2 HA L 16,289 13,258
Short-term bank deposits g 16,153 18,388
Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,541,482 2,726,733
Assets of disposal group classified as held-for-sale BA HEARIMERE N - 222,590
Total assets 5,657,451 5,499,041
EQUITY % \
Capital and reserves attributable to the owners of the Company ARRREAEABEERRREE
Share capital R 6,942 6,942
Reserves B 4,052,400 3,524,274
4,059,342 3,531,216
Non-controlling interests FRRER 104,203 54,451
Total equity EREE 4,163,545 3,585,667
LIABILITIES
Deferred income tax liabilities 163 205
Trade and bills payables M 239,199 266,270
Payables for f)ayment processing solutions business M 292,587 808,650
Other payables and accruals M 848,409 625,417
Amounts due to investments accounted for using the equity method L 57,755 81,468
Current tax liabilities 46,197 34,884
Borrowing 9,596 -
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held-for-sale N - 96,480
Total liabilities 1,493,906 1,913,374
Total equity and liabilities BERARASE 5,657,451 5,499,041
HKS per share HK$ Ber share
BET FRET
Net assets per share SREERE 1.499 1.291

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT GRS HERER

For the year ended 31 December

BET=R=1-
2017 2016
ZE—+tE —ERE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i TER T
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities LEER (FiR)/FERLFE (153,447) 908,831
Net cash used in investing activities RETBFIARLTE (273,374) (291,445)
Net cash generated from financing activities REEHMERERE 12,808 3,879
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BERESSEN (BD) /EmFE (414,013) 621,265
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FRNZRERAEEEN 2,804,978 2,292,287
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash an§ cash equivalents ReRReSEMZEL NS/ (B#E) 150,517 (108,574)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERZRERALESEN 2,541,482 2,804,978
As at 31 December
R+=B=+-AH
2017 2016
—E-—+% —E-AF
HK$/000 HKS'000
TER FET
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: RERBESLEN AN
Cash and cash equivalents Re kAL FEN 2,541,482 2,726,733
Cash and cash equivalents included in disposal group A BERRELE 2 HEARIN N
classified as held-for-sale ReRBEEEY = 78,245
2,541,482 2,804,978




FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2017 (“YEAR 2017”), the
consolidated turnover of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) amounted
to HK$2,910.0 million, representing an increase of 51% when
compared with the year ended 31 December 2016 (“YEAR 2016").
Profit for the year totalled HK$389.5 million as compared to
HK$312.7 million in YEAR 2016.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2017 amounted to HK$5,657.5 million, when compared with
HK$5,499.0 million as at 31 December 2016. As at 31 December
2017, net current assets amounted to HK$1,522.7 million, when
compared with HK$1,424.3 million as at 31 December 2016.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(1) Payment processing solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* R
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit K A

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$1,979.9 million, as
compared to HK$1,050.3 million in YEAR 2016. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$260.7 million, as compared
to HK$169.7 million in YEAR 2016. The increase in segmental
operating profit was mainly due to increased scale of
transaction operations. By end of YEAR 2017, there were over
2,500,000 accumulated domestic merchants and the monthly
transaction volume in December 2017 exceeded RMB110
billion.
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REE-_T—+F+-_A=+—BIEE([ZT—+
FE =ERE(RPEDBRAF (A8 RE
M AR ([AEE]) Z4rA &3 A2,910,000,0007%5
T BREEZE-ANF+ZA=t+—HLEFE([=ZZF
—~NEE J)i'jJu51% F N FE $£5389,500,00078
JC MR ZZE—NFE RIA%E 312,700,000 7T ©

REERBRME R_Z—tF+-A=1+—8"

EE 4818 /35,657,500,0005 7T, I —Z f/\EJr H
=+—HE8/A5,499,000,0008 T - R -E—+tF+—
R=+—H ' RBEEFEA ,522,700,000%71 CMR

—NF+ = A=+—HEIA1,424,300,0007 7T °

BREDM

Q
\—7

(1) INRZEEBRTR

FEXHIEE

2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —T-RF EE0)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET TET
1,979,939 1,050,313 +89%
432,375 253,239 +71%
260,657 169,652 +54%

* REMNPEFZEXRE

o $E % ¥ 50 51,979,900,00078 7T 0 i —
% £ 841,050, 300000,%75 ‘*E%«am’“uﬁ
260,700,000/5 7T - —Z —7~FZ AllA169,700,000

AT _\*Ei(«#&/ﬁ]ﬂ{ljiﬂ'ikﬂﬂﬁ/\ IR EEH R
MEE-T— R RHENESREE

2,500,000F ' —E—+tF+ A AERSEEA

ER¥1,100f87T
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(2)

(3)

Financial solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* R
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit 18 A

* Turnover from external customers

During the current year, segmental turnover amounted to
HK$295.3 million, as compared to HK$348.1 million in YEAR
2016. Segmental operating profit totaled HK$14.9 million, as
compared to HK$14.8 million in YEAR 2016. Effect of decrease
in segmental turnover was mitigated by decline in amortisation
of intangible asset during the year.

Electronic power meters and solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* SRl
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating (loss)/profit e (B1R) s F

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$251.0 million,
representing a 3% drop as compared to YEAR 2016. Decrease
in turnover was mainly due to decline in shipment level as
compared to YEAR 2016. During YEAR 2017, the State Grid
invited two tender exercises for electronic power meters
and data collection devices contracts and we were only
awarded contracts for the second tender exercise. Shrinkage
of successful tender volume and size has led to a challenging
operating environment in YEAR 2017 and is expected to
continue to impact YEAR 2018. Segmental operating loss
amounted to HK$1.7 million, as compared to a segmental
operating profit of HK$12.7 million in YEAR 2016.

(2) TEBERER

FEXHIEE
2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —T-RF D)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FHET THETT

295,328 348,079 -15%
23,942 26,473 -10%
14,862 14,757 +1%

* REIMNPEFZERE

ZKEJﬁ 484 358 5295,300,00078 7T 0 1M

= /\iﬁﬁw%usmoooo,wz DL
/m*‘J.:./J%M%OOOO/aTE mM-—E—"FEA
14,800,000/ 7T © 70 8 & 5 %&%EE
NE A ESH TR MmA TR

3) BEGTEEMRBRAAR

FEXRHREE

2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —E—RF a)

HK$’000 HK$'000 +/()

FET AT
(restated)
(&%)

250,960 258,239 -3%
1,692 16,374 -90%
(1,688) 12,688 N/A/ T3
* REMBERzEEE
D EEE FEEE5251,000,0008 70 - ZE—NFE

TF£3% © M%éﬁ‘l—hﬁixﬁaﬁ’\ﬂjiéé R-E
—ANEFERLAB-R_E—tFE BREH
HERE T EEM R AMAERESNETRAHE
RS BMERE BRI EFEL-
K EHERRERN _—_T—LFENLEER
RS ES BB T — \FEEKRY
2o S B ERIE, 700,000 7T T —Z— X
FE 815 9 FBA & % 7112,700,000/8 7T ©



(4)

(5)

Information security chips and solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* —E3h
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit 1 A

* Turnover from external customers

To promote better efficiency and effectiveness in management,
during the year, we have split our “Information security
chips and solutions” from the “Electronic power meters and
solutions” segment. During the year, segmental turnover
amounted to HK$177.2 million as compared to HK$56.5
million in YEAR 2016, increased by more than 213%. Sales
of mag-stripe card security decoder chips was stable while
that of security micro-controller (MCU) increased drastically.
Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$26.4 million, as
compared to HK$5.9 million in YEAR 2016.

Platform operation solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* ES R
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating profit K=oyl

* Turnover from external customers

In YEAR 2017, we continued to provide high-quality and
efficient supporting services, such as product development,
business operation and system maintenance, to the
E-commerce Base of China Mobile, the IVR Base of China
Mobile and the Animation Base of China Mobile. During the
year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$206.5 million as
compared to HK$208.1 million in YEAR 2016. Segmental
operating profit amounted to HK$4.0 million, as compared to
HK$4.7 million in YEAR 2016.
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4) EEREBRARBRAR
TEXHEE
2017 2016 Change
—E—+F —E—RE 2%
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FHET FAET
(restated)
(&%)

177,224 56,539 +213%
26,867 6,370 +322%
26,390 5,871 +349%

* RAMBEEzEERE
BIRABESE LG  BPIERFAR [E8%
A RIS R FBEE (B2 E M M7
RFER] D REN - HDFBE3EE /177,200,000
BT i = F— 7N FE Rl A56,500,00078 7T + RIE
BiB213% WG RN RIS S A B E B RE
B MEE iR ERAIKE L - »
FRAE L% 526,400,000/ 7T - T — B —/NFE
81]45,900,0007 7T
5) FREEMBRAAR
FEXHEE
2017 2016 Change
—E—tF —E—RF b5y
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FET TAT
206,527 208,067 1%
7,259 8,055 -10%
4,043 4,732 -15%

* REMNBEFZEXRE

REZZE—+FE BMEERPE D EREM -

RREEIVREM KRB EEEEMBEHEEER
BT IFRT  EMMAE EKEERRFE
o TN HFEE FEREH206,500,00008 7T ==
— 754 Z B A208,100,000/8 7T ° H FEL L% FI A
54,000,000/ 7T T =Z — /N [F 54,700,000
T



24

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Report of the Directors

o R

OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

(B)

©

Revenue, other revenue and other gains/(losses), net
The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$2,910.0 million,
representing an increase of 51% from YEAR 2016. Such
increase was mainly contributed by increase in segmental
turnover of our payment processing solutions segment. Please
refer to Notes (1) to (5) above.

Other revenue mainly represented interest income and subsidy
income. Increase in other gains was mainly due to increase in
fair value gain on a financial asset at fair value through profit
and loss during the year.

Cost of sales and operating expenses
Increase in cost of sales was primarily due to increase in
turnover of the payment solutions segment.

Increase in operating expenses during the current period
was primarily attributable to (i) increase in employee benefit
expenses mainly due to the increase in headcounts and average
salary; and (ii) increase in R&D expenses while partially offset
by a net foreign exchange gain as compared to a net foreign
exchange loss in prior year.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Amount represented the gain on the disposal of Merchant
Support Co., Ltd. (“MS”), a then wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, completed in June 2017 (please also refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 18 May 2017 for further
details).

(D) Share of result of and gain on dilution of an interest in

an investment accounted for using the equity method
The Group’s share of profit of PAX Global Technology Limited
(“PAX Global”), an associated company, the shares of which are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) decreased in line with the decrease in profit of PAX
Global. Gain on dilution of interest in an associated company
of HK$0.1 million (Year 2016: HK$0.8 million) was due to the
effect of exercise of share options of PAX Global by some of
its employees during the year. As an ordinary shareholder of
Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”), an associated
company of the Group, the Group’s share of loss exceeded its
interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, there was no overall
financial impact on the consolidated income statement from
the investment for the current year.

A

(B)

©

(D)

BRMBREIRR

WA -EtARE MG (FE)FE
4RE 25 A2,910,000,00008 7T Bl Z B — N
[EHEN51% - BRI EBARNI MR ZERIER
ARSIz PIEEEREIL I - F2H LM
MEG)-

B E BRI S MR R - Bl 2t
ENTYEBRREEIEAT B AR 0 BE
DT ENGEE AT -

HERAREERX
HERAIBINEERNI N R ZEEFRT D
B BRI INPTE

RS L RSB IN Ty E 2l ()R BB
EM(EZHREABNFHTEZINAAED
(i) BT 3 R S8 0 - 1 B 0 1 1 W a5 R (T b
FRIRINEEBRFE) FTifE -

HEME ARz
ZEREREEANAER —H2EMNB LA
Merchant Support Co., Ltd. ([MS 1)z Wz - 5%t
EEFEER T t+F AKX (FBEE—F
5 FRR2HMARRBER S —+tFhA
FNABZRAM) -

LU ESREA R —EREXERERE
REFELBES AR AEBREBRBRAR Z
MITBEERY]  ARONREEBESZXZMER
AR ([P ]) BT0) B E BRI A HE—
B R — Rl AR 2 i as#58 2 Ueas £3100,000
BT (B —RFE:800,000/870) IRNEH
BYETEENFRNITEREREMS--TEE
£/ Cloopen Group Holding Limited ([ Cloopen | )

TIRRARR (RAEE—fHEE R R]) - RNEE
(L BT8R B EL 7 Cloopen ik 2 25 o It -
ZIER BN RN FEHR A WG R IR BRI
@,



(E) Investment properties, property, plant and equipment

(F)

(G

~

and leasehold land
Balance mainly represents fixed assets of payment processing
solutions and electronic power meters and solutions segments.

Intangible assets
Decrease in balance was due to amortisation charged during
the year.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Balance mainly represents the Group’s interest in PAX Global.
As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the Group’s 33.1%
effective interest in PAX Global was HK$1,274.0 million and
the fair value of the investment was lower than its carrying
value. An impairment test is performed to determine the
recoverable amount of the investment. The recoverable amount
calculated based on value-in-use exceeded the carrying value
as at 31 December 2017.

The Group’s effective interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen,
calculated based on all issued and outstanding ordinary shares
of Cloopen which are held by the Group, was 50.5%. As at
31 December 2017, the Group’s share of loss of Cloopen
exceeded its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, and
there was no overall financial impact on the consolidated
income statement from the investment for the current period.
As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount of the Group’s
interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was zero. Meanwhile,
the fair value of the Group's interest in the ordinary shares of
Cloopen was approximately HK$339.5 million.

(H) Available-for-sale financial assets

U]

As at 31 December 2017, the available-for-sale financial assets
included equity securities which are unlisted investments
outside Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2017, the balance
included interest in a venture capital fund of HK$162.9 million
and interest in an unlisted equity investment in the Peoples’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) of HK$15.5 million.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
Balance represents the fair value of the Group's interest in the
Convertible Series C Preferred Shares of Cloopen of HK$93.5
million and fair value of trading securities listed in Hong Kong
of HK$2.7 million.

(E)

(P

(®)

(H)

(U]
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EHRIBREINRZEERRNTE B
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AR

BEE
RERRIRLA T TR P B ST P B

DR EARZEE

HEHEEREASEBEREERK 2EZ-
RZE—+tF+_A=+—H £EH
REBBIRRZIBINEERERZAFES
1,274,000,000/ 7T * M1 & R FEENEEK
HE - BEITRERE - LAETIRE 2 ikE
- RZE—tF+_A=+—H ER
FAEEFE 2RO SEBRBEREE-

%A E B AT#5Cloopen® 8 B 817 & 817
N EBIRETE - A& B R Cloopen B
EmRER R50.5% R_E—+tF+ =
=+—H ' RNEBEFE(L Cloopen/E18HBiE H 7%
Cloopen& @k 7 #e s - Z AR E R AN AR H
FEWRRITERERNBYE - R _T—+
F+ZA=1T—8H K~EERCloopenE @EiX
ZEEREERE - A N &EE R Cloopen
2 & R N T fE 49 /3339,500,0008
5o

AHEESHEE
R-Z—+F+-_F=+—H AtHES
BEEREBNREAERINELTIRE ZIRA
BH RNZE—+tF+ZA=+—8 &
IR AIRE S Z #%5162,900,00058 7T K
EARKME ([FE])IFELETRAIEE 2
#2515,500,0007 T °

BRATFEGTAEZZESREE

R Th R B A Cloopen CERFI I AR E 5
fi% 2 #E 5 /A (93,500,000 7T R BB
TR 5 E%2,700,00078 7T ©
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(K)

Inventories

Amount mainly represents inventories of electronic power
meters and solutions segment and information security chips
and solutions segment. During the year, HK$0.8 million was
recorded for provision on inventories with respect to slow-
moving and obsolete stocks.

0 #E&
CRIZREEABEMRBRD RN ERE
BRECRRBATRAENTEE -FR 815
800,000 8 LA ERH L BHBEF 2 FEREE -

Trade and bills receivables and other receivables, (K) PEURBRFR R FE W 4% & HL fih FE WL RRE - FE S
prepayments and deposits MERES
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Trade receivables (Note (i) (a) FEUSBRZR (M a2 (@) 270,240 247,647
Bills receivables (Note (i) (b)) U ZE % (M1 i)b)) 13,902 1,284
Less: provision for impairment of B MR IR R E R
receivables (5,823) (5,397)
278,319 243,534
Other receivables, prepayments and Hip e sIE - BN RIBERIES
deposits (Note (ii)) (B2 i) ) 69,095 41,474
Total CE 347,414 285,008
Note (i): KtaEa) -

(@) The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180
days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on
invoice date was as follows:

@ AEE-RETESEHAZEEHA0E180ET
& T ERBUF A EUSRFIREANOT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF T —RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Current to 90 days BNEfZ=90H 188,974 170,730
91 to 180 days 91%180H 27,060 18,925
181 to 365 days 181%365H 19,564 23,981
Over 365 days 365H A E 34,642 34,011
270,240 247,647

— Increase in trade receivables aged between current to 90 days
was mainly due to increase in outstanding balances from the
financial solutions segment.

- Increase in trade receivables aged between 91-180 days was
mainly due to increase in outstanding balances from the
electronic power meters and solutions segment.

(b)  Bills receivables belonged to the electronic power meters and solutions
segment.

—  RENFEHZEOREREERFEMEEHR
SRR RO EAREEERIEM-

— BRI 1 AE1808 2 U NE B et
B BERRRRNRABZ K EEEBH
e

b FEURERERBNRELFEERRBRARSE-



Note (ii):

The increase in balance was mainly due to prepayment to suppliers of
information security chips and solutions segment.
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Hiati) -

HEARIBINEEAREERB U KA RO BRMNHE
PRI B

(L) Amounts due from/to investments accounted for using (L) EW EAUEREARZREZRE

the equity method

The amounts due from/to investments accounted for using the
equity method represent payables from/to PAX Global and
Cloopen and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017. Amounts
due from/to investments accounted for using the equity method
are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

W eI AR A A BR 2 IR E 2 RIS =
—tF+ZA=t+— E!J?é”ﬁl/ﬁﬁﬁsaf&fﬂ//(&
Cloopen &% EL B B 2 5/IA - FEUL & AR 2
EANRZIRE 2 FOAREIER R R RIRERKE
Bo

(M) Trade and bills payables, payables for payment M ENRRRENRE XAXZEEBRT

processing solutions business and other payables and

RER 2 BN TR R H e TR K BT

accruals b]
2017 2016
—T—tF —EREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx FET
Trade payables (Note (i) (a) FERTBRIR (KTat(i)@)) 218,178 230,566
Bills payables (Note (i) (b)) e =9 (Afaz b)) 21,021 35,704
Payables for payment processing XNRGRIBFERTREE 2
solutions business (Note (ii)) FEHFRIE (B atii)) 292,587 808,650
Other payables and accruals H At & R TE N e AT kIR
(Note (iii)) (B et i) 848,409 625,417
Total A&t 1,380,195 1,700,337
Note (i): Miata) -

(@)  The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.
The ageing analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice
date was as follows:

@ ZEHENETZEEHREIB0R TS  TERIEH
FEAHZ ENERFIRERATIT :

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Current to 90 days BNHAZ=90H 141,038 177,059
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 33,096 33,503
181 to 365 days 1812365H 30,344 8,162
Over 365 days 365H A 13,700 11,842
218,178 230,566

-~ Decline in trade payables aged between current to 90 days was
mainly due to decrease in outstanding balances from the financial
solutions segment and the electronic power meters and solutions
segment; partially net-off by an increase in outstanding balances
from the payment processing solutions segment.

—  Increase in trade payables aged between 181 to 365 days was
mainly due to outstanding balances from the electronic power
meters and solutions segment.

(b) Bills payables belong to the electronic power meters and solutions
segment.

— IR FAEEIOR 2 ENERFORS T E2HR
%mﬂ%&ﬁ*"%ﬁ&?&ﬁﬁﬁgﬁuu&ﬂm?&ﬁ’f
DRI AREREHRLD B RINRFE
iiﬁwiﬁ""*ﬁziﬂ“L#ﬁ%i‘bﬂﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ

—  BRENT1812365A 2 M2 EMERS Zi"mi
ZHRERTEERRBRATRDERE
ﬁ%o

b ENREFBNEEFEERRBRTRSE-
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Note (ii):

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing
solutions business. The amounts are generally due for settlement with these
customers within 30 days. The decrease in balance was mainly due to
increase in volume of early settlement financial services transactions.

HiEt i) -

ERBMRIEN X N R ZERIERRAR T REV RN, Z50R -
ERERRIB0ANEZETPETEE - BHRD T
TEHREHNEESRRERZEE M-

Note (iii): Bt et i) -
2017 2016
—E—iF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations* fEEt B TR SRR S 219,370 162,675
Deposits and receipt in advance** R e KA S MR AR IE 445,287 332,501
Accrued subcontracting cost FEET D B A 114,631 93,166
Others*** HAly e 69,121 37,075
848,409 625,417

*  The increase in accrued staff costs and pension obligations was mainly
due to the increase in year end bonus as compared to last year.

**  The increase in deposits and receipt in advance was mainly due to
increase in deposits and guarantees received from merchants and
agents under the payment processing solutions business.

*% The increase was mainly due to other accrued handling fees payable
by the payment processing solution segment.

(N) Assets and liabilities of disposal group classified as (N)

held-for-sale

During YEAR 2016, the Company, MS and an independent
third party entered into a memorandum of understanding
for the possible sale of the Group’s entire interests in MS
(the “Disposal”). As a result, the major classes of assets and
liabilities (not including the booked amounts of the working
capital provided by the Company to MS) of MS and its
subsidiary were classified as held-for sale as at 31 December
2016. The Disposal was completed in June 2017. Please also
refer to Note (C) above.

* ERTB TR RRASHFUEINE B N FRIEAR
EFBAE B

o RE RIRSWEGIRIENE R AR IR ZERIEER
FEREB R P RRIBARERZ RE RRE SR
o

ok B ERRN MR SEIERAD RO EENE
FEEMRER-

PERABEHEZHEMARNEERER

M- RNEE ARR -MSE—ZBIFE=H
AT EAREEAMS 2 FT B RS MR ] S ar iR Hs
e ([HEEE]D At RZT—AF+=A
—t+—B MSKEWBARZEERBE (T
BARRFAMSIRH 2 EERRAEB) XS
BERIDBARELHE HEFHEHERZE—t
FRATK - BRFERZSH EXMEO -



KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(A) Purchase of E-payment terminal products from Pax

(B

~

Global Group

In connection with the business of provision of payment
processing solutions, the Group from time to time purchases
E-payment Terminal products from PAX Global and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “PAX Global Group”).

During the 12-month period preceding 31 March 2017
(“Relevant Period”), the Group purchased from PAX Global
Group E-payment Terminal products in an aggregate amount of
approximately HK$187.5 million (inclusive of tax payable by
the Group).

The Group provides E-payment Terminal products to its
merchant customers and in return receives a fee. The E-payment
Terminal products the Group purchased from PAX Global
Group during the Relevant Period have been recorded as
fixed assets while the relevant depreciation charges have been
recorded as cost of sales in the financial statements of the
Group.

During the Relevant Period, relevant members of the Group
and PAX Global Group have from time to time entered into
individual agreements in respect of the relevant sales and
purchases of E-payment Terminal products.

The prices payable for the E-payment Terminal products were
agreed between the Group and PAX Global Group at arm’s
length by reference to the prevailing market prices of products
with similar specifications at the relevant time. The Group
generally settles the purchase cost with PAX Global Group
every six months. Reference is made to the announcement
of the Company dated 31 March 2017 in relation to the
purchases.

Disposal of the Merchant Support Co., Ltd and its
subsidiary

On 18 May 2017, the Company entered into a deed of sale and
purchase with MS, MS’s subsidiary and UnionPay Merchant
Services International Holdings Limited (“UnionPay”), pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to sell and
UnionPay conditionally agreed to acquire the entire issued
shares of MS, at the aggregate consideration of JPY950,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$66,500,000) (subject to
adjustment). The Disposal was completed on 27 June 2017.
Further details of the Disposal are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 18 May 2017.
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t £ Merchant Support Co., Ltd 5 E i B 2 7

R-_ZE—+tFHA+N\B AARIEMS MSZHT
B AR RIRE BB IR A R AR (R ])
FINEBEZE B ARARDERERERE
MR E B IEHFRIZ W EEMS 2 2B 1T
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopted
contract based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as a foreign

investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQ”) in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which
are material to the Group.

1. EBETREEHEER2T (“Just-In Mobile”) and its
subsidiaries: FE{TI X B R A7 (“VBIill”)

1.1

1.2

Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners
Just-In Mobile is a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 4 June 2002.

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile are Mr. Zhou
Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na Wei (40%). Since 28 May
2010, a contractual arrangement has been made between
Just-In Mobile, the registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile
and #TTEREM (LB)BERAE (JIM Shanghai”),
which allows JIM Shanghai to exercise control and enjoy
economic benefit generated from Just-In Mobile.

JIM Shanghai is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JIM Holdings
International Company Limited (“JIM Holdings”) which
was acquired by the Company on 19 March 2010 and has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company since
then.

Description of OPCO’s business

Just-In Mobile and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the value-added telecommunication business (}£{E&E {5
7% ) with major focus on payment related solutions and
services, the provision of payment processing solution in
the PRC.

BRASHRHEZER

AEEEBETEBRBANBIZH R, 84E (14
ML) &8 B EERAEEAINEIREE =

Rep BB RS £ 2 h BB ([ A
BAR) Wtk o
TR AT E B EAZ AN -

1. EBGTRDEBARLA ((EEET]
REMBAR BITAXNAERAA (BT
;1)

1.1

1.2
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Contractual Arrangement was adopted by the Company in
the above businesses as value-added telecommunication
business (J2{EE %75 ) has been restrictive to foreign
direct investment under the PRC law (being that foreign
shareholding must not exceed 50%).

1.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of

the Contractual Arrangements

Management Consulting and Services Agreement

Just-In Mobile and JIM Shanghai entered into the
Management Consulting and Services Agreement, pursuant
to which Just-In Mobile agreed to engage JIM Shanghai as
its exclusive management consultant and service provider.
Accordingly, JIM Shanghai shall provide services to Just-
In Mobile on (i) R & D of the computer software with new
and high technology; (ii) R & D of the computer software
by other customers’ requirement; (iii) maintenance of
the computer software and technical support; (iv) R & D
and maintenance of the network technique; (v) technical
training; and (vi) provision of staff. Pursuant to the
Management Consulting and Services Agreement, Just-
In Mobile would pay JIM Shanghai a consulting fee that
equals to 95% of Just-In Mobile’s business income relating
to the services provided above after deducting its operating
cost. The consulting fee should be paid monthly or yearly
as requested by JIM Shanghai. The Management Consulting
and Services Agreement shall be effective from the date of
signing for a term of thirty (30) years.

Cooperative Framework Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered
into the Cooperative Framework Agreement, pursuant to
which JIM Shanghai has agreed to provide various services,
including management consulting services, to Just-In
Mobile. The Cooperative Framework Agreement shall be
effective from the date of signing for a term of thirty (30)
years, unless terminated by JIM Shanghai. Mr. Zhou and
Mr. Na have also undertaken that in the event JIM Shanghai
has to pay any consideration to them under the Share
Option Agreement, they must return any consideration
received thereunder to JIM Shanghai.

BEEHR (RED)ARAE

1.3

—B—tEER

Report of the Directors

i el

AR B E P ERIA A - RE TS
RiEHBDAE (RINSR A TS HERE50% ) -
BETEEFRIEERRE -

BRI ZIRRE #I L BIFA A E

B A R R HE
BERATHEATT D8R L BB LR
#oBL EEATREZRRET LEER
HEBREILEME R RBHER - FL - 417

EEARERATRENTRE (/S
R BRI (R EE 2RkfEE
BB (i RE BASEUF R SR  (v)FF
B RREREEM : PRI Rt
BT RBEREARIRBEHE EEETT
AT DB IEERER AT TR A
EIER B LI AT AR TS 2 TS ULA95%
ZHAB N BARAT LEETIZAY
BREZT - BEH ﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂ% EEEEEE
AR BH=+E0F -

BIFIER B
BT LR BEGT ASERMEERTL

BIFERW Bt BT LERERMER
BIOTRESERS eRERKARE 4
TEEZR IR B %8R ] B IR AR BEI=1030)

FRIFETLEETURIE-BRERIE
EREAG AT SR A
AREXNERARE  RELERETLE
IR UM ER 2 (R (B -



HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Report of the Directors

o R

32

Proxy Agreement

The registered shareholders of Just-In Mobile (namely
Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na) and JIM Shanghai entered into the
Proxy Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na
agreed to authorise persons designated by JIM Shanghai
to exercise all of their rights and powers as shareholders
of Just-In Mobile. Persons designated by JIM Shanghai
will act on their behalf on all matters pertaining to Just-
In Mobile and, to the extent permissible under applicable
PRC laws and the Articles of Association of Just-In Mobile,
exercise all of their respective rights as shareholders of
Just-In Mobile, including but not limited to the following
rights: (i) rights to attend shareholders’ meetings; (ii) rights
to exercise voting rights in all shareholders’ meeting; (iii)
rights to sign on minutes or resolutions of shareholders’
meetings or other legal documents and (iv) rights to file
documents with the relevant companies registry. The Proxy
Agreement shall be effective from the date of signing for a
term of ten (10) years, unless extended by the parties.

Share Option Agreement

JIM Shanghai, Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and Just-In Mobile entered
into the Share Option Agreement, pursuant to which
Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na granted to JIM Shanghai and/or
any other party designated by JIM Shanghai irrevocable
options to purchase their equity interests in Just-In Mobile,
entirely or partially, at an aggregate consideration for
the entire equity interests which equals to the total share
capital of Just-In Mobile or the value of the equity and/
or assets of Just-In Mobile, whichever is lower. However,
the consideration shall not be less than the minimum
purchase price permitted by PRC laws and regulations.
The Share Option Agreement shall be effective for an
indefinite term from the date of the agreement, until it is
terminated (i) upon transfer of the entire equity interests
of Just-In Mobile to JIM Shanghai and/or any other party
designated by JIM Shanghai according to the Share Option
Agreement; (ii) due to restraint under the PRC laws that
transfer of the equity of Just-In Mobile in accordance with
the Share Option Agreement is impossible; and (iii) upon
JIM Shanghai exercising the pledge under the Equity Pledge
Agreement which results that the whole equity interests
in Just-In Mobile are no longer held by Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na in full. Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na have also undertaken that
in the event JIM Shanghai has to pay any consideration to
them under the Share Option Agreement, they must return
to JIM Shanghai any consideration they receive.
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Equity Pledge Agreement

Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and JIM Shanghai entered into the Equity
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na agreed to pledge all of their respective equity interests
(together with their derivative interests) in Just-In Mobile
to JIM Shanghai to secure their payment obligations under
the Loan Agreement and Just-In Mobile’s obligations
under the Cooperative Framework Agreement. Pursuant
to the Equity Pledge Agreement, if there is any breach of
obligations on the part of Mr. Zhou, Mr. Na and/or Just-In
Mobile as prescribed under the Equity Pledge Agreement,
JIM Shanghai shall be entitled to exercise its right of pledge
against the said equity interests. In addition, pursuant to
the Equity Pledge Agreement, each of Mr. Zhou and Mr.
Na undertook to JIM Shanghai, among other things, not
to transfer, dispose of their respective equity interests in
Just-In Mobile or to create any encumbrance thereon
without JIM Shanghai’s prior written consent. The Equity
Pledge Agreement shall be effective from the date of the
agreement, until two (2) years after completion of all
the obligations on the part of Just-In Mobile under the
Cooperative Framework Agreement.

Loan Agreements

Each of Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na entered into a Loan
Agreement with JIM Shanghai, pursuant to which
JIM Shanghai agreed to lend RMB4,200,000 and
RMB2,800,000 to Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na respectively in
order to satisfy the funding needs of Just-In Mobile. Both
of the two loans under the two Loan Agreements are for a
term of ten (10) years from the date of signing and can be
extended by mutual consent.

Dispute resolutions

Pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements, any dispute
arising from the interpretation and implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements between the parties should first
be resolved through negotiation, failing which any party
may submit the said dispute to the China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission in Shanghai
for arbitration in accordance with its arbitration rules.
Arbitrators may award remedies over the shares or land
assets of OPCO, grant order for the conduct of business
or order the winding up of OPCO. The results of the
arbitration shall be final and binding on all relevant parties.
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1.4 Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements
The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group for the
year ended 31 December 2017 was HK$2,175.2 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the JIM
Group as at 31 December 2017 amounted to HK$2,147.7
million and HK$469.4 million respectively.

2. Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements

The Group relies on the Contractual Arrangements to control
and obtain the economic benefits from Just-In Mobile, i.e. the
OPCO, which may not be as effective in providing operational
control as direct ownership. In addition, if the PRC government
would regard the agreements under the Contractual
Arrangements to establish the structure for addressing the
aforesaid foreign ownership restriction for foreign investment
in the value-added telecommunication business in the PRC as
not in compliance with applicable PRC laws and regulations, or
future changes in policies, rules regulations and interpretation
thereof, the Group could be subject to severe consequences,
including the nullification of the Contractual Arrangements
and the relinquishment of the Group’s interest therein. The
Company will closely monitor the relevant PRC laws and
regulations relevant to the Contractual Arrangements and will
take all necessary actions to protect the Company’s interests in
the OPCO.

3. Material change

On 22 January 2016, JIM Shanghai, Just-In Mobile, Mr. Zhou
and Mr. Na entered into a new set of underlying contracts
of the Contractual Arrangements with a view to aligning the
contents with the latest requirements of the Stock Exchange.
The Directors confirm that there is no major changes to the
terms of the underlying contracts.

4. Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements

As at the date of this report, there is no unwinding of any
of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangement are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Payment processing solutions

By the end of 2017, the overall transaction size continued to
grow steadily, with the accumulated number of active domestic
merchants reaching 2.5 million and the annual transaction volume
exceeded 1,100 billion. The internet payment business has
commenced in the second half of the year and annual transaction
size has exceeded RMB13 billion. During the year, we launched
the “smart payment platform”, an integration of various payment
methods, such as “UnionPay QuickPass”, “WeChat Pay”, “Alipay”
and bank cards, and various terminals ranging from traditional
POS, MPOS to APP Cashier, card accepting facilities, easy code-
scanning terminals and Smart POS, to provide a comprehensive
set of application solutions to industry players. In June 2017, we
successfully passed the review of the People’s Bank of China, and
renewed the licenses for bank card acquiring, internet payment
and mobile payment until June 2022. While we were advancing
the early settlement services based on merchants, we obtained the
“internet micro-lending license” in September 2017, allowing us to
commence lending business for online merchants and individuals.
With our prudent operational strategy, extensive experience in
technology and risk management in recent years, we have received
numerous honors such as “The Best Comprehensive Third Party
Financial Institution of the Year” by various associations, institutions
and media. Since the beginning of the year, regulatory authorities
such as the central bank and China Banking Regulatory Commission
have published a series of announcements, which stated that license
was required for operating financial businesses such as payment and
lending. They also struck at illegal operations including operating
without license or authorisation. We will benefit from the regulatory
policy in favor of licensed institutions and enjoy better development
opportunities under the business strategy of “Payment + Financial”.
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Financial solutions

During the year of 2017, with regard to the traditional customer
market, such as large state-owned banks, joint stock commercial
banks and their overseas sub-branches, we have put into operation
the core system construction project for China Everbright Bank
(Luxembourg) and the operating system project for retail and other
core businesses of China Minsheng Bank, Hong Kong branch.
On the basis of strengthening our presence in the traditional
customer market, we invested strategically in the three aspects
simultaneously: (1) expanded mid- to small-size customers groups
such as city commercial banks. During the year, we have completed
the construction of the core system for the Bank of Suzhou, won
the tender for the core system renovation project for Dongguan
Rural Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., and entered into human resource
outsourcing cooperation framework agreements with Sichuan
Rural Credit Union, Fujian Rural Credit Union and CITIC aiBank
Corporation Limited; (2) actively extended to foreign banks and
overseas customers groups and achieved significant progress.
During the year, we have put into operation the core system project
for Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited and won the tender for the core
system construction project for Nanyang Commercial Bank (China)
Limited, as well as the system construction projects for Goopal
International Limited, Well Link Bank and China Guangfa Bank Co.,
Ltd. (Macau Branch). In particular, we have launched the system
for the Well Link Bank project during the period; (3) explored the
financial services market other than banking customers. We secured
our first deal in the insurance market during the period, and entered
into IT service contracts with Taikang Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and
Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd.

Electronic power meters and solutions

In the second half of 2017, the State Grid conducted the second
tender under which we were awarded contracts. However, the
business environment will remain challenging in 2018. In 2018,
it is expected the total tender volume and size of electronic
power meters and data collection devices of the State Grid will
approximate to that in 2017. As the State Grid continues to promote
new technological development, in particular the DLT698.45
object-oriented interchangeable data exchange protocol, relevant
products have been put into testing and are expected to be listed
on the tender catalogue for the tender in 2018. In recent years, we
have been closely monitoring the latest technological development
of the State Grid. Currently, the development of our DLT698.45
protocol related products is progressing well, which is expected to
provide us certain advantages in the tender in 2018.
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Information security chips and solutions

Driven by the significant growth of the payment market in
China, the information security chips business expanded rapidly
in the second half of 2017 and the annual sales increased to
approximately 3 times as compared with that for 2016. Sales of
mag-stripe card security decoder chips was stable while that of
security micro-controller (MCU) increased drastically. It is expected
that, in 2018, the payment market condition will resemble that of
2017. Nonetheless, the growth may slow down due to the central
bank policies targeting the payment market. Other research projects
are progressing smoothly and cost reduction initiatives of various
products are rolling out in an orderly manner.

Platform operation solutions

In 2018, we will continue to provide high-quality and efficient
supporting services, such as product development, business
operation and system maintenance to the E-commerce Base of
China Mobile, the IVR Base of China Mobile and the Animation
Base of China Mobile. The contract value of the operational
supporting services contracts signed and executed in 2017
remained roughly stable as compared to last year. We will
be focusing on the field of communication operators while
pursuing stable income. In particular, the business development
of E-commerce Base of China Mobile will largely emphasise on
bundling of “A18" users, expanding high-quality offline merchants
and promoting user engagement. The base also launched innovative
products such as the “ME" red pockets. Given the continuous
investment of China Mobile and its rapid business development, the
annual transaction volume of “F1” business hit a record high of
over RMB2 trillion in 2017. The growth of “A18" business, along
with the strong demand of the E-commerce Base for our product
development, business operation and system maintenance services,
will guarantee the long-term sustainability of the operational
supporting services business. At the same time, we are actively
exploring new opportunities for product innovation and business
development in the areas of e-commerce, payment and internet
finance.

Principal Risk and Uncertainty

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from
a small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes
in market conditions, technological advancements, developing
industry standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences
for our new products and/or services. If we are unable to respond
to these changes promptly or unable to continually enhance our
existing products and launch market new products in a timely
manner, our business performance may be adversely affected. Also,
any unauthorised use of our intellectual property by third parties
could harm our business and competitive position.
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The industries in which we operate in the PRC are subject to
extensive industry standards and government regulations, failing
compliance of which may adversely affect, our operation and sales.
Regarding our payment processing solutions business in the PRC,
we are currently operating under three main payment licenses,
namely national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses, which will expire in June 2022. Any failure to
renew these licenses could disrupt our business operations and our
sales may be materially and adversely affected.

The Group has been operating certain lines of businesses
which adopted contract-based arrangements and/or structures
(“Contractual Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the
Group, as foreign investor, to control and benefit from the PRC
operating companies (“OPCQ”) in the foreign restricted businesses
in the PRC. However, such arrangements may not be as effective
in providing operational control as direct ownership. In addition,
there can be no assurance that the PRC government authority would
continue to regard these Contractual Arrangements as being in
compliance with the applicable PRC laws and regulations, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the future
would not affect the Contractual Arrangements and the relevant
business operations. Details of the Contractual Arrangements
are set out in section headed “Information on the Contractual
Arrangements” in the Report of the Directors on page 30.

Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risks,
such as currency fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks,
and liquidity risks in the normal course of the Group’s business.
Particulars of financial risk management of the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There has been no violation, breach of or incompliance with
applicable laws and regulations such as the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and other applicable
local laws and regulations in various jurisdictions in which the
Group operates that had a significant inpact on the Company.
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RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related discretionary bonus. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as incentives or rewards.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully
understands this principle and thus maintains close relationship
with the customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term need.
Due to the nature of the business, the Group did not have any major
supplier that has significant influence on its operations.

However, the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operative
relationship with the suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws the number nearest to
not less than one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the Annual General Meeting, provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years.
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Mr. Li Wenjin, an Executive Director, Mr. Tam Chun Fai and Mr.
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard, both being Independent Non-Executive
Directors, will retire from office by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in
accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

As Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard, being appointed as a Non-
Executive Director in November 2009 and re-designated as an
Independent Non-Executive Director in February 2016, would
have served the Company for more than 9 years during the term of
his further appointment in 2018, his further appointment shall be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders in
accordance with the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company or the
Group was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director (with meetings as ascribed to it under the Listing
Rules) had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into or subsisted during or at the end of the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 4 to 6.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and was in force
throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity
against liabilities, including liability in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her
offices, subject to terms and conditions set out in the policy.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571)
(“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of Director BEEHZ BAESR
Kui Man Chun RER 28,650,000(L)*
Xu Wensheng B 4,566,000(L)*
Li Wenjin EXE 6,400,000(L)*
Xu Changjun REE 16,563,000(L)*
Note:

(i) These shares are held by Mr. Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun Limited, a
company which Mr. Kui Man Chun hold a 99.16% interest, and Rich Global
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares.

**  The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2017, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary
shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
Directors, the Chief Executive of the Company nor their associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’

INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders (other than a Director, or the Chief

Executive) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register

maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as

follows:

Ordinary share of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of shareholder
RREH/ M2 AAER

Rich Global Limited (“RGL")*** -
Hi Sun Limited (“HSL"*** (Note 1) ( #7£1) -
Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 2)

RERRE (Wit2)

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”)

28,650,000(L)*

Mr. Che Fung (Note 3)
BIELE (Hi3) -

Notes:

*x

Representing HSL's interests in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its
control of 100% shareholding in RGL.

Representing Mr. Kui Man Chun’s (i) deemed interests in the Company’s
share capital by virtue of his control of 99.16% shareholding of HSL; and
(ii) personal interests in the Company’s share capital as disclosed in the
preceding section.

Representing Mr. Che Fung’s interests in the Company’s share capital by
virtue of his control of 100% shareholding in Ever Union, which holds
beneficial interests in 334,314,000 ordinary shares of the Company.

The Letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2017, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary
shares.

Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng were directors of HSL
which were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company
had not been notify by any persons, other than a Director or the
Chief Executive of the Company, who had any interests or short
positions in any Shares or underlying shares of the Company and its
associated which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of the Part XV of the SFO, or
which were as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions which constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are outlined below. The Group has
complied with all the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules in respect of such transactions.

(a) Framework agreement with Ronglian Yitong
On 9 May 2016, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) with Beijing Ronglian
Yitong Information Technology Co. Ltd. (“Ronglian Yitong”),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to engage Ronglian Yitong
and Ronglian Yitong agreed to provide or procure the provision
of, on a non-exclusive basis, technical and support services in
relation to platform operation and such other technical support
services that may be agreed between the Group and Ronglian
Yitong and its subsidiaries from time to time and/or their
respective members for a term commencing from the date of
the Framework Agreement to 31 December 2018.

Mr. Zhang Hui (the “Mr Zhang”), who is a director of two
of the subsidiaries of the Company and hence a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, is one of the registered shareholders
of Ronglian Yitong holding 45.8% shareholding in Ronglian
Yitong. Therefore, Ronglian Yitong, being an associate of Mr.
Zhang, is a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. The transactions contemplated under the Framework
Agreement having been approved by the Board constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company (the
“Continuing Connected Transactions”).

Since Ronglian Yitong is a connected person of the Company
by virtue of being an associate of Mr. Zhang and the
Independent Non-Executive Directors have confirmed that
the terms of the Continuing Connected Transactions are fair
and reasonable, on normal commercial terms or better, in the
ordinary and usual course of business of the Group, and in
the interests of the Company and Shareholders as a whole,
the Continuing Connected Transactions are exempt from
the circular, independent financial advice and shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing
Rules and are only subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The cap on the total contract value for the Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Framework Agreement
for each of the three years ending 31 December 2016,
2017 and 2018 are RMB60,000,000, RMB66,000,000 and
RMB69,000,000 respectively and the actual total transaction
amount for the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB50,244,327.

Please also refer to an announcement (“CCT Announcement”)
of the Company dated 9 May 2016 and note 34 to the
condensed consolidated financial statements in relation to the
Continuing Connected Transactions.

During the year, the Board and the finance department of the
Company have followed through and collected data on the
Continuing Connected Transactions by adopting the following
procedures which have been reviewed by the audit committee
of the Board:

(1) periodic checks on the pricing terms to ensure they are
compliant with the Framework Agreement; and

(2) periodic reports on the total transaction amounts to ensure
the annual caps were not exceeded.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”) have
reviewed the above internal control measures taken by the
management and are of the view that such internal control
measures are adequate and effective to ensure that the
Continuing Connected Transactions entered into during the year
were compliant with the pricing policies stipulated under the
Framework Agreement. The INEDs have further opined that the
Continuing Connected Transactions were entered into:

(i) on normal commercial terms or better;

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
and

(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2017 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagement Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board confirms
that the auditor has issued a letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the Continuing Connected
Transactions in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules and a copy of this letter has been provided to the Stock
Exchange.
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(b) Deemed Disposal — Grant of VBill Options under the

VBill Share Option Scheme

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
15 January 2018, VBill conditionally agreed to grant VBill
Options pursuant to the VBill Share Option Scheme to the
three grantees to subscribe for up to approximately 12% of
the enlarged VBill Registered Capital at the exercise price of
RMB12.51 for every RMB1.0 in the enlarged VBill Registered
Capital exercisable for a period of 3 years from date when the
VBill Share Option Scheme became unconditional. Mr. Shen
(one of the grantees) is a director and the chairman of the board
of VBIll and a director of certain members of the VBill Group
and Mr. Li (one of the grantees) is the chief executive officer
of VBIill and the supervisor of a member of the VBill Group.
Hence, each of Mr. Shen and Mr. Li is a connected person of
the Company at subsidiary level. Assuming that all the grantees
exercise the options in full, the grantees will, in aggregate, own
approximately 12% of the enlarged VBill Registered Capital
and the Group's interest in the VBill will be diluted from
approximately 80.04% to approximately 70.44%, the grant of
the VBill Options therefore constituted a connected transaction
and a deemed disposal under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
(“Deemed Disposal”).

Since the exercise of the VBill Options is not at the Company’s
discretion, the Deemed Disposal will be classified as if the
VBill Options had been exercised at the time of the grant.
As certain of the applicable percentage ratios of the Deemed
Disposal are above 5% but all applicable percentage ratios are
less than 25% and the total consideration to be paid by the
three grantees is above HK$10,000,000, the Deemed Disposal
constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company which
is only subject to notification and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

As Mr. Shen and Mr. Li are connected persons of the Company
at subsidiary level and the transaction contemplated by the
Deemed Disposal is on normal commercial terms or better,
the Deemed Disposal constitutes a connected transaction
of the Company which is only subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but is exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders” approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as (i)
the Board of the Company has approved the transaction
contemplated by the Deemed Disposal and (ii) the independent
non-executive Directors have confirmed that the transaction
contemplated by the Deemed Disposal is on normal
commercial terms or better and in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above and please refer to the section titled
“Share Option Scheme of VBill” in this annual report.

(b)
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2017.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, total cost of purchase of electronic funds transfer
point-of-sale (“EFT-POS”) terminals from PAX Global Technology
Limited (“PAX Global”) amounted to approximately HK$135.8
million, and was regarded as capital in nature. The Company held
33.1% interest in PAX Global and Mr. Li Wenjin, an Executive
Director of the Company and also an Executive Director of PAX
Global, was interested in 2,890,000 shares issued by PAX Global
(the underlying shares of which represented approximately 0.26%
of the issued share capital of PAX Global) as at 31 December 2017.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year.

The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 6%
— five largest customers combined 15%

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had interests in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subscription for Series D Preferred Shares of Cloopen

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 28
February 2018, on 28 February 2018, Main Access Limited (“Main
Access”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as one of
the subscribers, entered into a share subscription agreement (the
“Series D Subscription Agreement”) with (i) Cloopen Group Holding
Limited (“Cloopen”), an investment of the Company accounted
for using the equity method, two subsidiaries of Cloopen, namely
Cloopen Limited and Anxun Guantong (Beijing) Technology Co.,
Ltd. (“Anxun”), Beijing Ronglian Yitong Information Technology
Co. Ltd. (“Ronglian”) (a company which Anxun exercises control
and enjoys economic benefits through contractual arrangements,
together the “Cloopen Group”); (ii) the founding shareholders,
namely Mr. SUN Changxun and Mr. LI Xiaoguang and their
respective investment holding companies, namely Cloopen Co., Ltd.
and Slivo Co., Ltd.; and (iii) other subscribers. Pursuant to the Series
D Subscription Agreement, Main Access has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for 2,434,015 series D preferred shares of Cloopen at
the consideration of US$5 million. Upon completion of the Series
D Subscription Agreement, Cloopen will have issued an aggregate
of 12,462,157 series D preferred shares, representing approximately
6.02% of the enlarged issued share capital of Cloopen, to all the
subscribers of the series D preferred shares, including Main Access
(assuming 21,119,408 ordinary shares of Cloopen which have been
reserved for issuance to officers, directors, employees or consultants
of Cloopen pursuant to its employee share option plan (the “ESOP
shares”) are allotted and issued), and Cloopen Group will have
raised US$25.6 million (before deducting expenses) in this series
of preference shares issue pursuant to the Series D Subscription
Agreement. As at the date of the announcement dated 28 February
2018 and the date of this report and immediately before completion
of the Series D Subscription Agreement, the Group is interested
in approximately 27.34% equity interest in Cloopen (assuming
all the ESOP shares and convertible preferred shares are allotted
and issued). Completion of the Series D Subscription Agreement
will take place no later than 3 business days after all conditions
precedent specified thereunder are satisfied or waived. Immediately
subsequent to completion of the Series D Subscription Agreement,
the Group’s equity interests in Cloopen will be approximately
26.87% (assuming all the ESOP Shares and convertible preferred
shares are allotted and issued).

Immediately after completion of the Series D Subscription
Agreement, the Cloopen Group will remain to be an investment of
the Company accounted for using the equity method.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF VBILL

As disclosed in the section titled “Share Option Scheme of VBill” in
this annual report, the Company has adopted the VBill Share Option
Scheme which became effective for a period of 5 years from 5
February 2018 and VBill Options in the amount of RMB27,259,000
representing 12% of the enlarged VBill Registered Capital have been
granted to three specified participants, including connected persons
of the Company at subsidiary level, as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the VBill Group, as
approved by the Shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 5 February 2018.

Further details of the VBill Share Option Scheme can be found
in the aforesaid section, the announcement and circular of the
Company dated 15 January 2018 and 19 January 2018 respectively.

Save as disclosed above and in the section titled “Connected
Transactions”, no material event has taken place subsequent to the
year ended 31 December 2017.

PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate,
and participate as required, in a defined contribution retirement
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in accordance with the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485)
under which employer and employees are each required to make
regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF Scheme,
subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary
contributions additional to the Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an
employee are fully and immediately vested in the employee once
paid to the trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return
derived from the investment of the Mandatory Contributions is
also fully and immediately vested in the employee. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the accrued benefits derived from the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject to other applicable
provisions of law.
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In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Group is required to contribute
to certain retirement benefit schemes in favour of the employees
in the PRC an amount equal to approximately 7% to 20% of
their respective yearly wages. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those
workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from the
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the Group's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed
that the Company has maintained at all times the sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceeding
three year and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all operations and that its
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices
and standards, the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year ended 31
December 2017.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted trading guidelines regulating directors’
and senior management’s transactions concerning securities of the
Company, on terms no less exacting than the required standard as
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all the directors of the Company
and the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in Model Code and the Group's trading
guidelines through the year and up to the date of this Report.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves power for decisions concerning all major
matters which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or substantial
shareholder(s), appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board
papers and relevant information, as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
to assist in the performance of directors duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the senior management’s powers, the scope of delegations
and relevant arrangements are periodically reviewed to ensure they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Reporting to and prior
approval of the Board are necessary before the senior management
enters into any material transactions and assuming significant
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time and an updated list of all directors
identifying their role and function is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for a
fixed contract term subject to re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws and the CG code.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election.

Further appointment of any Independent Non-Executive Director
having served for more than 9 years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.

Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules
and regulations, and the Group’s governance and internal control
policies. The Company also arranges and funds suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.
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All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings
for the Directors in the form of seminar and provision of training
materials. A summary of training received by the Directors during
the relevant period according to the records provided by the
Directors is as follows:
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Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

TEER EERRR

Name of Directors EEHR H i8R EREEZ I
Executive Directors: HITES:

Cheung Yuk Fung REIE U
Kui Man Chun REE V
Xu Wensheng mX A& U
Li Wenjin FENE v
Xu Changjun REE v
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFYITES:

Tam Chun Fai BRI V
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER v
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard SRIEE U
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEERESULBR

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy. The Company seeks
to achieve board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors in the Board members’ selection process, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the reporting period, the Company has a solid slate
of Directors with diverse perspectives and varied educational
background and expertise made-up, from extensive knowledge
of the information technology industry and electronic payment
industry, experience in international trade, finance and corporate
management, to professional qualifications in the legal and
accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in his
respective field of expertise for at least 20 years, all of whom share
and acquire the talent and competence to drive the industry so as to
bring sustainable growth to the Company.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four Regular Board meetings were held during the year for
reviewing and approving the financial and operating performance
and respectively the final results for the year ended 31 December
2016, quarterly results for the three months ended 31 March
2017, interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2017 and
quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September 2017,
and considering and approving the overall strategies and policies of
the Company.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the four
regular quarterly Board meetings (not including other ad hoc
meetings of the Board held from time to time and any other
meeting(s) of members of the Board in compliance with the CG
Code), meetings of the Audit Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting, Risk
Management Committee and general meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Audit Nomination

Committee Committee

Meetings Meeting

EREEE REZEE

Name of Directors EEpA i a3

Cheung Yuk Fung REE N/A N/A

TEH TEH

Kui Man Chun RE® N/A N/A

TEH TiER

Xu Wensheng Ry N/A N/A

TEA TiEH

Li Wenjin FXE N/A 1n
TEA

Xu Changjun HREE N/A N/A

TEA TiEH

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard RiE 212 N/A

iEH

Tam Chun Fai FiRE 22 17

Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 212 11

Note: Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller, Joint Company

Secretary and member of Risk Management Committee of the Company
attended two Risk Management Committee meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.
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Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days before the intended date of meetings. Reasonable
notice is, as permitted by the Company’s Bye-laws under relevant
circumstances or otherwise agreed, given for other Board and
committee meetings.

The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been
responsible for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking
into account any matters the Directors may propose to include,
ensuring that all Directors are given opportunity to include matters
in the agenda and approving the agenda. In order to enable the
Directors to make informed decision, agenda and accompanying
board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
appraised of the latest developments and/or financial position of the
Company. The Board and the individual Directors also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further
enquires or when they require further information in addition to
those volunteered by the senior management.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and
accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance
and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping the
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
records sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or
Director are dealt with at a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which independent non-executive Directors having no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any
of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) having
material interests in the transactions shall abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving such
transactions in which such Directors.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive are
clearly defined and not performed by the same individual to ensure
a balanced power and authority and no concentration of power.
During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung acted as the Chairman, and
Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and established corporate
governance procedures. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture
to facilitate effective contributions and encourage the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient
discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The role of the Chief Executive focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board.
He is in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and
operations. The Chief Executive is also responsible for developing
strategic plans and formulating the organisational structure,
monitoring control systems and internal control procedures and
processes for the Board’s approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range
of business and financial expertise, experiences and, through
participation in board meetings, offer independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts. Through taking the lead
where potential conflicts on interests arise, serving on the Board
committees, examining the Company’s performance in achieving
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring performance
reporting, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.
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During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have also
attended the annual general meeting(s) of the Company, details of
which are set out in page 54, enabling them to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board and
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence of Independent Non-
Executive Directors

In respect of the reporting period, the Company has received from
each of the three Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tam Chun Fai, Mr. Leung Wai Man, Roger and Mr. Chang Kai-
Tzung, Richard, written annual confirmations of their respective
independence pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Risk Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference, setting out its authority
and duties, requiring them to report back to the Board on their
decisions or recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by legal
or regulatory requirements). To provide transparency, the terms of
reference of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites and hard copies of which are
available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors except the Risk Management
Committee and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee as at the date of this report is set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard*
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Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*
Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)*

Xu Wensheng”

Li Wenjin®

Hui Lok Yan*

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

A Executive Director

*  Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable and timely request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

During the Reporting Year, the main duties of the Audit Committee
include the followings:

(@) to review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the qualified accountant
or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
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(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system, risk

management system and associated procedures; and

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has access to information necessary
to fulfil their duties and responsibilities with respect to risk
assessment and risk management.

The written terms of reference which describing the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code and “A Guide for The Formation of An
Audit Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2017 to review the financial results and reports,
financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal control
and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function of the Group, the auditor’s independence and objectivity.
The Audit Committee has also met with the Company’s auditor
twice during the year and recommended the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor and approved
their remuneration and terms of engagement. The Board confirms
that it has taken no different view from the Audit Committee in
relation to the recommended re-appointment.

As at the end of 2017 and the date of this report, there are no
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2017 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the terms of reference adopted in compliance with the
requirements under the CG Code, include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.

=EEH (RE) AR AQE “E—LEFFR

Corporate Governance Report

e HRE e

© BTWHARRRIMBHREHIE  AFREZSE - Eg
EEHEREREFRE TS MAGRE &

d HEEREEZEEAF BREABEEZSSE
beﬁmxuﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ R ath R R E IR 2
BEMER-

E2REEERTRIREES IS RME) [

%V?EQZ%%J%%&%MﬁE%ﬁééﬁﬁﬁ
LBEMEmBERE-

ERZEENHE_TtFT_A=t—HILFE
BRITMAE R BHAKEMBEERES M5
BERTERRF RNEEERRREESE AEE
ZRBER A IR E R BED B M R R B - B

B ENESFEARAZYENEEM A WEHE
M RERERKBE N EEEEARENZBED
WHERFMMZ R S CRAENEEE
MEZEEEREZZBEWED -

%‘”*fﬁ*&ﬁ$ﬁ¢ﬂ% BEAMN YA
NAFFEE LR NEEEARRM 2 EHRIERZEX
TEABA %

ARABE_T—EF+_A=+—RLFEZEF
XECRHERZBESEN-

REZEES
a8 SF IR EA ST RIARE MR 2 B SRS 18
FLZEGIERARRERHNESFGZAB RER
AR HEERESRANZEEFUNAESRE
RETREMESTSRIER XAGHBYIFNTE
& NE &)



60

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Corporate Governance Report
e gk i

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
business requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. External recruitment agency may also
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

As Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard, being appointed as a Non-
Executive Director in November 2009 and re-designated as an
Independent Non-Executive Director in February 2016, would
have served the Company for more than 9 years during the term
of his further appointment in 2018, he will voluntarily retire at
the forthcoming 2018 annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election. His further appointment shall be
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by Shareholders in
accordance with the CG Code.

Mr. Li Wenjin, an Executive Director, and Mr. Tam Chun Fai, an
Independent Non-Executive Director, will also retire at the Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

The Nomination Committee has recommended the re-appointment
of the said Directors standing for re-election to the Board, following
which the Board, after due consideration, has recommended their
re-appointment for the Shareholders” approval at the forthcoming
Annual General meeting.

The Company’s circular dated 19 March 2018 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee
were set out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with
the requirements under the CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
whose remuneration will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and determination of the
annual remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and other related matters. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for collection and administration of
the human resources data and making recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration. The Remuneration
Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the Board about
these recommendations. The Remuneration Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2017 to review and
recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management of the company, to establish a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy for the remuneration of the
Directors, assessing performance of the Executive Directors and
approving the terms of their respective service contracts.

The remuneration payable to the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below:

Remuneration band M4 Bl
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 and note 37
to the consolidate financial statements.

Risk Management Committee
The Risk Management Committee comprises a minimum of four
members and shall have at least three Directors.

The main duties of the Risk Management Committee include the
followings:

(@) to review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls) and internal audit function, to ensure that effective
and adequate risk management and internal control systems are
established and maintained and that sufficient resources are in
place for the Group's internal audit function;
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(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain
the Group's risk management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls)
for the Group and adequacy of resources of its internal audit
functions.

The Risk Managements Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group's policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employee and Directors and (v) to review
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 67 to 75.
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Senior Management

The senior management have provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior
management to all members of the Board to enable proper
discharge of duties by the Board a whole or each member
individually by giving them balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospectus
in sufficient details.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and has overall responsibility
for reviewing and maintaining an adequate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests
of the Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It evaluates
the effectiveness of the systems at least annually to ensure the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate
risks, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. We have adopted a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across functional areas.

Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine
risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of the risk
event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements, attention
and risk treatment effort required.
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Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner of
departments and major subsidiaries is required to capture and
identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of its
objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk
matrix. After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk of
each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee, evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and report to the Board. The highest
category of residual risks is subject to the Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Internal Control Department of the Company (the “Internal
Control Department”) has performed ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems throughout the year (during which an external independent
consulting firm was engaged to offer assistance for the period from
1 April 2016 and 31 March 2017), according to the scope of review
covering the Group’s material controls in financial, operational and
compliance aspects agreed and approved by the Risk Management
Committee Committee and in compliance with the requirements
under Code Provision C.2 of the CG Code.

The Internal Control Department reported to the Risk Management
Committee and the Risk Management Committee was satisfied
that there had been no major deficiency noted in the areas of the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems, following
the implementation of recommendations against the internal
control defects revealed. The Audit Committee cooperates with
the Risk Management Committee to ensure the Risk Management
Committee has access to information necessary to fulfil their
duties and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk
management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems to
be effective had have been implemented with adequate resources
during the year.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has already established a policy on the procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside
information. The policy stipulates the obligations of the Group, in
respect of the restriction on disseminating non-public information,
handling of rumours, unintentional selective disclosure, exemption
and wavier to the disclosure of inside information, and also
compliance and reporting procedures. Senior management must
take all reasonable measures to ensure that proper safeguards exist
to prevent a breach of any disclosure requirement from time to
time, any promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of
inside information to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or
his delegates, who will notify the Board timely and accordingly for
taking the appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate persons
to decide the course of actions for rectifying the problem and
avoiding recurrence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2017 amounted to approximately HK$3,750,000.

SHAREHOLDERS’
RELATIONS

RIGHTS AND INVESTOR

(@) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting
Shareholder(s)” holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition for a special general meeting, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies)
signed and deposited in accordance with the Bye-laws of the
Company and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the
Directors to call a special general meeting for the transaction of
business specified in the requisition.
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(b) Procedures for putting forward proposals at general

(c)

meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

Communication with shareholders and investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board. At the
annual general meeting held on 25 April 2017 (the “2017
Annual General Meeting”), the Directors were made available
to answer questions in accordance with the requirements under
the CG Code. The Company’s external auditor also attended
the 2017 Annual General Meeting to answer any questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of
the auditor’s report, the accounting policies applied and their
independence.

Notices of the 2017 Annual General Meeting was sent in
accordance with the requirements under the CG Code.
Separate issues were proposed as separate resolution for
approval by the shareholders at the general meetings, to avoid
“bundling” resolutions and shareholders were provided of
explanation of the detailed procedures for voting by poll and
given sufficient changes to raise questions in relation thereto.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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To the Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 76 to 187, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Impairment of receivables

e Impairment of inventories

e Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

Key Audit Matter

Impairment of receivables

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and judgements)
and Note 22 (trade and bills receivables and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits) to the consolidated financial statements
for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2017, gross trade receivables of the
Group amounted to HK$270.2 million, which accounted for
approximately 5% of the Group’s total assets. The provision for
impairment of trade receivables amounted to HK$5.8 million,
majority of which was attributable to customers of the electronic
power meters and solutions segment.

Management performed periodic credit monitoring, which included
the review of customers’ credit worthiness, collection of outstanding
balances and individual credit terms. If there is indicator that
the receivables are impaired, management would make specific
provision against individual balances with reference to the
recoverable amount.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables
and the estimation and judgement involved in the determination of
the recoverable amounts of trade receivables.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables included:

— Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures on
periodic review on aged receivables and assessment on
recoverability of these receivables;
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— Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on
trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices;
and

— Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables balances.
Where settlement had not been received subsequent to the year
end for those unprovided aged receivables beyond the credit
period as at year end, we obtained management’s assessment
on the recoverability of these debts and corroborated
explanations with historical settlement pattern and underlying
correspondence with the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and judgement
made by management in respect of the collectability of receivables
were supportable by the available evidence.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of inventories

Refer to Note 4 (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and
Note 21 (inventories) to the consolidated financial statements for the
related disclosures.

The Group held inventories of HK$95.4 million as at 31 December
2017. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value (“NRV”). The cost of inventories may not be recoverable
if those inventories are aged and damaged, if they have become
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The provision
for inventories amounted to HK$37.7 million, majority of which
was attributable to inventories of the electronic power meters and
solutions segment.

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of inventories
by considering the ageing profile, inventory obsolescence and
estimated selling price of individual inventory items.

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based on
the estimated selling price less selling expenses, which requires
significant judgements and assumptions to be made to determine
the estimated selling price of individual product, including historical
experience of selling products of similar nature and expectation of
future sales based on current market conditions.

Management consistently applies a provisioning methodology for
slow moving inventories based on inventory ageing and makes
specific provision for long aged inventories. Management also
conducted periodic review on inventory obsolescence, including
performance of periodic inventory counts and review of holding
period for individual inventory items.
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We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision for
inventories involves significant judgement and various uncertainties
as a result of changing technology, customer demand and
competitors actions.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
NRV and obsolescence of inventories included:

— Understood and validated the control procedures performed by
management, including its procedures in estimating the NRV
of the inventories and conducting periodic review on inventory
obsolescence;

—  Observed client’s inventory counts to identify whether there is
any damaged or obsolete inventory;

— Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing profile
of individual inventory items by checking to the underlying
procurement correspondence and invoices;

— Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage of significant
inventory items, obtained through the usage report subsequent
to the year end as basis to identify inventory obsolescence.
Where there are no subsequent usage of the respective
items after the year end, we discussed with management
its assessment on estimated future utilisation, corroborating
explanations with the inventory ageing, sales orders and
marketability of the relevant finished goods by using
our industry knowledge and external market analysis, as
appropriate; and

-~ Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected inventory items,
by comparing the selling price subsequent to the year end,
against the carrying values of these individual finished goods.
Where there are no subsequent sales of the respective finished
goods after the year end, we discussed with management as to
the realisable value of the products, corroborating explanations
with the inventory ageing, sales orders, historical margins, and
current market conditions by using our industry knowledge and
external market analysis, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures described, we found the estimations
of management in relation to the provision for inventories were
supportable by available evidence.
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Key Audit Matter
Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

Refer to Note 3.3 (fair value estimation), Note 4 (critical accounting
estimates and judgements), Note 17 (available-for-sale financial
assets) and Note 18 (financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss) to the consolidated financial statements for related disclosure.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held interest in (i) an unlisted
investment fund of HK$162.8 million and (ii) certain unlisted
convertible preference shares of HK$93.5 million; which have been
classified as available-for-sale financial asset and financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss respectively.

These unlisted financial instruments are stated at their fair values,
classified under level three in the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was determined by
applying a portfolio discount to the audited net asset value of the
unlisted investment fund as at 31 December 2017, which had
already taken into account the fair values of the fund’s underlying
investments. The discount rate was determined based upon the
relative shareholding and rights of the Group and the marketability
of the investment.

The Group engaged an independent external valuer in determining
the fair value of the unlisted financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss by using discounted cash flow method. The key
assumptions used in the valuation include pre-tax discount rate,
compound annual growth rate and terminal growth rate.

We focused on this area because the carrying amounts of these
financial instruments are significant to the consolidated financial
statements and selection of valuation methodologies and
determination of key valuation assumptions requires the use of
significant judgement and estimates.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination of the
fair value of these financial instruments included:

For the unlisted investment fund:
- We tested the accuracy of the net asset value of the unlisted

investment fund by checking to its audited financial statements;
and
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—  We also involved our internal valuation expert in our discussion
with the management to understand the rationale for applying
the portfolio discount, reviewed relevant agreements or
documents to understand the key terms of the subject interest
and assessed the appropriateness of portfolio discount by
referencing to relevant research studies and market practices on
various discounts commonly considered in valuations. For the
unlisted convertible preference shares:

- We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of the
independent external valuer by considering its qualifications,
relevant experience and relationship with the Group;

—  We also involved our internal valuation expert in our discussion
with the external valuer to understand the rationale, and assess
the appropriateness and the consistency, of the methodologies
used and the key assumptions and estimates applied;

- We also assessed the reasonableness of the input data used by
evaluating:

e the pre-tax discount rate by considering the weighted
average cost of capital and the risk profile of the investee;
and

e the appropriateness of the compound annual growth rate
and the terminal growth rate based on market research,
historical performance and the business plan of the
investee.

—  We also compared the fair value of the unlisted convertible
preference shares with recent transaction price.

Based on the procedures described, we found the methodologies
used and key assumptions applied in the valuations to be
reasonable and supportable by available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 7 March 2018
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2\ RV
fr e W AR 3R
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-ZHA=1+—HLLEE
2017 2016
—E-+tF —E-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
BT FHET FET
Revenue WA 5,6 2,909,978 1,921,237
Cost of sales $HE K AR 7 (2,165,949) (1,328,542)
Gross profit EF 744,029 592,695
Other income E bl A 5 46,721 46,205
Other gains/(losses), net Hipezs (E18) FHE 5 21,139 (1,120)
Selling expenses & X 7 (113,394) (101,631)
Administrative expenses THRER 7 (461,580) (403,826)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE S A A s 33 63,262 -
Operating profit ReERA 300,177 132,323
Finance costs B & Rk AR 9 -
Share of result of an investment accounted  fE{f LARE RS A ABR 2
for using the equity method —EREFE 20 134,531 198,992
Gain on dilution of interest in AR IEARZ —IHIRE
an investment accounted EEn Sl
for using the equity method 20 113 826
Profit before income tax Br TS B AN E R 434,812 332,141
Income tax expense PSR 2 10 (45,298) (19,485)
Profit for the year FERBF 389,514 312,656
Profit attributable to: FEAL R F
— Owners of the Company S VNCIEZ ZS DN 346,144 283,964
— Non-controlling interests —JEVER R 43,370 28,692
389,514 312,656
HK$ per share ~ HKS$ per share
FREBET FRBT
Earnings per share for profit attributable to &2 B #H A
the owners of the Company: EBhENzce8RER:
Basic R 12 0.125 0.102
Diluted e 12 0.124 0.100

The notes on pages 83 to 187 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Sl B 4 T MY B R

For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Profit for the year F T 389,514 312,656
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax ~ Efh 2 EUzE ~ (F18)
(MBRBEE)
Items that have been reclassified or may be BEY 7 A 1% 7] §E
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss B AR B
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREGINKT B R R AR EE
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ZIER =58 78,739 (47,920)
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of G AR REARR — £/ E
an investment accounted for using ZEMEEWE S (EE)
the equity method
— exchange differences arising — ARG SN B X m B T Rk
on translation of the financial statements EEZEHRER
of foreign subsidiaries 56,207 (41,132)
— change in values of available-for-sale —AfHEEeREEL
financial assets Blag (2,028) -
Release of reserves upon dilution of BRI EARZIREERR
interest in an investment accounted for B2 #E
using equity method
— exchange differences arising on —REBINKT B AR B E
translation of the financial statements EECZERZERE
of foreign subsidiaries 315 116
Change in values of available-for-sale AHEESREE
financial assets EEZH 61,635 22,755
Release of reserves upon disposal of subsidiaries  [HE&EMHEB AR REL 2 HiE (1,699) -
Release of reserves upon deregistration of HUH 5 il — P 8 & =)
a subsidiary Bz @& (4,782) -
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified ~— EEHSTE8EXH 7 HE
to profit or loss BwmHE
Share of other comprehensive loss of JEIE A SEARRZ
an investment accounted for using —EREZHMEEER
the equity method
— remeasurement of post-employment — BN EBBRRENEE
benefit obligation (23) -
Total comprehensive income for the year, FRAZEKELE (NREE)
net of tax 577,878 246,475
Attributable to: FEh
— Owners of the Company . VNCIEZ 2SN 528,126 221,140
— Non-controlling interests —IFEAR iR 49,752 25,335
577,878 246,475

The notes on pages 83 to 187 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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W EE R R

As at 31 December

Rt=ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T-RF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B EE FET FET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Investment properties REWE 13 1,906 2,054
Property, plant and equipment E TS 14 507,024 267,114
Leasehold land HE 15 31,974 32,215
Intangible assets | EE 16 1,985 10,466
Investments accounted for using NREREARZKRE
the equity method 20 1,823,245 1,663,250
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EEREE 17 178,385 106,113
Financial asset at fair value through BRATFEFABRZ
profit or loss THEE 18 93,485 76,880
Long-term deposits and prepayments RERE RIEMNFIE 22 3,028 3,434
Total non-current assets ERBEEHLE 2,641,032 2,161,526
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 21 95,407 74,972
Trade and bills receivables I M5 Bl R N B M R B 22 278,319 243,534
Other receivables, prepayments and E At W FRIA
deposits BN FIERRS 22 66,067 38,040
Financial asset at fair value through BRANFEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 18 2,702 -
Amounts due from investments accounted — FEUUA#E 25K A SR 2
for using the equity method REZ A 34 16,289 13,258
Short-term bank deposits REIRITE R 23 16,153 18,388
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEEY 24 2,541,482 2,726,733
3,016,419 3,114,925
Assets of disposal group classified as DERFIEHEZ
held-for-sale HEAR M EE 33 - 222,590
Total current assets REBEESE 3,016,419 3,337,515
Total assets EE#E 5,657,451 5,499,041
EQUITY R
Capital and reserves attributable to KATREBA
the owners of the Company AR RA R R
Share capital &2 25 6,942 6,942
Reserves & 26 4,052,400 3,524,274
4,059,342 3,531,216
Non-controlling interests FEVE R R 104,203 54,451
Total equity AR 4,163,545 3,585,667

The notes on pages 83 to 187 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

w0 E R (8])

As at 31 December

BR+=ZHA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET TET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFRISHiaE 29 163 205
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE 163 205
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and bills payables JEAT BR AR % JE 5 R 4R 27 239,199 266,270
Payables for payment processing XNRGEBERTR
solutions business ES Pl ANE- S 27 292,587 808,650
Other payables and accruals H A & IR N R RIR 27 848,409 625,417
Amounts due to investments accounted FERT AR A AR
for using the equity method ZREZFIA 34 57,755 81,468
Current tax liabilities EHIEAE 46,197 34,884
Borrowing & 28 9,596 -
1,493,743 1,816,689
Liabilities of disposal group classified as D AR EHE 2
held-for-sale HEMARNERE 33 - 96,480
Total current liabilities REEERE 1,493,743 1,913,169
Total liabilities BEHAE 1,493,906 1,913,374
Total equity and liabilities EEREaERE 5,657,451 5,499,041

The financial statements on pages 76 to 187 were approved by the 87621878 2 ISk mESEN T —)\F=A
Board of Directors on 7 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf. Bt/ REREEE-

XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
B TNE
Director Director
o o

The notes on pages 83 to 187 are an integral part of these Z83Z=187BH ZMtENERE M IEHE 2 EF 3

consolidated financial statements. 5o
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713 HE 4 5 ) 3%

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE_Z-—tHF+-A=1+-HLHFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ESALE LPN Y
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total

B ROEE  EARH  AtRE  SNERE  REBRN  FERER ait
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FiEn TiEn TiEn FiEn TiEn TiEn FiEn TiEn

Balance at 1 January 2017 R-B-tE-B-B2&8 6942 1063155 168434 517504 (10,644) 1785827 54451 3,585,667
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year B3yt - - - - - 346,144 43,370 389,514
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) Hp2EbE/ (F8)
Exchange differences arising on translation of BERINBLANBRREEL

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EREE - - - - 72,357 - 6,382 78,739

Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of an P LAER AR 2 —£HE 2
investment accounted for using the equity method £ 2 T4/ (BE)
- exchange differences arising on translation of ~ ~HBEFIHBELAFBRRELE

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries JERES - - - - 56,207 - - 56,207
- change in values of available-for-sale -MRHESREE BEEY

financial assets - - - (2,028) - - - (2,028)
- remeasurement of post-employment benefit -ENHERBRENRE

obligations - - - 23) - - - 23)

Release of reserve upon dilution of interestinan A& A2
investment accounted for using the equity method ~ —BREEHEERREL 2 s
~ exchange differences arising on translation of ~ ~EAEEINHB AR KR

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EEZERER - - - - 315 - - 315
Change in values of available-for-sale financial assets [ ESREE 2 EREH - - - 61,635 - - - 61,635
Release of reserves upon disposal of subsidiaries i EMBAAREL 2 e - - - - (1,699) - - (1,699)
Release of reserves upon deregistration of WA -BHEARRL 2 HEE

a subsidiary - - - - 4,782 - - 4,782
Total comprehensive income 2EYRAE - - - 59,584 122,398 346,144 49,752 577,878
Balance at 31 December 2017 R-B-tE+t-A=t+-Az&H 6,942 1,063,153 168,434 577,088 111,754 2,131,971 104,203 4,163,545

The notes on pages 83 to 187 are an integral part of these  H83ZE187H ZMiFtire MKk 2 P aio -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
OB R (4)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
HE_ZT—X"FT-A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALAEE AL
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total

Bx o ROEE  BRES  EHRE  NERE  RERA  FoREs ait
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK§000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ThIL Tk T ThI TR T ThI Tk

Balance at 1 January 2016 RIB-RE-A-R2&H 6,942 1,003,153 168,434 493,501 74,935 1,501,863 29,116 3,337,944
Comprehensive income EEYE
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - 283,964 28,692 312,656
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hp2EbE/ (F8)
Exchange differences arising on translation of BEBNHBLAAMBRRELL

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - - (44,563) - (3,357) (47,920)
Share of other comprehensive loss of an investment  FEAS A& E A2 — 2% E 2

accounted for using the equity method At 2EER

~ exchange differences arising on translation o ~EEENNBARHHHRESE

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries JERER - - - - (41,132) - - (41,132)

Release of reserve upon dilution of interestinan ~ bUEZEAEZ
investment accounted for using the equity method ~ — B EEHEFEEL 2 RE
- exchange differences arising on translation of ~ —EESNIBAAH BHE

the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries EECERER - - - - 116 - - 116
Change in values of available-for-sale financial assets FJ 4t & & FEE 2 B - - - 22,755 - - - 2,755
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2@k (BB) - - - 22,755 (85579) 283964 25,335 246,475

Share of other reserves of an investment accounted ~ FE{5 VR A R 2 —BH A
for using the equity method ZEMGEE - - - 1,248 - - - 1,248

Balance at 31 December 2016 RIB-RETZAST-BZES 692 1063,153 168434 517,504 (10,644) 1,785,827 54451 3,585,667

The notes on pages 83 to 187 are an integral part of these — $83E1878 2t i MR 2 Ko Es -
consolidated financial statements.
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O BlemaR

For the year ended

31 December

BE+T-A=1+T—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF A
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt EE THERT FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBCHRERE
Cash (used in)/generated from operations ~ 4£% (FTA) /FT3H & 30(a) (116,323) 917,763
Overseas income tax paid BXHEINTE R (37,124) (8,932)
Net cash (used in)/generated from e (A
operating activities PSR € R (153,447) 908,831
Cash flows from investing activities REFBHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE %)% « B /E & & (429,067) (170,950)
Purchase of intangible assets BEETLEE (214 -
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BE REE
plant and equipment PSR 30(b) 312 454
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HEWBRREED
subsidiaries RERAFEE 33 98,668 -
Purchase of an available-for-sale BE—BAHEE
financial asset SREE - (82,518)
Purchase of a financial asset at fair value & —HIZ QA FET A
through profit or loss BREZeRMEE - (78,000)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, W g —RERE AR
net cash paid SFEAIR - (1,975)
Dividend income from KE—MEBE AR
an associated company =N ON 20 29,120 21,840
Interest received B U F B 27,807 19,704
Net cash used in investing activities B EEMAR S F5 (273,374) (291,445)
Cash flows from financing activities METHRESRE
Proceeds from bank borrowing RITIE PSR 9,258 -
Interest paid for bank borrowing EAERITERAE 9) -
Decrease in short-term bank deposits EHEIR TR OB A 3,559 3,879
Net cash generated from BETHMEHESFR
financing activities 12,808 3,879
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HRERRLEEYZ
equivalents CRD) /g mFEE (414,013) 621,265
Cash and cash equivalents at FORENRCFED
beginning of the year 2,804,978 2,292,287
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and RekReEEY2
cash equivalents FEH Uz (FE) 150,517 (108,574)
Cash and cash equivalents at FRAGRACEED
end of the year 2,541,482 2,804,978
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: RERRSEEW oM
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 24 2,541,482 2,726,733
Cash and cash equivalents included in FADERFHELHEZ
disposal group classified as HEARNNEREE R
held-for-sale ReZEEY = 78,245
2,541,482 2,804,978

The notes on pages 83 to 187 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), are principally engaged
in the provision of payment processing solutions, provision
of financial solutions, sales of electronic power meters and
solutions, sales of information security chips and solutions and
provision of platform operation solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for the available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, which are
measured at fair values.

f o B 5 e o I

—RER

=R (FE)ARAR ([RAF]) REME
RAE(FEAAEE]) TERERENRZS
BRIFFRT R REEBEBRT R  HEER
BERMPRLR HEERRETH MR
ERRETEEERAT R

ARRA—HREFEETMK I ZBRAT
H it S s b it A Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

RRRNBRMERZAAR AR LT

BB AR WEFAMBHRRATET (T
BT REMZS-

EXRETBERBE

REU ERAMTERREFRA 2 T B ST BERH
SIEAT - R B BRI ZEBRRERZAA
FEERKRA-

2.1 RBEE
RRARZIFEMBREIRIBFBEAZE
B HRE R (BB BRELEL]) R
EBNENED (F622 B)MFEE - L F4RE
WIS HRETIZE LA EFERE MR AT
Eff2 7 JHEESHEEREATETA
Bz BB ERIN-



84

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B B 5 e o i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 WEBEE (F)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The following amendments to standards have
been adopted by the Group for the first time for
the financial year beginning on or after 1 January
2017:

e Recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealised losses — Amendments to HKAS 12

e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2014 -
2016 cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 12, and

e Disclosure initiative — Amendments to HKAS
7.

The adoption of these amendments did not have
material impact on the financial statements for the
current year. The amendments to HKAS 7 require
disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities (Note 30(c)).
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHBEHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 RBEE (/B)
211 BETBRER B FLE (&)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet b) MR ZFFTELRRE
adopted

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 January 2017
and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these
is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification,
measurement and derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities, introduces new
rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment
model for financial assets.

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and
liabilities and is expecting the following impact
from the adoption of the new standard on 1
January 2018:

e equity instruments currently classified as
available-for-sale (“AFS”) for which a fair
value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) election is available and hence
there will be no change to the accounting for
these assets, and

e equity investments currently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") which
will continue to be measured on the same
basis under HKFRS 9.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the
new guidance to affect the classification and
measurement of these financial assets. However,
gains or losses realised on the sale of financial
assets at FVOCI will no longer be transferred
to profit or loss on sale, but instead reclassified
below the line from the FVOCI reserve to retained
earnings.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 RBEE (/8)
211 BETEER B FEEE ()

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet b) WMAREM T EB RBRE

86

adopted (Continued)
HKFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’ (Continued)

There will be no impact on the Group's
accounting for financial liabilities, as the new
requirements only affect the accounting for
financial liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss and the Group does not
have any such liabilities. The derecognition rules
have been transferred from HKAS 39 ‘Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and
have not been changed.

The new impairment model requires the
recognition of impairment provisions based on
expected credit losses (“ECL”) rather than only
incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets classified at
amortised cost, debt instruments measured at
FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers’, lease receivables,
loan commitments and certain financial guarantee
contracts. Based on the assessments undertaken
to date, the Group expects it may result in earlier
recognition of credit losses.

The new standard also introduces expanded
disclosure requirements and changes in
presentation. These are expected to change the
nature and extent of the Group's disclosures about
its financial instruments particularly in the year of
the adoption of the new standard.

This new standard must be applied for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January
2018. The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the
practical expedients permitted under the standard.
Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHBEHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 MBEE(F)
211 BEFEERFEZE (FF)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet (b)

WARRMZHATENRZE

adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from contracts with
customers’

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) has issued a new
standard for the recognition of revenue. This will
replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers
construction contracts and the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that
revenue is recognised when control of a good or
service transfers to a customer.

The standard permits either a full retrospective
or a modified retrospective approach for the
adoption.

Management is currently assessing the effects
of applying the new standards on the Group's
consolidated financial statements and has
identified the application of HKFRS 15 may result
in the identification of separate performance
obligations which could affect the timing of
the recognition of revenue generated from the
provision of services.

More detailed assessment will be carried out by
the Group to estimate the impact of the new rules
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

This new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2018.
The Group intends to adopt the standard using
the modified retrospective approach which means
that the cumulative impact of the adoption will
be recognised in retained earnings as of 1 January
2018 and that comparatives will not be restated.

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will
result in almost all leases being recognised on
the balance sheet, as the distinction between
operating and finance leases is removed. Under
the new standard, an asset (the right to use the
leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly
change.

The standard will affect primarily the accounting
for the Group’s operating leases. As at the
reporting date, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$76,083,000.

The Group has not yet assessed the adjustments,
if any, are necessary for example because of the
change in the definition of the lease term and
the different treatment of variable lease payments
and of extension and termination options. It is
therefore not yet possible to estimate the amount
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities that will
have to be recognised on adoption of the new
standard and how this may affect the Group’s
profit or loss and classification of cash flows going
forward.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHBEHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 MBEE(F)
211 BEFEERFEZE (FF)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(Continued)
(b) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)

HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’ (Continued)

This new standard is mandatory for financial
years commencing on or after 1 January 2019.
At this stage, the Group does not intend to adopt
the standard before its effective date. The Group
intends to apply the simplified transition approach
and will not restate comparative amounts for the
year prior to first adoption.

There are no other standards and interpretations
that are not yet effective and that would be
expected to have a material impact on the entity
in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(i) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement income statement, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

(ii)  Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (see (iii)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.

(iff) Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
consolidated income statement, and the Group’s share
of movements in other comprehensive income of the
investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associated companies are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
(iii) Equity accounting (Continued)

(iv)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in consolidated income statement. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associated company, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(iv) Changes in ownership interests (Continued)
If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Business combinations (Continued)
The excess of the

e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in consolidated income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in consolidated
income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the Executive Directors that makes strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated income statement on net basis within
‘administrative expenses’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in consolidated income statement as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets, such as equities
classified as available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEASHBEHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 SNEERE (18)
© AEEETLA

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable
to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in consolidated income statement. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associated companies
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to consolidated income statement.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

5-10%

20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter
18%-33%

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and
equipment

Plant and equipment 10%-33%

Motor vehicles 18%-25%

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term vyields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 5%
Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land

Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
upfront prepayments made for the rights to use the land
for periods varying from 40 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land is expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

2.10 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.11.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patents

and capitalised software development costs and in-
progress technology

Separately acquired brand name, customer list
and contracts, patents and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology are
shown at historical cost. Brand name, customer list,
contracts, patent and capitalised software developemnt
costs and in-progress technology acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair values at
the date of acquisition. They have a finite useful life
and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of them over their
estimated useful lives (1.5-5 years).

Software

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs associated
with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Assets that are subjected to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Disposal group held-for-sale

Disposal group is classified as held-for-sale when its
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable.
The disposal group is stated at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Financial assets
(other than investments in subsidiaries) which are classified
as held-for-sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

2.13 Financial assets and liabilities

2131 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets and liabilities
in the following categories: financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets and other financial
liabilities at amortised cost. The classification depends
on the purpose for which the financial assets and
liabilities were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2131 Classification (Continued)

(@

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current
assets if expected to be settled within 12 months;
otherwise, they are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They
are included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled
more than 12 months after the balance sheet
date. These are classified as non-current assets.
The Group’s loans and receivables comprise
‘trade and bills receivables’, ‘other receivables
and deposits’, ‘amounts due from investments
accounted for using the equity method’,
‘short-term bank deposits’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalents’ in the consolidated balance sheet.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current assets
unless the investment matures or management
intends to dispose of it within 12 months of the
balance sheet date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
2131 Classification (Continued)

(d) Other financial liabilities at amortised cost

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost are
initially measured at fair values and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The Group’s other financial
liabilities at amortised cost comprise ‘trade and
bills payables’, ‘payables for payment processing
solutions business’, ‘other payables and accruals’,
‘amounts due to investments accounted for
using the equity method” and ‘borrowing’ in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2132 Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
carried at fair values through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair values. Loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss” category are presented in the consolidated
income statement within ‘other gains/(losses), net’ in
the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold
or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
income statement as ‘other gains/(losses), net'.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EXASBEHEE (8)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14EEEHMT A

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.

2.15 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each of the balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered an indicator that the assets are impaired.

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(b) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If there is objective evidence of impairment for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that financial asset previously recognised in
consolidated income statement — is removed from
equity and recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment losses on equity instruments that were
recognised in consolidated income statement are not
reversed through consolidated income statement in a
subsequent period.

2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work-in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and related
production overhead (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.17 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

2 BEAETTHERME®)

Q15 ERMEERE (8)

b) DERAIRLEZEE
1hﬁﬁ‘ﬁ%ﬁ%/‘£mﬂ§§ﬁ@2§§
EE HRFER (REEARAEE A
;15@%2%%@%@52 BbEEISTA
Bl %Wﬁ@%ZEHH@EE?@J

;)Béﬁéﬁn B W ERE R A
EE%/L\"
WiFaWaERER 2 e T RRERE

e
TENEB S BRA WasRE D -

2.16152“

BT AR AE R AT #R S EmE P BEE
§|JEE BN LA DN 15 77 7R R TE - Bk am 2
ER M ZRABEE —REERE 2R
FERTEMABEERTRS -#RF
ERAREFBET A EENRERZ

AEHERS

2.17 FE W BR 7k e HL fib FE WL R

FEUERFR T A %%f*i&%ﬂﬂ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁuu‘k
AR M UL P 2 5ROE - fisf FE UK AR
oA U IRTRAT R — S RIA R E (3
EXBERKLBHNzBEEH) Ao
BARBEE B EIFRBEETIHR

FELISZBE R E A e W R IR ¥ 4R A P B HE
w2+ BRI A B RN OR TR SR AN HIRROR
BRETE



=EEHR (RED)ARAQE ZE—LEFFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A o B 25 e o i

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASHBEHE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)
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2.17 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments
are considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.
The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets
is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and
the amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement within ‘administrative expenses’. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against
‘administrative expenses’ in the consolidated income
statement.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flows statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts.

2.19 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.20 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

EERBEBRRASERRERERUGK
82 RAT IR B P A FE MR IR - BNSERE 1R
RN AR IRETTRERE - EBA
ZERHREE - B R ESETTH
BEM ARBERKEIN R GRRBE
WHIREREZ TR - BESBREEZR
EEEZ R EREMERR 2 EFHRRB SR
EREZER BEZREERBEERS
B BRSBTS WaRT [TTREM] A
HER o B R YGIR T A W @By - 3% SRR
YR TR A 1 R P A B - EL 1R W m) R AT 2
SRABDGRSRERT 2 [TTRER] -

Q18R ERESEEY
GABRESREXRTHRS LIRS EEYRETF
EIRE  RITEHFR REDHA A=A
ASATZ G s E il & KR T8
ggo

2.19 [R A&
Lm D S A - BT (D BRI R
BEMZ EERAN RS R A B TS HIE
HBRFIE 2 R o

2.20 FEAY BR AR % EL At FEAY RROR
FEN AR A A BRI BET RAHEREE
72 am SR 1 S 5 2 BAE - I Rz e A
REE—F AN (EEBEFRRANZ
BEERE)  BNFBEEOBEARDAR: B
ADBRIFRBAE-

JEASS PR R R EL A JE AN SROB ) PR A P (BT
B BRENAERNFRIRBEK AT E -

B>



106

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o it

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Borrowings

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated income statement as other income or finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

2.22 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(b) Deferred income tax

(c)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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2.23 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued) 223 BEEF (&)

(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 20% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

(c) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amount for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the
Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of value added
tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after eliminating
sales within the Group. Revenue is recognised when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each of
the Group's activities, as described below:

(a) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the customer has
accepted the products and collectibility of the related
receivables is reasonably assured.

(b) Provision of services
Revenue from fixed-price contracts is recognised
using the stage of completion method, measured by
reference to the agreed milestones of work performed
and is shown after eliminating sales within the Group.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues, costs or extent of progress
toward completion, estimates are revised. These
revisions may result in increases or decreases in
estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by management.

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solution business when services are
rendered which generally coincide when the
underlying transactions of the merchants (customers of
the Group) have been acknowledged by the relevant
banks and financial institutions, by which contractual
right of the Group and the merchants to receive cash
flows from the financial institutions is established and
amount to be received could be reliably estimated.
Revenue from early settlement services is recognised
when the services are rendered, which generally
coincide when the settlement has been completed.
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POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Other income 2.26 EAlt A

(a) Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(b) Lease income — operating lease
Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

2.27 Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.

2.29 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised
as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will
be a success considering its commercial and technological
feasibility, and costs can be measured reliably. Other
development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities exposed it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The Directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.

(@) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HKS,
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars (“US$”). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, JPY and US$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other
than HK$, JPY or RMB, which are the functional
currencies of the major operating companies
within the Group. The Group currently does not
hedge its foreign currency exposure.

As HK$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. The exchange rate of RMB
to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

0]

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2017, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$2,847,000
(2016: HK$1,724,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on

translation of RMB denominated current account
with group companies.

As at 31 December 2017, if JPY had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,888,000
(2016: HK$1,260,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of JPY denominated cash and cash
equivalents.

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2017, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$6,615,000 (2016: HK$6,273,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated

current accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2017, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$213,000 (2016: HK$385,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of US$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents as well as the current
accounts with group companies.

3 BEERRE

A o B 25 e o i

(&)

3.1 MEEBEE (&)

(a) T5/E %

0]

(&
SN R ()

BABTRENEER 2 A7

RZT—+F+-A=+—RH &
ARE S HBIEE, FHE% Hit
FTEZEMEITTE  BIFAMRTR%
SRR T HN4)2,847,00078 7T
(ZZ— X% :1,724,00087T) * &+
BHMHBAAREHELEEE
Bl A RBREAIE X Z5E -

R-ZE—+F+-HA=1+—8B%
BEXETEEFHE1% i
TS 8T8 BIF Rk
BRI, 1B A1491,888,00078 7T
(ZZ—75%F 11,260,000 7T) * £
SRR EBABEEZRERR
CEEYELER Z58-

AAARERENEEE 2R

3

RZZE—tF+=ZA=+—8'&
EILHAREEE FHES % EAh
FTEEBMERTE  BIFARER
Sa RS I, R 496,615,000/ 7T
(ZZ—7X%F 16,273,000/ 7C) * £
BHR S TAHEREE AR
ZHERBREAEN Z5E-

RZE—tF+A=+—0 %&
ETHAREEE, FHE% Hih
FIEEHEETE  BIFERRTE
S F R 1 A0 49213,00078 7T
(ZZ—4F:385000870) T2
MR FIBUETTHEZ RS MRS
LEMARRER AR Z FRIRE
HENZERE



114

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o it

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises mainly
from short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. Other financial assets and financial
liabilities are non-interest-bearing and are
measured at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2017,
interest-bearing short-term bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents had been 100 basis
points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year of the Group
would have been approximately HK$25,574,000
(2016: HK$28,230,000) higher/lower due to
interest income earned on market interest rate.

if interest rates on

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's borrowing
is all issued at fixed rates which expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. Management
considers the fair value exposure of the fixed rate
borrowing is insignificant to the Group. As at 31
December 2016, the Group did not have any
borrowing.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKERER(®)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BERKREE (&)
(b) Credit risk b) 15EEE

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and
deposits, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, short-term bank deposits and
deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables,
other receivables and deposits, amounts due from
investments accounted for using the equity method,
short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

To manage this risk, deposits are mainly placed with
state-owned financial institutions and reputable banks.
The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to reputable and creditworthy customers
with an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual customers
and recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivables.

Management considers the credit risk for amounts
due from investments accounted for using the equity
method to be minimal after considering the financial
condition of the entities. Management has performed
assessment over the recoverability of the balances and
management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these entities.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales of
goods and services to the largest customer accounted
for 6% (2016: 10%) for the total revenue, and top
five customers constituted 15% (2016: 26%) of the
Group's turnover for the year ended 31 December
2017.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liguidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowing. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group maintained cash and bank balances of
HK$2,541,482,000 (2016: HK$2,804,978,000) that
is expected to be readily available and sufficient to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence
management considers that the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's total available
banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$19,192,000 (2016: HK$17,786,000).

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not
significant.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 5 e o i

3
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

B B 5 e A I

M ERER (8)

3.1 BRERRERE (&)
(c) RBELEE (&)

Less than
1 year Total
DPR—F et
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tH+=-A=+—H
Trade and bills payables JET BR A R e R AR 239,199 239,199
Payables for payment processing XN R GEBRRT RE
solutions business 2 B FRIE 292,587 292,587
Other payables and accruals ELAth 7T RIE I JE 5T /1A 819,031 819,031
Amounts due to investments R AR REARZ
accounted for using the K& ZHIA
equity method 57,755 57,755
Borrowing (EEN 9,596 9,596
Total A&t 1,418,168 1,418,168
At 31 December 2016 R-ZFB-R"E+=-A=+—H
Trade and bills payables FERTBR TR S P AR 266,270 266,270
Payables for payment processing XN R GERBHRTTRFEE
solutions business Z P FRR 808,650 808,650
Other payables and accruals E fth fE A FR0A M FEETRIE 590,998 590,998
Amounts due to investments JERTARERIEANBR 2
accounted for using the REZ A
equity method 81,468 81,468
Total A& 1,747,386 1,747,386
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MEEBRER(E
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXmEBER
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to AEEERERZ B RRENEEFEL
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going B ARIRERIRH R A K A E b F 5407
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and BN W REENEBIAREE
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal B
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the REFFSGRBE NGRS  AEE R B
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to R 2B MR @A 817
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new ek b EEEDRAEE -
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. Z'K’ill%ézﬁﬁf R ERERERZE
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital. Ko Zh R IR B FEPERIABERTH -8
Total debt includes borrowing of the Group. Total capital BREREAER BN BERNREGES
is calculated as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated ERERMUR [ A EeEAE
balance sheet plus total debt.
As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio was as follows: R-Z—+F+-A=+—R EXEELL
R
As at
31 December
2017
R-ZB—tF
+=A=+-A8
HK$'000
FET
Borrowing (Note 28) B (HTiE28) 9,596
Total debt BIERTE 9,596
Total equity M AR R 4,163,545
Total capital BB 4,173,141
Gearing ratio BRBELE 0.2%
The Group did not have any borrowing as at 31 December RZZE-—RE+RAR=+—B KA&KH
2016. I AT 5K
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

3.3 Fair value estimation

B B 5 e A I

M ERER (8)

3.3 AEEME

(i) Fair value hierarchy () 2 FlEER

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREABQAFEZEERMAAEA

instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December BB ER AT AEER _T—+F

2017 by level of the inputs to valuation techniques TTA=+T—BERAVEIRZ 2RI

used to measure fair values. Such inputs are B o BRI ABURTE T X P o 48

categorised into three levels within a fair value BARFERBEN 2 =ERR:

hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o MHREEXBBEZEEMSHRE
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (REEHFE) (F—H) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within o BRBEERE—RBEIN EENL
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, BEZAEEERE (BER) M
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that % (BUREERE) MAER (F=
is, derived from prices) (level 2). ) e

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o WIFRIBFIBRMGHIEMEE 2
on observable market data (that is, unobservable BEFABzHAER (AIAATE
inputs) (level 3). RZBANER) (B=4) -

The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREJFEERRN _Z—+F1T_H

were measured at fair values at 31 December 2017. =T —HAVEAECEE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& EZ® B=H mct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FTHET FET
Assets 8E
Available-for-sale At EEREE
financial assets
- Unlisted equity security ~ —3F LR AE %5 - - 15,536 15,536
— Unlisted investment fund ~—3JF EMIREES - - 162,849 162,849
Financial assets at fair value RN FEFTABZEZ
through profit or loss TRMEE
— Unlisted convertible —JE EmAlAR
preference shares BER - - 93,485 93,485
— Listed trading securities —tmR5ES 2,702 - - 2,702
Total =H 2,702 - 271,870 274,572
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the Group's assets that
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2016.

Assets BE
Available-for-sale
financial assets

AHHESREE

M ERER (8)

3.3 AFEMEE (B)
() RFEERE)
TRV ARE@MEN TR FE+_A
=t+—BAVEFEZEE-

Level 2 Level 3 Total
B F=H; MR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAET TAT FTAT

- Unlisted equity security ~ —3F EHIRAE 5 - 14,664 14,664
— Unlisted investment fund ~—JELMREES - 91,449 91,449
Financial asset at fair value &A1&
through profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted convertible —JE ET AR
preference shares B - 76,880 76,880
Total A&t - 182,993 182,993

There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during

the year (2016: same).

(@) Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and trading and available-for-sale securities) is
based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current
bid price. These instruments are included in level

1.

FR ATESEHERL RS BEE
EAME (—F—~F AR -

@ F—HRzemIA
mEEMZEE eI A (fin
NHEENMETAREE KA
EFEH)2ATE BELEEAZ
MEMETE - AEETFEHE
ELTnREREREANE -FH
TEREERE—FHE-
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

(b) Financial instruments in level 2
The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

(c) Financial instruments in level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity security, unlisted investment fund and
unlisted convertible preference shares.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair values
The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

A o B 25 e o i
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBEEE
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME (&)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant (iii) EHEAX T A B A IR Z 22 F
unobservable inputs (level 3) EitE (F=R)
Specific valuation techniques used to value level AU E = er T AGEZFERE
3 financial instruments include techniques such as R BEBERRECREDT REEF
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value BRI - F AR ERI I 2
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques (ZZ—RF 48R -
during the year (2016: same).
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRENBE-E—FTA=1+—
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December HIEFEFE=femIAZZS):
2017:
Financial
asset at
fair value
through Available-for-sale
profit or loss financial asset
- unlisted
convertible - unlisted - unlisted
preference equity investment
shares security fund Total
BOTE
HABHY e
sRYE TREE
—kLmTHh —¥ET -kEH
BRE LR e REES Ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FER TR TR TR
As at 1 January 2017 R-E-tF—-A-H 76,880 14,664 91,449 182,993
Fair value (losses)/gains on REMEE (BB)/
revaluation recognised WaEHRZERRT
in other comprehensive ER s
income - (278) 61,913 61,635
Fair value gains on revaluation ~ REREWRKER 2
recognised in consolidated B R TERS
income statement 16,605 - - 16,605
Exchange realignment R - 1,150 9,487 10,637
As at 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF
+=ZB=+-H 93,485 15,536 162,849 271,870
Unrealised gains recognised W& B A# A &k
in consolidated income Elhzza
statement attributable to WKz B R
balances held at the end of AR
the reporting period 16,605 - - 16,605
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBEEE
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREME (&)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant (iii) EHEAXT A BRI A IR Z 2 F
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) B8 (F=/) (&)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRENBE-ZT—RFT-_A=1—
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December HIEFESE=femITAZEE:
2016:
Financial
asset at
fair value
through Available-for-sale
profit or loss financial asset
- unlisted
convertible - unlisted - unlisted
preference equity investment
shares security fund Total
BAYE
AARHEZ A E
TREE TREE
— LAk kLt kLt
=T RAES RERED At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
As at 1 January 2016 RZE-R"E—-A—H - 6,982 - 6,982
Additions = 78,000 - 82,518 160,518
Fair value gains on revaluation A E %2 E Iz #R
recognised in other B AT ERS
comprehensive income - 8,471 14,284 22,755

Fair value losses on revaluation F4R4 W RERZ
recognised in consolidated EHATEER

income statement (1,120 - - (1,120)
Exchange realignment B 5% 0% - (789) (5,353) (6,142)
As at 31 December 2016 RIE-XRF

+ZA=+-H 76,880 14,664 91,449 182,993
Unrealised losses recognised RS HRE AT A48

in consolidated income Bl zANaR L

statement attributable to ERAKREREAE

balances held at the end of

the reporting period (1,120 - - (1,120)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(iii) Fair value measurements using 5ignificant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

Quantitative information about fair value

measurements using significant unobservable inputs
(Level 3):

(i)

(ii)

Available-for-sale financial asset — unlisted equity
security

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted equity securities as at 31
December 2016 and 2017 are:

Asat Asat

Valuation 31 December 31 December
techniques Unobservable inputs 2017 2016
Discounted cash ~ Pre-tax discount rate 20.9% 21.2%
flow analysis Terminal growth rate 3.0% 3.0%
Compound annual 12.7% 22.0%

growth rate

As at 31 December 2017, the pre-tax discount
rate used to compute the fair value is 20.9%
(2016: 21.2%). If the discount rate shifted upward
by 1%, the impact on other comprehensive
income would be HK$907,000 (2016:
HK$901,000) lower. The higher the pre-tax
discount rate, the lower the fair value.

Available-for-sale financial asset — unlisted
investment fund

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted investment fund as at 31
December 2016 and 2017 are:

As at As at
Valuation 31 December 31 December
techniques Unohservable inputs 2017 2016
Net asset value NA N/A N/A
(Note 1)
Note:

(i)  The Group has determined that the audited net
asset value approximates fair value of the unlisted
investment fund after applying a portfolio discount
10% (2016: 10%).

3
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(iii) (EHEX T BRI A B15.2 1N F
EitE (F=4R) (#&)
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ZELER (B=4)

(ii)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

(iii) Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted convertible preference shares
The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted convertible preference
shares as at 31 December 2016 and 2017 are:

As at Asat

Valuation 31 December 31 December
techniques Unobservable inputs 2017 2016
Discounted cash Pre-tax discount rate 31.5% 322%
flow analysis Terminal growth rate 3.0% 3.0%
Compound annual 44.8% 44.4%

growth rate

As at 31 December 2017, the pre-tax discount
rate used to compute the fair value is 31.5%
(2016: 32.2%). If the discount rate shifted upward
by 1%, the impact on profit or loss would be
HK$2,717,000 (2016: HK$1,791,000) lower. The
higher the pre-tax discount rate, the lower the fair
value.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant effect on the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on an assessment of the recoverability of the
receivables. Provisions are applied to the receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
the receivables and provision for impaired receivables in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.

A o B 25 e o i

3 BKERER(®)

3.3 AFEMEE (B)
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(iii) HAFEFABEZZEME
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T~
ZE-tE ZEF
FUBE = TR
EERE  BAEE =t-B Zt-B
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(o)

(d)

Impairment of inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of inventories is written down to
net realisable value when there is an objective evidence
that the cost of inventories may not be recoverable.
The cost of inventories may not be recoverable if those
inventories are aged and damaged, if they have become
wholly or partially obsolete, or if their selling prices
have declined. The cost of inventories may also not be
recoverable if the estimated costs to be incurred to make
the sales have increased.

The amount written off to the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying value
and net realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable, significant
judgement is required. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration
and extent by all means to which the amount will be
recovered.

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments

The fair values of the unlisted financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market, including available-
for-sale financial assets and a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss, is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses its judgement to select a
variety of methods and make assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at each of the balance
sheet date. The Group has used discounted cash flow
analysis and net asset value model for the unlisted financial
instruments that are not traded in active market.

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

4 BAETHATTRFIE (8

(b)

(9]

(d)

FERE

17 & THIRpK A B ] B3R 5E 2 BURE DR
e EBEER TN FERA D - A
17 B R A MOR = R B3R )3E - T R E
KIBE 2R B EE T AR
BEETREREIFERA - HETTIHER TESE
ZABRTRCAIE N - JRAT BEE BT e M &
AR o

REREWERR M 2 R RFEREEREA
FHRFELMZER - RETAIRRZFE
B R VE R HH - VB B B AT B - K
SEEGE (KPR REATRKE S
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FLETEMIAQAFE
WIHEERTSRZ 2 LTERTA (R
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5 WA -HhARHEMUWE (&)

GAINS/(LOSSES), NET R
Revenue, other income and other gains/(losses), net recognised RERERZ WA~ A R E bz, (&5
during the year are as follows: 1B)FEMT -
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=t+—HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
(restated)
(&%)
(Note 6)
(Kiite)
Turnover EER
Provision of payment processing solutions REINRHERIBFIRTT 1,979,939 1,050,313
Provision of financial solutions IS AR AT 2R 295,328 348,079
Sales of electronic power meters and HEBRIBERMBRAR
solutions 250,960 258,239
Sales of information security chips and HEBELREUR RBRFR
solutions 177,224 56,539
Provision of platform operation solutions T R EEHATN R 206,527 208,067
2,909,978 1,921,237
Other income HAb YA
Interest income B A 27,807 19,704
Subsidy income AL A 12,513 10,967
Rental income WA 2,210 3,584
Others Hit 4,191 11,950
46,721 46,205
Other gains/(losses), net HEezs, (B8 ) FHE
Fair values gains/(losses) on financial assets AT EFFABRZ SREE
at fair value through profit or loss Z NP EWE (EE)
— Unlisted convertible preference shares —FE LT ATIRARE L IR 16,605 (1,120)
— Listed trading securities —tHRSESF (248) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary BUH M —FE 8 2 7 e 4,782 -

21,139 (1,120)
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group
from a product perspective.

Due to continual development of the Group, management
has changed its internal organisational structure to align
more closely with the Group's strategic decision and market
dynamics to better serve customers. In particular, separate
business units has been set up for its electronic power
meters and solutions business and information security chips
and solutions business. The Group has adopted the new
organisational structure as the reporting format effective
for the year ended 31 December 2017. The comparative
segment information has been restated to reflect the current
organisational structure.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports:

(@) Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services, merchants
recruiting and related products and solutions;

(b) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks;

(c) Electronic power meters and solutions — principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters, data collection terminals and related
products and solutions;

(d) Information security chips and solutions — principally
engaged in the provision of information system
consultancy services, the sales of mag-strip card security
decoder chips and related products and solutions; and

(e) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication and mobile payment
platform operation services and operation value-added
services.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings/
(losses) before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6 DEERHE

REENFRREB DB Z WA REE DT

operating segment is as follows: SE
Information
Payment Electronic security Platform
processing  Financial power meters  chipsand  operation Total
solutions  solutions and solutions  solutions  solutions Others Group
X Bt E =)
RGRE k) EmRk Z2THR FREE
BRER BMRER BRFR BRFR BRAIR Ht &£@EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET Tz TR TET TR TR TER
Year ended 31 December 2017  BZE-T—t&
tTZA=t+—HLEE
Segment turnover R i=ES 1,979,939 295,328 250,960 177,224 209,683 - 2,913,134
Inter-segment turnover DPRLESE - - - - (3,156) - (3,156)
Turnover from external customers  RENIEPZEEE 1,979,939 295328 250960 177,224 206,527 - 2,909,978
Segmental EBITDA S IBEBITDA 432,375 23,942 1,692 26,867 7,259 (948) 491,187
Depreciation & (171,718) (525) (3,126) @77) (3,075) (119)  (179,040)
Amortisation B - (8,555) (254) - (141) - (8,950)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) A iR EEF] /(i) 260,657 14,862 (1,688) 26,390 4,043 (1,067) 303,197
Unallocated other income AOEEBEA 5,161
Unallocated corporate expenses AP B EFH % (71,443)
Finance costs BERA 9
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i & [ B 2 B4tz 63,262
Share of result of an investment &G AR EARZ
accounted for using the equity —EREVER
method 134,531
Gain on dilution of interestinan ~ PAEZEARR 2 —18
investment accounted for using R EEEEEE
the equity method 113
Profit before income tax BREETADR A 434,812
Income tax expense TR % (45,298)
Profit for the year FREHM 389,514
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

6 DEERHE

Information
Payment Electronic security Platform
processing  Financial power meters  chipsand  operation Total
solutions  solutions and solutions ~ solutions ~ solutions Others Group
525 ERLiE 58
RHRE Ead Emk m2bRRk TREE
BRAIR BRI BARE  BRIR  BRIE At SEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FEL FEL FET FERT TEL FET
(restated) (restated)
(Z7) (&31)
Year ended 31 December 2016 ~ BZ-F—X<F
+ZA=t+-BLEE
Segment turnover NEEER 1,050,313 351,407 258,239 56,539 210,766 - 1,927,264
Inter-segment turnover NEREEE - (3,328) - - (2,699) - (6,027)
Turnover from external customers  RESNIEF ZEKE  1,050313 348,079 258,239 56,539 208,067 - 1,921,237
Segmental EBITDA 7 JBEBITDA 253,239 26,473 16,374 6,370 8,055 (13,438) 297,073
Depreciation e (83,587) (1,449) (3,449) (499) (3,323) (282)  (92,589)
Amortisation By - (10,267) (237) - - - (10,504)
Segmental operating profit/loss) AR EREF,/ (FE) 169,652 14,757 12,688 5,871 4,732 (13,7200 193,980
Unallocated other income AOEEBRA 4,900
Unallocated corporate expenses  RA BB ER (66,557)
Share of result of an investment  JE{5 AR EABR 2
accounted for using the —EREVEE
equity method 198,992
Gain on dilution of interestinan Az EARRZ —18
investment accounted for using A EREENS
the equity method 826
Profit before income tax BREERALE R 332,141
Income tax expense FrskiEY (19,485)
Profit for the year FERET] 312,656

Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used
for all segments, including depreciation of property, plant
and equipment of HK$1,640,000 (2016: HK$1,542,000),
depreciation of investment properties of HK$212,000
(2016: HK$206,000) and amortisation of leasehold land of

HK$760,000 (2016: HK$760,000), respectively.

RAOBECERAZIERARABIEZRA 55l
BIEYE BB LB FEITE640,0008 T (=%
— 784 11,542,000 7T) ~ " E M EITE212,000
B IT (ZZ— 7545 1 206,000 70 ) MM & £ b #
$4760,000/8 7T, ( ZZF —734F : 760,000/8 7T
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2017 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

2017 are as follows:

B B 5 e A I

7 EEFR (50

RIZB—tF+-_A=+—RZOREEHREE
EEE_Z—+F+_A=1+—HILFEIFRH
BEZINEWT:

Information
Payment Electronic security Platform
processing Financial power meters  chipsand  operation Total
solutions solutions and solutions solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
xft SRR =
RERE  SRER ERR ZR2LAR TAREE
BARAER R BRRE  BRFE  BRGE Hit ROE E#  KEAET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAL TR TR TAL TR TR TAL
As at 31 December 2017 RZB-tF
t=A=t-8
Segment assets DEBE 1808946 346121 362,179 146695 772,790 72,020 3154717 (1,086,017) 5,657,451
Segment liabilities DEERE (1263715) (315595  (261,928)  (110,624)  (380,191)  (170,130)  (77,740) 1,086,017  (1,493,906)
Year ended 31 December 2017 ~ BE=ZF—t%
TZA=t-HLEFE
Additions to non-current assets  FERBVAE IRE (TR
(excluding long-term deposits, ~— RHEE NEREAE
investments accounted for using 2R It HESEBE
the equity method, available-for-  Z RIEATFE ABHZ
sale financial assets and financial  £BEE)
assets at fair value through
profit or loss) 388,523 1,341 464 287 2,099 4 - - 392,718
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2016 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December
2016 are as follows:

Payment Electronic
processing Financial power meters
solutions  solutions and solutions
S Biate
XHRE  SREBR Emk

Y VIES hE OBRANR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiER TEL TEL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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DEESR ()

RIZB—RE+-_A=+—B2ZOREEHREE
&%é B RFTZA=+—HILFEFRY
BEZRNEWT:

Information

security Platform

chipsand ~ operation Total

solutions solutions Others  Unallocated  Elimination Group
(=)

ZRRA R LREE
BRAE  BAAR Hity AR B REAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL FHL TAL FAL FHL

(restated) (restated) (restated)
(E51) (&31) (Z31)
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-RE
+=A=+-H
Segment assets PBEE 2,004,105 333,645 398,761 36,033 904,958 81,248 2,945,638  (1,207,347) 5,499,041
Segment labiliies SRAE 1,634724)  (03450)  (297378)  (7597) (601,608  (182,146)  (73818) 1207347  (1913374)
Year ended 31 December 2016 ~ HE-F— A&
+ZA=1+-RBLEE
Additions to non-current assets  JEREIAEZAE (T8
(excluding long-term deposits, ~ REZE  DIEREAKR
investments accounted for using 2 & AIHHESHE
the equity method, available-for-  EREAFE ABHEZ
sale financial assets and financial ~ £BEE)
assets at fair value through
profit or loss) 167,628 142 743 480 4171 166 82 - 173,412

Unallocated assets mainly include an investment accounted
for using the equity method of HK$1,823,245,000 (2016:
HK$1,663,250,000) and cash and cash equivalents of
HK$527,339,000 (2016: HK$747,471,000).

During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly
comprise additions to property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets (2016: same).

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

ROBEEETEZBRENEREARZ —ERE
1,823,245,0007% 7T ( =F — 75 1 1,663,250,000
BIT) A R 3R& R € F EY527,339,000% 7T
(ZZ— N5 :747,471,000/87T) °

FAERBEEIAETIEBIRENE - BEK
REARBIVEEZRE (ZF—R"F HR) °

AEFSRHZ ERRARGREMBHRER -2
A B RFEERABRIBIER IR

SR e R R IERET MEERIE
FEIMIES 2 WARRARGA YR B2
i B
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China, Hong
Kong and Macau (2016: Mainland China, Hong Kong, Japan
and Macau). The Group’s turnover by geographical locations,
which is determined by the locations in which the turnover are
generated from, is as follows:

DHEES (8

FEBEXERENPBEARE FERRM (=2
—REF RBEARE -FE - ARKRM) cAEE
BEE N L ERE (RZEERELZHEE

E)EIIIT

For the year ended

31 December

BE+T-A=1+T—-HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FET

Mainland China ey N 2,844,322 1,863,410
Hong Kong B 55,651 31,506
Japan SN 10,005 19,110
Macau B P - 7,211
2,909,978 1,921,237

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding long-term deposits,
investments accounted for using the equity method, available-
for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss) and current assets by geographical locations,
which is determined by the geographical locations in which the
asset is located, is as follows:

AEBRMEE D 2 IFRBEE (TRERPEZ
T MRBREARZRE AIHEESREER
BATEFABGEZEREE) MRBEE (1
HEAEEMEBETE) ST T

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —F—RK
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Mainland China AR K B 542,071 302,173
Hong Kong B 818 9,676
542,889 311,849
Current assets REBEE
Mainland China R K B 2,293,956 2,386,544
Hong Kong BB 719,766 720,741
Japan SN - 222,590
Macau S P 2,697 7,640
3,016,419 3,337,515
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7 EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 UMEED Z2HX

RIERA  SHERX MITRERG A 2R

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses and

administrative expenses are analysed as follows: s
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Auditor’s remuneration ZEA 2

— audit services — 1 Z SR TS 2,950 2,700

— non-audit services — IR BURTS 800 800
Depreciation of property, ME BERZEHTE

plant and equipment (Note 14) (Bfat14) 180,680 94,131
Depreciation of investment properties REWMEINE (B:713)

(Note 13) 212 206
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 15) HE T #EE (Hat15) 981 983
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) B EERY (Witie) 8,729 10,281
Employee benefit expense (including EERANXH (BEEEME)

directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (H1:£9) 513,482 443,743
Costs of inventories sold EHEFERA

(including write-back of provision/ (RIEBOEE FERE)

provision for inventories) (Note 21) (Hiat21) 315,022 234,825
Operating lease rentals in respect of THRBFZEEHOES

land and buildings 31,980 27,902
Operating lease rentals in respect of Rz EHOES

equipment - 17
Research and development costs 7T M R

(including staff cost) (BIEBITAA) 185,609 154,210
Loss on disposals of property, HEME BEKR

plant and equipment (Note 30(b)) R i 2 BB (HEE300b)) 302 754
Provision/(write-back of provision) FEEE, (BEHED)

for inventories (Note 21) (H1at21) 783 (1,385)
Write-back of provision for impairment of JE LT B R (B 7 5 B B 3 5

trade receivables, net (Note 22) (Hit22) - (3,507)

8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAIN/(LOSS) 8 SNEWE  (BIR)FHE

HE_T—tHF+-A=1+—"BLEE WTR
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to B A HERR 2 SME W &5 E 421,626,000/ 7T ( —
HK$21,626,000 (2016: loss of HK$5,371,000). T\ B5185,371,00087T) °

The net foreign exchange gain recognised in administrative

134
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9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

f B 5 A PR
9 ERENNX (BEEEHS)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+T—-HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Wages and salaries TERH 442,760 385,066
Pension costs and social security costs BRIKE KA R S RER A 70,722 58,677
513,482 443,743

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 included four
(2016: four) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 37. The emoluments payable to the
remaining one (2016: one) individual during the year are as
follows:

TEEEFAL
rEEHE-_Z—+FT_A=T—HLFE
FERRFATEENE (ZZ—RF :0E)E
- REZMNEEEMEI7HITH R - RNFE
JEREAT —& (ZZE—RF: —%) AL zH&
T

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+—BLEE

2017 2016

—EB—tF ZT—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e RMNEYAN TS 2,612 2,557
Pension cost — defined contribution plan RIRE BN — TE # KRG 2 61 43
2,673 2,600

The emoluments fall within the following band:

&N T TR

Number of individuals
AE
For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—FT—tF TR
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T 1 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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10 FRIEHRY

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+—BLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET

Current tax WS IE
— Hong Kong profits tax —BEMEH - -
— Overseas taxation —BHNIR 45,344 20,017
Deferred tax EIER IR (46) (13)
Adjustments in respect or prior years BEFERE - (519)
Income tax expense FriS i 45,298 19,485

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Effective from 1 January 2008, subsidiaries in the PRC are
subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) in accordance with
the new PRC CIT Law as approved by the National People’s
Congress on 16 March 2007. According to the new PRC
CIT Law and the relevant regulations, the new CIT tax rate
applicable is 25% unless preferential rates are applicable in the
cities where the subsidiaries are located.

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is
15%. If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as Software
and Integrated Circuit Enterprise (“SICE”), the applicable CIT tax
rate is 0% for the first two years of being qualified and 12.5%
for the next three years.

BTG T A AF NS5 R BE R B R
16.5% ( ZZ—75F 1 16.5% ) 518 o BINGFIFIE
BILASF AT ERRBUR F) - R AN B & B B
RERZMETE -

BEEHARKEREN _BTLF=A+"H
BB BECEMSHE ([REMEHR]) R
HEER HTPECEMSHEE —TTN\F—
A—REER RIFEERETEARKB AR
TR - 75 B B B R IR AT B AT S AR
AT E25%2 #5E °

H—FEMNBARREREEMERZIRERE
B REIEMRE ([SHEMmez]) - RiE
R EPTSH R R15% © W —EIE A REE
RIEMBHRZBERABEBR AR RERK
EROE ([REREKREBREE])  AIREEM
FHALEMERHEERR0% BR=ZFHER
12.5% °
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal
subsidiaries

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business Solutions Information
Technology Limited (“ABS”) was renewed as HNTE in 2015
under the new PRC CIT Law. Hangzhou PAX Electronic
Technology Limited (“Hangzhou Electronic Technology”) was
renewed as HNTE in 2014 under the new PRC CIT Law and re-
submitted HNTE application in 2017 under the new PRC CIT
Law. BETTI 2 BBRA A (“VBIill”) was renewed as HNTE in
2017 under the new PRC CIT Law. Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT
Limited (“HN Mobile Pay”) was re-qualified as HNTE in 2017
under the new PRC CIT Law. As such, the applicable corporate
income tax rate for ABS, Hangzhou Electronic Technology,
VBill and HN Mobile Pay was 15% for the year ended 31
December 2017. The applicable corporate income tax rate for
ABS, Hangzhou Electronic Technology and VBill was 15% and
for HN Mobile Pay was 25% for the year ended 31 December
2016.

Megahunt Microelectronic Technology (Beijing) Company
Limited (“Megahunt Microelectronic Technology”) was
qualified as SICE in 2015 under the new PRC CIT Law. As
such, the applicable corporate income tax rate for Megahunt
Microelectronic Technology was 12.5% (2016: 0%) for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

A o B 25 e o i

10 FREHRY (4)

TEWEADZBALEREHE

trmEeEEeRMEaRAT (EEeERE
BIRZZE—AERETPEFTCEAMERAE
ATt E - MMNEEETRITER AR
(TN FRAMT ) R =B — RS B2
IS8 EN AR BN E UERRZE—+
FRBEPAINDEMESBEBNRB AT
T2 BT N AR AR (BT )R
—tFIRBEPEIEMESHAET B il
¥ HEmiEEEE SR aRAE (DHER
fmE )R T —t FIRBEF B EAEH
FERAERBEMEMEE B 822
—tF+-A=t+—HULFE 2B EEE M
M EF 0 BT R m G mE 2 EAhE
B E A% BE—E—X~F+=-A=1+—
HIEFE SEeEEE  TUNE TR &EETT
Nz BERCEMEHERIS% WE =B
BERCEAERER25%

JRENEEME F il () BR AR ([JKEE
EME TR R E—AFRIEREFTEMN
BRUEABBRR BB RERBRDE - Eit -
HE-Z—tHE+-_A=+—HULEE KkAiE
EME TR ZERAMEMSRERI125% (=
T—RF:0%) e
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal

subsidiaries (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average BRARGAE
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the

respective jurisdictions as follows:

10 SRR (&)

TEMBLARZERLEMERE (B)

AR BB PTSTAG A 2 BB E Rl A B IR A

4o A

SR TR EATEER

TR R T

For the year ended

31 December

BE+-A=1+—HBLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax bR FT1S BRI E F 434,812 332,141
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates ERESEBREL RN
applicable to profit in the BREMHERTE ZHIE
respective countries 65,712 52,879
Tax effects of: Mg
Income not subject to taxation //\u%ﬁqﬂl]\ (46,958) (45,360)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes HRBEM S TAUMB X 4,662 4,837
Utilisation of previously unrecognised PRBERERZHIEER
tax losses (718) (12,017)
Tax losses for which no deferred I R E TS B R R
income tax was recognised HIEEE 22,600 19,665
Adjustments in respect of prior years BEFEAEE - (519)
Income tax expense FriSfif 2 45,298 19,485

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: 15.9%). The change
is caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group's

subsidiaries in the respective countries.

BE—T

HAHREH R

—tF+—A=F+—HIFE" JJD%?
HERREA151% (=ZF
RATIAREE 2 B A R EEER 2 Z 55

—NE115.9%) °
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11 DIVIDENDS

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

A o B 25 e o i

1n Ke

BE-F—tF+-A=+—AIER AAF
ERRHHEREARS (ZF—AF ) -

12 BRER

(@ EXK
TR EAR BN THE AN TR ARG
FREBITETBRINETOEGTE -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZERF
Profit attributable to owners of RRRER ARG E T
the Company (HK$’'000) (F#&7T) 346,144 283,964
Weighted average number of ordinary B 217 & @A I #E T
shares in issue (thousands shares) (Fm) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) SRXEAZEF (FR&ET) 0.125 0.102

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
net income and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
three categories (2016: same) of potentially dilutive shares:
share options issued by an associated company — PAX
Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), and share
options and convertible preference shares issued by an
associated company — Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(“Cloopen”).

(b) #§
BRESEERN RERE B EEERn 2

BT BRI N FER TS SRR A
FIBGHE -

HE-_T—tF+-A=+—RALFE &
SEA=R (T —R"F HR) BEa#s
BUE 2 Bt - —FEB & A B — B B IRHEH
BRAR (TBBRR]) T2 BAREN—
822 A] — Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(TCloopen |) 817 2 B & i K2 AT R AR 8 5t
Ao
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

Dilutive effects arise from share options issued by PAX
Global for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
same).

For share options issued by PAX Global, the exercise of
the outstanding share options in PAX Global would have
a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share options in PAX
Global would be dilutive if the net profit attributable to
the owners of the Company will decrease as a result of
the decrease in the Group’s share of profit of associated
company and reduce in gain on dilution of interest in an
associated company. A calculation is done to determine
the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair
value (determined as the average annual fair value of the
associated company’s shares) based on the monetary value
of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share
options of PAX Global. The number of shares calculated
as above is compared with the number of shares that
would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share
options of PAX Global.

For share options and convertible preference shares issued
by Cloopen, as at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of the interest in Cloopen was zero (2016: same). As at
31 December 2017, the Group’s share of loss exceeded
its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, the exercise
of the abovementioned share options and convertible
preference shares would not have any impact on the
diluted earnings per share (2016: same).

12 BREF (&)

(b) #5F(H)

BERBERBE_T—tF+-A=1+—H
I FEBETBRRELREYE (2T X
FHER) °

REERNETZBEENS TEEER
R RTHRBRET A FEERE - K
SE RGBS RRENE D R E AR Z
s ER D IS B R RIS ARG
AR - RITTEE B &R Z B
BT E BERATFERE ZK)
A (LEERRRD 2 FHFEATEE
B IR B BRI ARTTERBBAERM 2
REEEEEESE  EXAFAEZENE
B ERREERRBRERTE 2D %
IR B fELL R

#CloopenE 17 2 fE Bk # J% A #2 iR 18 Fo iR
mE N_F—tF+-_A=+—0'R
CloopenZ mRHERT (ZT—RF 1
A) -RZT—tF+-A=+—8 F&£H
FEh E5 1B B 8 H 7 Cloopeni AR 2 #E % -
BT Lt R s e AT AR B ST IR T &
BRESRMERERTE (ZT—RF:
R -
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 12 EREFR (&)
(b) Diluted (Continued) b)) #F(E)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZT KT
Profit attributable to owners of NN FE DN il
the Company (HK$’000) (F#&7T) 346,144 283,964
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BR—ABERARETLZ
dilutive share options issued by the PR 1 AR AT (50 R A A
associated company (HK$’000) ERBITE (FET)
— Decrease in share of profit of —R—EBERTZ
the associated company FEAE 8 MR A (89) (1,027)
— Reduce in gain on dilution of the —N—EBERRZ
associated company B s R A (2,316) (6,573)
Adjusted profit attributable to owners of  FALAEFE GRESE AT 2
the Company used to determine RNRRFEA ARG ARER)
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) (FA7T) 343,739 276,364
Weighted average number of ordinary & R#E & F| 2 i@k
shares for diluted earnings per share miETFHE (FR)
(thousands shares) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Diluted earnings per share attributable to <A A]# A A 15 &A%
the owners of the Company BEHEN (FRET)
(HK$ per share) 0.124 0.100
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13 REWHE

Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FTHER
At 1 January 2016 R-ZE—XE—HA—H
Cost BN 3,446
Accumulated depreciation R E (1,557)
Net book amount BRMEEE 1,889
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z-AF+ZA=+—BLHFE
Opening net book value FYIREFE 1,889
Transfer from property, BEWE BENRE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (Hfeti14) 371
Depreciation e (206)
Closing net book value FRERmFE 2,054
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-R"E+ZA=+—H
Cost BN 4,125
Accumulated depreciation REE (2,071)
Net book amount BRTEFE 2,054
Fair value (Note) NE (B aE) 11,017
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tS+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book value FHREFE 2,054
Transfer from property, EEWME BB RRE
plant and equipment (Note 14) (Bfat14) 64
Depreciation e (212)
Closing net book value FRIREFE 1,906
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—tH&+=-A=+—H
Cost BN 4,256
Accumulated depreciation R E (2,350)
Net book amount REFE 1,906
Fair value (Note) DEE(HE) 11,989
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13 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note:

Fair value measurements using significant other observable inputs (level 2)

The investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu Building, No. 67
Fu Cheng Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC (1t R T/&E & S iE67
SREREBAE15-1712) . The fair value as at 31 December 2017 was assessed
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Asset Appraisal
Limited.

The valuation was determined using the direct comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

At 31 December 2017, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2016: Nil).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to administrative
expenses (2016: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement:

Rental income HEWA
Direct operating expenses arising from investment

property that generated rental income

BEEEHRX

A o B 25 e o i

13 REYE (&)
HiaE:

UEMERTEEGABBERQITENE (E=
&)
REMEMPILRTERBKIK67SRREBARE5-1712 -
RIB—tF+ A=+ HZATERBYEXAER
hEMT Rz A ETERRERARNE

BETRBERLBUAETE - RARI I E AT LR % 2 8H
EERGREIEB M (P ERE) 2 Z2IEHTE It
BETEZEEABANEREGFIRE-

RIB—tF+-A=+—8B AEEHEFHRREES
RREMAEBBZAOEE (ZF—RF H) -

FAMEFERX B ATRER (ZZ—RF ER)
AT EEERERE WK AR

For the year
ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLEE

TEEBWAZREMEMEEZ

2017 2016
—ET—+tF —T-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHRT THET
2,210 3,584
434) (332)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment property that did not generate rental income during
the year (2016: same).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases ranged from 1 to 2
years (2016: same).

At 31 December 2016 and 2017, the future aggregate
minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

FR - AEERS WA ZIREEIL BEE
BREEERZ (Z2—RF 8R) -

RNEFRIBLEEHOMHEICEDE 2 PN T
122F (ZZE—R"F:HER) -

RZB-—RERZE—tF+_A=1+—H 1R
BAPHEHR SR 2 RR K YA T 428N
T

As at 31 December

R+t=A=t—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Not later than 1 year THBA1F 1,378 2,956
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years HBIBTFETBBsF - 885
1,378 3,841
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14 ¥ BERRE

Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HE WAE
BT  UEEE RARRE EBERRE RE CHY
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TET
At 1 January 2016 R=-B-X"E-A-8
Cost A 40,760 26,823 211,569 249,444 31,502 560,098
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (16,625) (20,187)  (188,966) (89,806) (23,193)  (338,777)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitREER - - - (7,087) - (7,087)
Net book amount REFE 24,135 6,636 22,603 152,551 8,309 214,234
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-~%§
+ZA=t-ALEE
Opening net book amount FORAHE 24,135 6,636 22,603 152,551 8,309 214,234
Additions RE - - 16,257 154,425 671 171,353
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — AN E 2 - 159 7 - - 166
Transfer to investment properties BARENE
(Note 13) (Hiz#13) (371) - - - - (371)
Disposals (Note 30(b)) HE (Hztsom) - - (980) (159) (69) (1,208)
Depreciation & (1,819) (2,108) (13,635) (73,887) (2,682) (94,131)
Transferred to disposal group BANERBIELEZ
classified as held-for-sales HEER - - (4,748) (2,782) - (7,530)
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR (1,269) (292) (1,280) (12,226) (332) (15,399)
Closing net book amount FREDFE 20,676 4,395 18,224 217,922 5,897 267,114
At 31 December 2016 RZB-A%¥+=ZA=+-H
Cost AR 37,812 25,700 127,341 377,835 30,138 598,826
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (17,136) (21,305 (109,117) (153,248 (24241)  (325,047)
Accumulated impairment loss RitREESRE - - - (6,665) - (6,665)
Net book amount REFE 20,676 4,395 18,224 217,922 5,897 267,114
Year ended 31 December 2017 BE-2-+F
TZAZtT-HLEE
Opening net book amount FUREFE 20,676 4,395 18,224 217,922 5,897 267,114
Additions RE - 187 12,528 377,244 2,545 392,504
Transfer to investment properties BERENE
(Note 13) (Hit13) (64) - - - - (64)
Disposals (Note 30(b)) HE (Hstsom)) - - (467) (147) - (614)
Depreciation e (1,801) (2,143) (10924) (162,952 (2,860) (180,680
Exchange realignment ERTECE 1,528 276 1,513 25,058 389 28,764
Closing net book amount FRERFE 20,339 2,715 20,874 457,125 5,971 507,024
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t5+ZA=1+-8H
Cost AR 40,587 26,860 139,520 797,705 32,274 1,036,946
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (20,248) (24,145)  (118,646)  (333,390) (26,303) (522,732
Accumulated impairment loss 2T RERE - - - (7,190) = (7,190)
Net book amount REFE 20,339 2,715 20,874 457,125 5,971 507,024
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15

Depreciation expense of HK$164,844,000 (2016:
HK$78,230,000) has been expensed in cost of sales,
HK$520,000 (2016: HK$381,000) in selling expenses and
HK$15,316,000 (2016: HK$15,520,000) in administrative
expenses respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, banking facilities of approximately
HK$19,192,000 (2016: HK$17,786,000) were secured by
buildings with a net book value of HK$9,000,000 (2016:
HK$9,330,000).

LEASEHOLD LAND

The movement of the net book amount for leasehold land is as
follows:

A o B 25 e o i

14 Y% BERRE (@)

15

WER X F164,844,0008 T (—Z T — /K&

78,230,000/ 7T, ) B FA S5 B A AN AR 2 48 ¢ 520,000
BT (ZZ— /N4 381,000 7T) RIS
4 5215,316,0005 7T ( —Z — N4 : 15,520,00078
T ERTHRERNHE-

RZE—+F+-_A=+—HB RITIEEY
19,192,000 7T ( =& — /<4 1 17,786,000/
7T ) BA BR T 7% {89,000,00078 7T ( —Z & — /N 4F ¢
9,330,000 7T ) 2 EEF1EH A

HELTH#

HETH 2 REFEZESMT

For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016

—E—+tF ZE-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Opening net book amount FHREFE 32,215 33,785
Amortisation g (981) (983)
Exchange realignment PE & % 740 (587)
Closing net book amount FREEFE 31,974 32,215

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$55,000
(2016: HK$55,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$926,000 (2016: HK$928,000) in administrative expenses,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2017, banking facilities of approximately
HK$19,192,000 (2016: HK$17,786,000) were secured
by leasehold land with a total net carrying amount of
HK$3,098,000 (2016: HK$2,948,000).

FER#HE B T55,0008 T (2T —KE:
55,0007 70) B 1A $5 5 AR 2 85 £2926,0007% 7T
(== —7]% 1 928,000870) AT E F S 84 ©

N-ZE—+FE+-_A=+—8 HRITEED
19,192,000 7t (=& — /<4 : 17,786,000/ 7T )
B H BR T F (E 48583,098,000/8 7T ( ZZ— N4
2,948,000/ 7T ) 2 M E T HEH I

B>
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16 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 BLEE

Patents and

capitalised
Customer software
listand ~ development I progress Computer
Goodwill  Brand name contracts costs  technology software Total
Vi)
EFRER CEREX
wE ) BH  ZBEEE  WRAEH S EG Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TERT TER TERT TER
At 1 January 2016 RZB-AE-F-H
Cost A 116,436 4721 4,721 23,842 6,308 30,800 186,828
Accumulated amortisation BETEE - 4,721) (4,721) (23,809) (6,308) (11,978) (51,537)
Accumulated impairment loss 2itAERE (116,436) - - - - - (116,436)
Net book amount REFE - - - 33 - 18,822 18,855
Year ended 31 December 2016 HE-Z-R%
TZRA=t-BLFE
Opening net book amount FUREFE - - - 3 - 18,822 18,855
Acquisition of a subsidiary W R B AR 1,515 - 200 - - 178 1,893
Amortisation charge BETH - - - (14) - (10,267) (10,281)
Exchange realignment EHHE - - - m - - n
Closing net book amount FHREEFE 1,515 - 200 18 - 8,733 10,466
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AF+ZB=t-B
Cost A 104,686 4,446 4,646 22,456 5,942 30,978 173,154
Accumulated amortisation 2EEH - (4,446) (4,446) (22,438) (5,942) (22,245) (59,517)
Accumulated impairment loss ZETRESE (103,171) - - - - - (103,171)
Net book amount REEE 1,515 - 200 18 - 8,733 10,466
Year ended 31 December 2017 HEZ-Z-t%
TZA=t-RLFE
Opening net book amount FREFE 1515 - 200 18 - 8,733 10,466
Additions NE - - - 214 - - 214
Amortisation charge BT - - (105) 32 - (8,592) (8,729)
Exchange realignment EREE - - 13 8 - 13 34
Closing net book amount FREAFE 1,515 - 108 208 - 154 1,985
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tF+-fA=1-8H
Cost A 114,008 4,798 5,014 24,454 6,411 30,992 185,677
Accumulated amortisation 2iHEH - (4,798) (4,906) (24,246) (6,411) (30,838) (71,199)
Accumulated impairment loss 2EtAEEE (112,493) - - - - - (112,493
Net book amount FEFE 1,515 - 108 208 - 154 1,985

During the year, amortisation expense of HK$8,697,000 (2016:
HK$10,267,000) has been expensed in cost of sales and
HK$32,000 (2016: HK$14,000) in administrative expenses,

respectively.

ER B R B8,697,0008 T (ZB—NE:
10,267,000/ 7T ) BN $HE AR 2 85 5.32,0008 7T
(ZZ—RNF 14,0008 TT) RITIRE A48
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17 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group's available-for-sale financial assets include unlisted
equity security and unlisted investment fund with the following
details:

A o B 5 e o I

17 AIHESRERE

AEERHEESREERRIE LTRARSF R
FELTIRERS FHBWT:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+T—-HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —T-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET

At 1 January n—HA—H 106,113 6,982

Addition = - 82,518

Fair value gains on revaluation REAM 2R SR

recognised in other comprehensive income — &E {4 A FE Wz 61,635 22,755

Exchange realignment IE 5 10,637 (6,142)

At 31 December Rt=ZA=+—~H 178,385 106,113
Unlisted equity investments outside BERFEINZ FE LTRAIRE

Hong Kong 15,536 14,664
Unlisted investment fund outside BEBRINZELTREESD

Hong Kong 162,849 91,449

178,385 106,113

The carrying amounts of the available-for-sale financial assets
are denominated in RMB.

A EEREE REERARKIIE-
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18 BAFEtAEBRZ2SREE

PROFIT OR LOSS

AEERATFEFABGZZERMEERENIL
WA E IR K EMBRAE S ZRE - IR0

and listed equity securities with the following details: Bk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represent investment in unlisted convertible preference shares

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+t—-HLEE

148

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
At 1 January w—H—H 76,880 -
Addition NE 2,950 78,000
Net fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation — RERE W R HER 2 Bfh A TE
recognised in consolidated income Wz, (B1E) F8
statement 16,357 (1,120)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 96,187 76,880
Non-current assets FRBEE
Unlisted convertible preference shares BEBRINS IE T AR
outside Hong Kong (Note (a)) BER (Hit@) 93,485 76,880
Current assets RBEE
Listed equity securities in Hong Kong BEBZ FTRAE S
(Note (b)) (Miazm)) 2,702 -
96,187 76,880
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18 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

Unlisted convertible preference shares outside Hong Kong

On 10 June 2016, the Group subscribed 7,443,326 Convertible
Series C Preferred Shares (the “Convertible Series C Preferred Shares”)
of Cloopen (Note 20). The consideration for the Convertible Series
C Preferred Shares subscribed by the Group was approximately
HK$78,000,000 (equivalent to US$10,000,000).

The Group, as a holder of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares
has:

(i) an option to request Cloopen to redeem the Convertible Series
C Preferred Shares at the price equal to the greater of the issue
price with an 8% compound interest per annum return plus any
accrued but unpaid dividends or the fair value at the date of
redemption after the earliest of 10 June 2020 or the occurrence of
other conditions as provided for under the definitive subscription
agreement; and

(i) an option to convert the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares
into ordinary shares of Cloopen at the conversion price based
on certain conditions on the date of conversion as provided for
under the definitive subscription agreement.

The Convertible Series C Preferred Shares, together with the
abovementioned options, were designated as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss and recognised at fair values. The
fair values of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares were valued
by an independent valuer at the date of initial inception and on 31
December 2017.

The carrying amount of the unlisted convertible preference shares is
denominated in US$.

Listed equity securities in Hong Kong

The fair value of the listed equity securities is based on their current bid
prices in an active market and their carrying amount is denominated in
HKS$.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recorded in ‘other gains/(losses), net’ in the
consolidated income statement.

f o B 5 e o I

18 BRAFEFABRBZEMEE (&)

Hiet -

(@

(b)

i

0
IRAR

ﬁ

NFERARR
RE

o

EBRHZFLTARRELR
REZF—ANERNATH NEBERFE7,443,326/
CloopenZ CR 5| AT #2 A& 18 52 B ([CRFI AT IR AR B %
B&1) (A1at20) - NEBFRECRY|THRRE LR
RABE XY 478,000,000 7T (AHE 710,000,00057T) °

AEE ((FRCRTIATBEELERBEA) A

()  FEFIZERCloopentA ZZE-_ZF AT HREE
RERBHAMRTAZEMGET (UAREER
B)REBER TR EE 2 ERBERICESIT]
BARE SRR - B8%IE & F I @ ¥R O fa] AT
ERMNREZEHITESNER B ATE: &

(i) EMRHZLRBHHMTAZERARRES
TR RERERCRIITTRREBLRERE
CloopenZ &% »

CRP| A B S g R a4 R Ty i AR A FE
FPABRZ EREE  WIRATERER - CRIIAHK

BERZ NTFETRBILGENNERARA SR =
E—tF T A=+ —HETREE.

FE LT ATHARRE L AR AR E(E TI A TS IE

EEZLTRAES
ETRAEBSFORFEDERERT S 2 HEHRR
B BEREEDAETIIE-

ZERMEBEEZRNFEESHT
Wask A [ Bl (B51R) %] 71
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19 KB E]

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 RIB—+F+A=+—H FEMNBERFZ
December 2017: HEWT:
Proportion
Particulars Proportion of ordinary
of issued of ordinary shares held
share capital/ shares directly by non-
Place of incorporation Principal activities and registered held by controlling
Name and type of legal entity place of operation capital the Group interests
(%) (%)
K&EE FERER
TR AL Lt B R BRAIRE/ BEERAEZ BEZ
L EERBER TEEBRERBY AMEARFE BERLH EERLH
(%) (%)
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced The PRC, limited Provision of financial solutions, HK$ 100% -
Business Solutions Information liability company services and related products in PRC 100,000,000
Technology Limited HE FRAA ERERESREATE R 100,000,000 7
EREGEEESRNERAR LARBER
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay The PRC, limited Provision of platform operation solutions RMB 100% -
IT Limited* liability company in PRC 42,435,000
HEERBRE S RTERAA HE BRAR EPERHTREERATR ARE
42,435,0007T
Hangzhou PAX Electronic The PRC, limited Manufacturing and sales of electronic RMB 100% -
Technology Limited liability company power meters and solutions in PRC 53,400,000
MMEEEFRITERAR hEBRAF ERREERHESRIEER ARH
REBRTR 53,400,000 7T
Megahunt Microelectronic Technology The PRC, limited Sales of information security chips and HK$ 100% -
(Beijing) Company Limited liability company solutions in PRC 15,000,000
KABENETHEM (L) ARAE  FE BRAA HERERRURRBANR 15,000,000 ¢
BN ERAERAR The PRC, limited Provision of payment processing solutions RMB 80.04% 19.96%
liability company in PRC 199,900,000
BITNXNARAT R BRAF EPERHXNRIEERANR ARE
199,900,000 7T
* BEFTII XA PR, Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited and &2 * BONXAERAR - PEEBBEESRITERA

=S RENE BT AR AR are the subsidiaries of EE 41T E)

AR E (“Just-In Mobile”). The Company does not have legal
ownership in equity of Just-In Mobile. Nevertheless, under certain
contractual agreements enacted among the registered owners of Just-
In Mobile, the Company and the Company’s other subsidiary, the
Company controls Just-In Mobile by way of controlling more than
one half of the voting rights of it, governing its financial and operating
policies and appointing or removing the majority of the members of its
controlling authorities, and casting the majority of votes at meetings of
such authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements also transfer
the risks and rewards of Just-In Mobile to the Company. As a result,
they are presented as the consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

ARRESGRBESKNERARAEESTES
BBARAR ([BEGTT]) ZMBAR - AAFILHE
BEERATRREATHERE A RIBEELS
FTEEMEE A RAREAR R EAMM B AR
ZETAD® ’Aﬁ—liﬁi@ﬁ%i% BT RE
- EHIER R EERR  ER R E A KA
DB ARRZE A ER LRASHE M

|EEHIT- IS BRAHNBETHEESTTZ
R B B R T ARF Bt SRR QR

ZEREHBAR .
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 B AT (&)

(@ EXRFERED

(a) Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2017
is HK$104,203,000 (2016: HK$54,451,000), of which
HK$124,776,000 (2016: HK$73,456,000) is attributed
to VBill and its subsidiaries (“VBill Group”), which is
considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$1,376,159,000 (2016:
HK$1,530,056,000) are held in PRC and are subject to
local exchange control regulations. These local exchange
control regulations provide for restrictions on exporting
capital from the country, other than through normal
dividends.

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
VBill Group.

N B—+F+ - A=+—H 2 FEfe s
5 4A%E 2104,203,0008 7T (B — /N5
54,451,000/ 7T) * HH124,776,000 7T (=
T —N4F 1 73,456,00078 70 ) EARET T R ELFfY
BRR (BTN EBE)) B kR
SEEBEK-

HEEXFERIER B LA HEE
R &

R4 K5 E1F R01,376,159,0008 7T (=&
— 754 11,530,056,000/8 7T) JAEEF BI#H A
W 2R E HIMNEE FIEH o Lt 5 & HHNE
EHNERBENZE S L ER (WIEERE
IR 2[Rl

HHEAFER E e 2 B2 72 B 7%
AT EIIBET RN RE 2 M ERBR -

Summarised balance sheet: EEABERBE:
VBill Group
BEITHER
As at 31 December
W+=—B=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+t&E —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Non-current R E
Assets BE 474,267 231,424
Current B
Assets AE 1,407,883 1,543,446
Liabilities afE (1,257,020) (1,406,854)
Net assets EEFRE 625,130 368,016
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19 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 19 BT (&)
(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued) (@ ERFERER (B)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with HEEXIFERIEDZNE L T2
material non-controlling interests (Continued) BEHEZE (E)
Summarised income statement: Wz R E
VBill Group
BEITREE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Revenue WA 1,969,933 1,031,203
Profit before income tax B FT1S B Bl 259,874 174,531
Profit for the year F N 220,003 155,388
Other comprehensive income/(loss) EmrmEmbis, (EE) 37,116 (20,588)
Total comprehensive income PHEN A 257,119 134,800

Total comprehensive income attributable ~ JE#2 J% 1 25

to non-controlling interests el 2 mU = aRR 51,321 26,906
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19 BT (%)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with

material non-controlling interests (Continued)

Summarised cash flows statement:

@ BRFEZKRER(E)

HBEERFERE R Z B2 72 87
BEHHE (&)
RenERME:

VBill Group
AT 14
For the year ended
31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBCRERE
Cash generated from operations KEFRERE 134,615 850,431
Income tax paid B ATER (32,818) 9,779)
Cash generated from KEZLESIRS
__Operating activites 101797 840,652
Cash flows from investing activities = RAZBRERE (366941) (151,269) _
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRSEEY
cash equivalents (R, (265,144) 689,383
Cash and cash equivalents at FNRe MR EEYD
beginning of the year 1,530,075 925,700
Exchange gain/(loss) on cash and BehkBE2EEYMZ
cash equivalents FEH Uz (E18) 111,277 (85,008)
Cash and cash equivalents at FREASRASZEY
end of the year 1,376,208 1,530,075

The information above is the amount before inter-company

eliminations.

A EERMBEBARRIFELHA 2 25 -
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 UREFHEABEZRE
EQUITY METHOD

The balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as WA BEBBRMER ZAERINT
follows:

As at 31 December

Rt=R=+—~H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Associated company: iRt/
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BERK (Hit@) 1,823,245 1,663,250
The amount of share of results recognised in the consolidated REFE NG REREEE 2 B RFENT

income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=+T—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT THET
Associated company: /NS
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BRIRK (Het@) 134,531 198,992
The amount of gain on dilution of interest recognised in the RiFaBERER 2 Eal S Ra eI T

consolidated income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+TZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—B—tF  ZE-RE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Associated company: NI
- PAX Global (Note (a) —BEBR (M) 113 o
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global

20 DERZEARZIRE (8)

(@ REERRZRE

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at
31 December 2017, which, in the opinion of the directors,
is material to the Group — PAX Global. PAX Global has
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are

held directly by the Group; its principal places of business
are in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United States of America

and ltaly.

Name

%

31 December 2017
—E-tH+ZHA=t+-H

PAX Global (Note i)

BERK (M)

31 December 2016
—E-AE+ZHA=t+-H

PAX Global (Note i)

BERL (M)

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity
B 3L 3 B
EERBER

Bermuda, limited
liability company
BHE ARAF

Bermuda, limited
liability company
BHRE ARAA

Particular of issued
share capital

BRTRAFHE

1,100,194,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each

1,100,194,000%
BREE0IET
ZEmR

1,107,874,000 ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each
1,107,874,000/%
EkmEE0.1ET
ZEBR

TX#IR T —LF+=A=+—A
EERAHARETEBEAZARE
WEAR - BRER AREREABA
£ B 12 45 5 A BRI 2 B
HEBERNWBAFE B ZARE

R e
Nature of Effective
relationship interest held
FEEZ
BARMEE BHRER
Note 34 33.09%
FitiE34 33.09%
Note 34 32.86%
BiiE34 32.86%

Measurement
method

SEEE

Equity

s

Equity

i
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 UEZRZEABRZRE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (@)

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spinoff
of PAX Global to be separately listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, PAX Global became an associated
company of the Group. On the date when control ceased,
the Group’s retained interest in PAX Global was fair
valued, and this give rise to the difference between the
carrying value of investment in an associated company of
the Group and its share of net assets value of PAX Global.

REERRZRE (B)
RZZ—ZF+_A=+HB aREE
BAORBNEBMIABELLETZAERE
R BERBMAAAEE ZHERT] -
WEEZHIEE R AEERBERK
REBZ R ANTEFE SHNAE
B E Rz RAEZREERENARE
REEEFEMLOBLRER-

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=T—-HLEE

2017 2016

—E—tF —E-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

At 1 January Rn—H—H 1,663,250 1,525,040

Share of profit i apiagl 134,531 198,992
Share of other comprehensive EmEMEERE (E18)

income/(loss) 54,156 (41,132)

Share of other reserves FEL B b fE - 1,248

Dilution of interest (Note ii) WEREE (i) 428 942

Dividend received B E (29,120) (21,840)

At 31 December W+Z—A=+—8 1,823,245 1,663,250

Impairment test for interest in PAX Global

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the Group’s
interest in PAX Global, which is listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, was HK$1,274,000,000
(2016: HK$1,870,960,000) and the carrying amount
of the Group's interest was HK$1,823,245,000 (2016:
HK$1,663,250,000). The fair value is based on the current
price in an active market as at balance sheet date.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the investment
is less than its carrying value. An impairment test is
performed to determine the recoverable amount of the
investment. The recoverable amount calculated based on
value-in-use which exceeds the carrying value as at 31
December 2017.

REEREZ a2 6 BRI
R-Z—+F+-F=+—H A&EER
AERIK(EEBHERIMERAF
)z #Em R {E A1,274,000,00078
7T (ZF—75%:1,870,960,000/8 7T )
AEE R 2 IREEA1,823,245,00078
7T (ZZF— 754 1 1,663,250,00078 1) °
NFEDNEREER 2 ERTBIREE
IREE

RZB—+tF+-_A=+—H KEZ
AFEELHRERRE - ETRENRE
AETREZIHRESE - ZBRR T
—tFF+ A=+ —RAZEAEEEBR
RHESETEIRKSE-



BEEHR (RED)ARAE

—E—tEEH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued)
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s interest in PAX
Global was 33.09% (2016: 32.86%).

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's
interest in PAX Global.

Note i:

Note ii:

Note iii:

PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment
Terminals”) products, provision of payment solutions
services and maintenance services (collectively, the
“E-payment Terminals solution business”).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain
employees of PAX Global exercised their share options
granted pursuant to a share option scheme set up on
1 December 2010. A gain on dilution of interest in an
associated company of HK$113,000 (2016: HK$826,000)
was recognised in the consolidated income statement,
including release of reserve debited to the consolidated
income statement of HK$315,000 (2016: HK$116,000). The
Group's interest in PAX Global decreased from 32.86% to
32.70% accordingly.

During the year, PAX Global repurchased a total of
13,000,000 ordinary shares (2016: 10,000,000 ordinary
shares) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Such
repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled during the
year. The Group’s interest in PAX Global increased from
32.70% to 33.09% accordingly.

A o B 5 e o I

20 DERZEARZIRE (8)

(@ REERRZRE (&)
W_EBE—+&E+-"A=+—8 A&H
RBEBRKZEZ®A33.09% (ZE—R
F:32.86%) °

BEAEASERAERRZER I
RAE-

Biati -

Hiazii :

B atiii -

BERBIBNEMARMEEETNHE
B ([EFHEHM]) B UREHXN
FRORTT SR IRTE R M E IR (A [ 7 A9
RIERRTTREWS]) ©

HE-_Z—+F+-A=+—HILtEE &
ERIETERETEREN T —TF+=
B— Rz Rkt 8% 2 i kA -
A — [EH & N B 2 #E a2 113,000/
JC (= Z— 754 826,000/ 70 ) B RNERA IR
HRPHER OENRERE WNER
315,000/ 70 ( ZF—734F 1 116,000/ 7T) °
Eit - AEBR B BRI Z a5 H32.86%H
%32.70% ©

EN BEEREEBHEARIMERA
A& 814 $£13,000,0008% LBk (ZF—<
F 1 10,000,000/% & AR ) - 5 B B A7 BE
BERFNFTHE B AEERE BRI
Z R F32.70%38 %233.09% ©
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 UEZRZEABRZRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) (a) REEBRZBRE (&)
Extracted financial information set out below are the TXF#E s HBERRE BUEREAN
summarised consolidated financial information of PAX BREABRIGEUBERME-

Global which is accounted for using the equity method.

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —T—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current RE
Cash and cash equivalents BekIReEEY 2,165,224 2,207,205
Other current assets (excluding cash) HimEEE (TRERS) 2,673,949 2,013,214
Total current assets MENEEEE 4,839,173 4,220,419
Trade payables FESTBR R (953,084) (662,485)
Other payables and accruals HAh e R ST /1A (281,585) (226,791)
Other current liabilities HibR#AaE (68,291) (36,141)
Borrowings & (14,367) -
Total liabilities BfERsE (1,317,327) (925,417)
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 393,043 212,644
Liabilities afE (17,823) (6,363)
Net assets BEEFME 3,897,066 3,501,283
For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-A=+—-HLEE
2017 2016
—E—-+iF b ANCS
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FHET
Revenue A 3,591,080 2,914,842
Profit for the year F R A 336,566 603,434
Other comprehensive income/(loss) HEizmmikzs, (E18) 162,137 (126,208)
Total comprehensive income EHENE BT 498,703 477,226
Dividends received from the associated  [AZ B4 N B U ER 2 AR 2
company 29,120 21,840
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20 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 20 UERZEABEZERE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in Cloopen (b) ACloopenz&E

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at
31 December 2017 — Cloopen. As at 31 December 2017,
the carrying value of Cloopen is nil (2016: same) which
is not considered as material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Cloopen has share capital
consisting of class A ordinary share, class B ordinary share,
series A convertible preferred shares, series B convertible
preferred shares and series C convertible preferred shares.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group'’s effective interest in
the ordinary shares of Cloopen, calculated based on all
issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Cloopen which
are held by the Group, is 50.51% (2016: 47.85%).

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group's interest in Cloopen.

The interest in Cloopen was initially measured at fair
value. The carrying amount was increased or decreased
to recognise the Group’s share of the profits or loss and
movements in other comprehensive income or loss of the
interest in Cloopen to the extent the carrying amount of the
interest in Cloopen reduced to nil due to losses, after the
initial recognition. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's
share of loss of Cloopen exceeded its interest in the
ordinary shares of Cloopen, there are no overall financial
impact on the consolidated income statement from the
investment for the current year. As at 31 December 2017,
the unrecognised share of loss of the interest in Cloopen is
HK$270,658,000 (2016: HK$134,079,000).

TXEINR_ZBE—+F+-_A=+—H
NEBE 2B A B]—Cloopen e R =&
—+F+ZHA=+—H " Cloopenz FKH
BAZ(ZE—XRF :HRA) HEAEH
ZIRE IS RERTBER ° Cloopenf
ZBRABAREER BELTER AR
ATHRARE SR BRI AR E LR K& C
FII AT R AR SE AR X

RZZ—+F+=ZA=1+—H EX%
& Ffr % Cloopen® & 2 317 R BTSN
TRk HE N EE R Cloopen B R
LB R R50.51% (Z T —RF:
47.85% ) °

4T AL @ H Cloopen 2 s iE it A &
LA BE R AIE -

R CloopenZ #a H1 F 1R A FERT & o £
VIR HERIE WP Cloopen 2 # s ~ BREI A
EEERET REESEERNEEREG
R Cloopen 2 # % 2 Bz {0 B LA R H A 2
EW s B EEE MG MR L R =
T—+F+ZA=+—H KAEEEHL
CloopenZ 5188 38 H 74 Cloopen & i A%
2R ZIERENAFEN MEGEK
ARBRERBVEZE - R_T—+F
+ZA=+—8  KERE/EH Cloopen
2 ¥ 2 18 8270,658,0008 T (= F
— 754 1134,079,0007%8 7T ) °

21 INVENTORIES 21 78
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Raw materials R % 7,053 47,275
Work-in-progress 8 65,956 2,616
Finished goods P oh 22,398 25,081

95,407 74,972
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21

22

INVENTORIES (Continued)

21

The cost of inventories recognised in cost of sales amounted to
HK$315,022,000 (2016: HK$234,825,000), which included
provision for inventories of HK$783,000 (2016: write-back of

provision of HK$1,385,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$37,689,000 (2016:
HK$34,176,000) as at 31 December 2017. Full provision has

been made with regard to these balances.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

22

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

FE®

TR A E R AR 2 17 & A AN 315,022,000/ 7T
(ZZ—<4:234,825,000877) - BIEEFEEE
783,000 7T ( =& — /X4 « #HE# [011,385,0007%8
JT) °

N-E—+F+-A=+—8 LA 2EFES
BR 2 7 S 4A%R4) 537,689,000/8 7T ( ZZ—/NF:
34,176,000/ 70) » I B Bh1tL 55 45 SR 1 HH 2 B0
fie

FEUSRRR K% U SR 45 e EL At RLKURROR -
ANRERERE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Current portion BVHA &R &
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEMBR X (f 77 (@) 270,240 247,647
Bills receivables (Note (b)) e 1% (/AL (b)) 13,902 1,284
Less: provision for impairment of receivables 5 : & Ut 5% T8 i (B 4 &
(Note (c)) (Htit(c)) (5,823) (5,397)
278,319 243,534
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables: TE{ I8 « & &
HAth W R
Prepayments TaftFRIA 19,857 15,086
Deposits ®’e 12,237 11,193
Others Hity 33,973 11,761
66,067 38,040
344,386 281,574
Non-current portion FEENSAER 2
Long-term deposits and prepayments RERe RIERFHIA 3,028 3,434
Total CEl 347,414 285,008
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22 FEURHRTR K FEWL R B I ELAth IR UNRR IR -
BANREREE (5

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(Continued)

FREERE A TERE o BUERR M BRI
Hib U IR AN A RRE AR RRRE R
BB REETIATIEEINE

The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The
carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, prepayments and deposits and long-term deposits
and prepayments are denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —ET—RF
HK$’'000 HK$’000
FExT FHEIT
HK$ BT 3,778 9,705
RMB AR 342,435 273,493
JPY B - 603
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SRPIHE ([RPI%E ) 1,201 1,207
347,414 285,008

(a)

Trade receivables

The Group's credit terms to trade debtors range from 0
to 180 days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables
primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

(@ FEWER

AEEGBTESEFAZEEHAR0E180H
o T RIRE T A MEH 2 R SR ARER

DHTEAT

As at 31 December

RtZA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN S
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Current to 90 days BIEAZE90H 188,974 170,730
91 to 180 days 912180H 27,060 18,925
181 to 365 days 1812365H 19,564 23,981
Over 365 days 365H LA E 34,642 34,011
270,240 247,647

As at 31 December 2017, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$50,513,000 (2016:
HK$52,230,000), which represents approximately 10%
to 20% (2016: same) of the relevant contract sum granted
to certain customers in the PRC that have a retention
period of normally one year. As at 31 December 2017, the
retention money receivables aged over 365 days primarily
based on invoice date amounted to HK$25,766,000 (2016:
HK$25,806,000).

R-ZE—+FE+_A=+—8 BRER
A1 FE FE U R [E] 450,513,000/ 7T ( —Z— <
152,230,000 7C) (EEFETHERR
R A B IBLI10%E20% ( —ZF — /R F
R  ZEREFPZREHR—ME—F -
TE—E+ A=+ I BIRBRE

B EERRBIB365B U L ERRES B
25,766,000/ 7T ( —Z — 75 4F : 25,806,00078

JT) °
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of
HK$42,301,000 (2016: HK$39,444,000) were past due but
not impaired. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables
primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

22 FEWARFR N RIS B A R YRR -
BANREREE (50

(@)

FEWRRK (48)
BHVERRIEZ YGRS ME T HA %
EBRHR Gk BIU TR - ERBER
BRHADEPZEEERRELERE
b BUGRIAGRDAI 22O B IR E
RBRTTERZFEHRIEREER A EE
I BB RIS R AMRIRA RFA IR G

R-Z—+F+_A=+—8 BRER
42,301,000/ 7T ( == — 75 4F : 39,444,000
T0) T BME R R E - = EiR R A EED
2R EREBEERERR T T -

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 90 days BIEAZE90H - -
91 to 180 days 912180H 18,339 7,726
181 to 365 days 1812365H 4,015 11,308
Over 365 days 3658 A 19,947 20,410
42,301 39,444

Bills receivables b EWEE

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with
maturity dates within six months. The maturity profile of
the bills receivables of the Group is as follows:

Falling within 90 days 90H A

ZAERED A RIRANER ZRITELR
- ARBEREER ZZIMIERMT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
13,902 1,284
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22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 22 FEUWRBRFI R FEWNEE & H b EWRGRIE -

RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS BANRERRE (8)

(Continued)

(c) Provision for impairment of receivables (c) BWFERBERE
As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of RZZE—+tF+=-_A=+—8 BKER
HK$5,823,000 (2016: HK$5,397,000) were impaired. 5,823,000/ 7T ( == — /<4 : 5,397,000/8
These impaired receivables mainly relate to individual 7)) ERE - 3% F B IRE R W R IR = 2 LA
customers who are delinquent in payment. The ageing of PlERFIBEZ P AR - T 2RERAHE
these receivables primarily based on invoice date was as H 2 S EUGRIRRRE AT AT -
follows:

As at 31 December

Rt=ZA=+—H
2017 2016
—E-tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Over 365 days 365H A £ 5,823 5,397
Movement on the provision for impairment of receivables FEN IR R AR EE T :

are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=+T—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
At 1 January n—HA—H 5,397 18,645
Write-back of provision for JE W BR O (B 8 e 1 O
impairment of trade receivables, net - (3,507)
Receivables written off during the year 5118 AU BIFRIBRAF A 84 2
as uncollectible JEW R IR - (9,360)
Exchange realignment bE 3 R B 426 (381)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 5,823 5,397
The other classes within trade and other receivables do not E A AR B 2 e U AR AR e EA R IR SR )
contain impaired assets. FEREEE-
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date R BEE Y & AREERR Ty s
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned SRR MIA 2 AR (E o 28 SR B MR 55 {2 1e]
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. HRRIERER-

B>
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23 SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

Short-term bank deposits of HK$16,153,000 (2016:
HK$18,388,000) represented bank deposits of the Group with
original maturities over three months which are placed as
guaranteed deposits for bills payables and are denominated in
RMB.

24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23 FHIRITER
55 HAR 1717 7%16,153,000% T (— T — /N &
18,388,00075 7T ) fE AN B FLIE (N IE M FVE(RTE
BERREFHBA=EANLEZRBTER I
LAAREETI(E -

24 BERBEEEEY

As at 31 December

BR+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Cash at bank and on hand WITEREFERS 1,804,392 1,428,187
Short-term bank deposits (original maturities 52 B8R 1777 3¢
of less than three months) (RERSHELR=MEA) 737,090 1,298,546
2,541,482 2,726,733

Included in short-term bank deposits were HK$681,238,000
(2016: HK$827,107,000) bank deposits with original maturities
within three months and effective interest rate of 0.5% (2016:
1.8%) which are placed as guaranteed deposits for bills
payables, tenders or deposits designated for settlement of
certain payables in relation to the payment processing solutions
business and are denominated in RMB. The remaining balance
of HK$55,852,000 (2016: HK$471,439,000) were fixed bank
deposits with effective interest rate of 2.1% (2016: 1.1%) and
average maturity day of 86 days (2016: 83 days).

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$1,845,541,000 (2016: HK$2,009,531,000) are kept in
the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

5B ER 1T 17 2 681,238,000/ 7T ( —Z— /N4
827,107,000/ 70 ) E A EE RN RIEMFER
BRe WEXABEINRIRIBBRT FE
BB TRNRBIEAEEGEEFTRCBRITE
FRERTERREHNHEAE=EAUNARE
BRFIE 505% (ZE—RNF:11.8%)  WHUAR
BEHIME - 8 N 45 8255,852,0008 7T ( —ZT— /N
471,439,000 70 ) BEERITFR  BEEFEA
21% (ZZT—7RF:1.1%) R FH B As6H
(ZZT—"F:830) -

REBEE DL E1,845,541,0008 70 (ZZF—7K
F :2,009,531,00078 7T ) TF AP BIERT TRIEL 2 IR
TERP [ERESAZINEEH -
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24 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) 24 BeRREEEYW (&)
Cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following Re MR EBYWRATERIIE:
currencies:

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZEREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
HK$ BT 317,918 468,564
RMB AR 1,820,718 1,977,699
uUs$ ETT 211,457 273,813
JPY H 188,824 252
MOP RPTHE 2,565 6,405
2,541,482 2,726,733
25 SHARE CAPITAL 25 R
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each
BREE0.0025 Bz EER
No. of shares HK$'000
he TET
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZTB—RF—HA—H-
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —EF-RF+ZA=+—8"
—E—+F-A-HK
—T—tF+=A=+t—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRERE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZBE-—RE—A—0H-
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 —E-RF+-A=+—H"
—F—tHF-F—-HAk
—TtEF+ZA=t—H8 2,776,833,835 6,942
Note: Hiet -
Share options of the Company AARZERE
The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for ARREE-H-T——FERE 2 (%8 54
the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees in wE| - BIERAEE A B2 EE  ABASE R RERKIE
order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group. Eligible FER ZTEZAERSRERIEAEBAZZRIESI
participants of the Scheme include the Group’s full-time employees, and RMITRIEPITER - ZA BN T ——FmMA -+ H
Executive and non-Executive Directors. The Scheme became effective on 29 R BRIEZET IS TTRURSIERT - BRIF ez B AEsH+4F
April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain valid AR E R AR o W AR R 5T 8133 (R B AR -

and effective for a period of 10 years from that date. No share option was
granted under the Scheme.
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26 RESERVES 26 fi#fE
Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note(i))
ROVEE EABRK HRE EXFEE  REERA A&
(W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR TR TR FET FET
At1 January 2017 R-ZT—+5-f—8 1,063,153 168434 517,504 (10,644) 1,785,827 3,524,274
Profit for the year FRER - - - - 346,144 346,144
Exchange differences arising on BERNTBRRASTBRE
translation of the financial EECEREE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - 72,357 - 72,357
Share of other comprehensive Pl AR AR Z
income/(loss) of an investment —EREZEMEE
accounted for using the equity method W/ (B8)
— exchange differences arising —BEENEBAT
on translation of the financial HBRERAELEZ
statements of foreign subsidiaries =R - - - 56,207 - 56,207
~ change in values of available-forsale — A/ HE S FEE 2
financial assets BEZY - - (2,028) - - (2,028)
- remeasurement of post employment —EHF ERBE RN ES
benefit obligations - - (23) - - 23)
Release of reserve upon dilution of ~ LAEZE ARz —IBIRE
interest in an investment accounted R EHEEL 2 FE
for using the equity method
- exchange differences arising on —REEINEBR RS
translation of the financial BREECEREH
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - 315 - 315
Change in values of available-for-sale 7] {1 & BI&E 2
financial assets BEEZY - - 61,635 - - 61,635
Release of reserves upon disposal of ~ RHEMB AR REL 2
subsidiaries i - - - (1,699) - (1,699)
Release of reserves upon deregistration UH i — R & 2 5%
of a subsidiary Bz G#E - - - (4,782) - (4,782)
At 31 December 2017 R-B—+&E+-B=+—8 1,063,153 168,434 577,088 111,754 2,131,971 4,052,400
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26 RESERVES (Continued)
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26 f#fE (&)

Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note(i))
BRAVEE BaEA Hit ERGEE REEN At
(hieta)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL TEL T TR TR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E—A—H 1,003,153 168,434 493,501 74,935 1,501,863 3,301,886
Profit for the year FRE - - - - 283,964 283,964
Exchange differences arising on BEBINNB R AN BERE
translation of the financial EECERZES
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (44,563) - (44,563)
Share of other comprehensive loss G bAEREARE 2
of an investment accounted REZEMZEFE
for using the equity method
— exchange differences arising —REENEBR RS
on translation of the financial BEMEECELES
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (41,132) - (41,132)
Release of reserve upon dilution of ~ DMEZEARR 2 —HRE
interest in an investment accounted ~ EZEEERE L 2 FHE
for using the equity method
— exchange differences arising —HEENEBRA RS
on translation of the financial BREECERER
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - 116 - 116
Change in values of available-for-sale  AIftHESRMEEZ
financial assets EBEEZE - - 22,755 - - 22,755
Share of other reserves of AR AR, —2
an investment accounted for using 1% & 2 EftfE
the equity method - - 1,248 - - 1,248
At 31 December 2016 RIE-RETZA=+t—H 1,063,153 168,434 517,504 (10,644) 1,785,827 3,524,274
Notes: Mat -

(i)

(if)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account
of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in
the circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Other reserves mainly represents the difference between the net
proceeds from issuance of convertible preference shares of subsidiaries
upon their conversion into ordinary shares of the Company in
prior years, the reserves arising from the granting and exercising of
employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary and the reserves
arising from the change in values of the available-for-sale financial
assets.

() AEEZESERSEASHERERAR ([SHE
BDBERSERPHA-ZTT—F \ANBZBEXHR
HBRERN—ET—F+ AT LRETZEEEA
(IEA8]) PriiE 2 =I5 R 2z R E R AR 5®
Bk EARERIL R BRITROHEEZER

(i)  HiREEIRENBEFEESRARARLBIEL
FREETTHB R R AT B SRR FTSFUIRFRR - K i
KT —fEE R R 2 18 B 2Rt BIPTE L 2
URAIHNE SR EEBERBESLOMRBIER
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26

27

RESERVES (Continued) 26

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)  PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31 December 2017, retained earnings comprise of statutory
reserve fund amounting to HK$88,466,000 (2016: HK$64,921,000).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 27
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

e (®
et (48)

(i) FEARMEGRRAMENZI0%DEEFES BEE
ZRESEDNQREMERZ50% AT REELEE
S B &R AT ARE I 25T BRSO M A R 2 1
B A ESREAERRARFMER225%
KFE-RZZB—tF+A=1+—H0 RBBIEEX
TE % % © 3%88,466,000/8 7T ( = —754F 1 64,921,000
BIT) °

AR ENRE XX S EEHF
R RS 2 RN RUH - Htt AR
RESHRIEA

As at 31 December

Rt+=A=+—8
2017 2016
—FT—tF A
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Trade payables (Note (a)) FE BRI (W et @) 218,178 230,566
Bills payables (Note (b)) e SRR (Hfatib)) 21,021 35,704
239,199 266,270
Payables for payment processing solutions XNRGEBBRFTRER 2
business (Note (c)) FER TR (it () 292,587 808,650
Other payables and accruals (Note (d)) H At & R TE N e kIR
(Kt () 848,409 625,417
1,380,195 1,700,337

Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing
solutions business and other payables and accruals are
denominated in the following currencies:

e R BN RE XN RBEIBFRTTRE
T 2 FEATRRIR ~ Bt 5 R K fE At FIRIRIA T
BHHIE:

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—8
2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
HK$ BT 41,537 32,420
RMB AR 1,338,658 1,666,368
JPY = - 242
MOP S P = 1,307
1,380,195 1,700,337
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27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(c)

Trade payables
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

B B 5 e A I

27 BABRRRENRE A2 EEH#
SRT5 REERS 2 PR TRIE - HAtPE FRIE
REERHRIA (4)

Hfat -

(@ ENRX
Nt FR-F-RF+A=1t—0 TBR
BEABELZ BNRFRE DT -

As at 31 December

Rt+t=ZA=+—8
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Current to 90 days BIEFZ=90H 141,038 177,059
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 33,096 33,503
181 to 365 days 181%E365H 30,344 8,162
Over 365 days 365H A E 13,700 11,842
218,178 230,566

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

Bills payables
The balance represents bank acceptance notes:

EHERERT 2ERHMNF02180H 2.

b) FEFER
IR IRITE A FIR -

As at 31 December

®+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Due within 90 days 90H M EIH7 12,971 19,161
Due within 91 to 180 days 91Z180H M FH] 8,050 16,543
21,021 35,704

Payables for payment processing solutions business

This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment
processing solutions business. The amounts are generally due for
settlement within 30 days and is denominated in RMB.

(© XNAXZEEBEHRGREHZEMAKREA
ERERER IR S RIBRAT REBENEF 2
HIE BB —RN30A WETHE MIRARKET
=
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27 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR

27

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Other payables and accruals

BRI REAEE IR ZEER
SRR~ FE(TFE - BitfENRIE
RESHRUE (@)

izt (&)
d) EfEMSERESRE

As at 31 December

Current

R+t=A=t+—H
2017 2016
= —
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations FERT B TR BR R & R 219,370 162,675
Deposits and receipt in advance R LA WEGRIE 445,287 332,501
Others Hity 183,752 130,241
848,409 625,417
28 BORROWING 28 &K

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —EREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

BN

Bank borrowing RITER 9,596 -

As at 31 December 2017, bank borrowing would mature
on 28 December 2018 and bears average interest of 4.57%
annually (2016: Nil). The interest-bearing borrowing is carried

at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2017, the Group’s borrowing was repayable

within 1 year.

The carrying amount of short-term borrowing approximate its
fair value. The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing as at
31 December 2017 are denominated in the RMB.

As at 31 December 2017, the borrowing is pledged by
buildings (Note 14) and leasehold land (Note 15) of the Group.

There was no borrowing as at 31 December 2016.

W_E—+F+-A=+—8 H7EZK
—E—)\F+ZAZFTN\BEE ZFEE
FEa57E (ZT—RNF BT BT BfE
AR SHRK AN B

RZZE—+F+A=+—H KEEE
RER—FAEE-

RHERZERESREEAFERE R
E—tF+-A=1t—R rEEGEXRZE
L REIAARKEE-

RZZE—+F+ZA=+—H EFREEE
BT (Me14) RAEE i (M EE15) (EE
o

RZE—RE+A=+—8" SEEAE

o
N
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate

A o B 5 e o I

29 EEFTSH

BEEAARHIMITRNEIRBHIAEE R
BERRABRE  BREMSHY RE MR

to the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

HERMT

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE-R
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Deferred tax assets to be recovered 128 A& 18 FHEE 2
after 12 months EREBIEE E (344) (361)
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 1218 A R 2
within 12 months EEFIBBE 49 48
Deferred tax liabilities to be settled 1218 A& #8515 2
after 12 months FEEFHIBEEE 458 518
Deferred tax liabilities — net REFIEAE - F5 163 205

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)

during the year is as follows:

FA - BRERIRRDARER 2 Ak A HER
ERERIREERBEZ BEHINT

Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE
2017 2016
ZE—+F 3
Accelerated  Revaluation Accelerated  Revaluation
tax  of intangible tax  of intangible
depreciation assets Total ~ depreciation assets Total
illp:3 31 il 17
BERE EEEfR &t BEWE  BEER a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TR FET FET FET
At 1 January m—A—-H 136 430 566 151 371 522
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi —EHE R A - - - - 99 99
Credited to the HARANRR
consolidated income statement (35) (46) 81 (15) (13) (28)
Exchange realignment Rk - 22 22 - 27) 27)
At 31 December RTZA=+—8 101 406 507 136 430 566
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Deferred tax assets

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B B 5 e o i

9 EAEFTSH (40)

EEREEE

As at 31 December

BR+=—BA=+-—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZE-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January R—A—H (361) (390)

Charged to the consolidated SFAZRE R TR R

income statement 35 15
Exchange realignment IE & % (18) 14
At 31 December R+=ZA=+— (344) (361)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through
the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2017,
the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to HK$377,874,000
(2016: HK$400,406,000). These tax losses have no expiry date
except that HK$145,556,000 will expire from 2018 to 2022
(2016: HK$167,687,000 will expire from 2017 to 2021). The
potential deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which
have not been recognised amounted to HK$67,935,000 (2016:
HK$73,821,000).

As at 31 December 2017, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$63,326,000 (2016: HK$44,552,000) as
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

REHIEEEEERBRIEN =G EER
HigERBUR MBIt e 2 FIAEIBE
R N_E—+F+_A=1+—HB K=K
FEE DA GE AR ER T A 2 RIgERTIBEE
£377,874,0007%8 7T ( —Z — 754 1 400,406,00078
7T) °BR145,556,0008 TR —E—N\FE =T
ZZFHREER (2= —7NF 167,687,000 7T
RZB—+EE—T - —FHEER) I Z5H
TEE B M B B - Rk S IABIBRER 2
VEEIEIE R IR & EE /5567,935,00008 7T (Z T — X
4 173,821,000/ 7T) °

R-ZZE—+F+-F=+—B BARAEEE
R B R 2 R R B R SR ] AE N AR
BARMRBE AR A EEE THEME AR
RIE 2 F| 2 FEH TR 0B £963,326,000/8 T (=&
—7NF 144,552,000/ 70) RERE B SRR (EL iR
JERRTE A
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENTS

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net
cash (used in)/generated from operations

30 MERESHRERNTE

@@ FRATEBIADGR REE

TFEZHE

(FFR) /P8

For the year ended
31 December

BE+ZA=+—HLFE

2017 2016
—E—tF ZEREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Profit before income tax B P 1S 75 A& A 434,812 332,141
Adjustments for: T
Depreciation of property, ME BERZETE
plant and equipment 180,680 94,131
Depreciation of investment properties REMERE 212 206
Amortisation of leasehold land THE b 8 981 983
Amortisation of intangible assets | EEEHE 8,729 10,281
Net fair values (gains)/losses on BRATHESABRZ @ REE
financial assets at fair value NEE (W), BEFE
through profit or loss (16,357) 1,120
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BT B 2 B e (63,262) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B H o i — F B B8 2 Rl M s (4,782) -
Loss on disposals of property, HEME BEL&REBZ
plant and equipment pi 302 754
Provision/(write-back of provision) FEEE, (BERED)
for inventories 783 (1,385)
Write-back of provision for impairment & U B 5% 48 [0 31 (8 # 185 5 58
of trade receivables, net - (3,507)
Share of result of an investment JEIE AR EARZ
accounted for using the equity —EREFRE
method (134,531) (198,992)
Gain on dilution of interest in an NEREAR —HIRE
investment accounted for using the RS EEI
equity method 113) (826)
Interest income F B A (27,807) (19,704)
Finance costs & KA 9 -
Operating profit before working LB E B BA KL RN
capital changes 379,656 215,202
Increase in inventories 7 &1 hn (14,781) (24,744)
Increase in trade and bills receivables JE WS AR 7R % P W R AR %
and other receivables, prepayments H At REU R IR ~ TR FRIA K
and deposits ReEM (174,340) (32,412)
Increase in amounts due from investments & W A2 A A BR 2
accounted for using the equity method & 2 FIEE N (1,913) (3,270)
Increase in a financial asset at fair value & A F{EF ABZEZ
through profit or loss TRVE A (2,950) -
Increase in amount due to an investment JE{ SAREzE ABR 2
accounted for using the equity method & & 7 FRIE I AN 7,459 17,056
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills ENERLENRE XNR5
payables, payables for payment BRIBRRR T RETS 2 AN 508
processing solutions business and other A K H fib - 5138 I fE 5T 5/ 18
payables and accruals ORAd) /& hn (309,454) 745,931
Cash (used in)/generated from operations #£%& (FTA) P53 < (116,323) 917,763
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 30 @ZEHREFERMTE (&)
STATEMENTS (Continued)

(b) In the cash flow statements, proceeds from disposals b) REEREBRT HENE BERRE
of property, plant and equipment comprise: FEREERE:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-_A=+—BLEE

2017 2016
—E—tF —TREF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET
Net book amount (Note 14) MREDFE (H1it14) 614 1,208
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE BEX
plant and equipment B (302) (754)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME BB &
plant and equipment R PTG RIE 312 454
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (0 MEZBHELEZEEYHEK
activities
This section sets out an analysis of liabilities arising from REHFINZ 2N FERETDELECBER
financing activities and the movements in liabilities arising RMEETDELZABREH 2 OM-
from financing activities for each of the years presented.
Borrowing
due within
1 year
R—FR
Ep A
HK$’000
FTHERT
As at 1 January 2017 R=-—Z—tH&—H—H -
Cash flows ReEhe 9,258
Exchange difference EHERE 338
As at 31 December 2017 R=—ZB—tH&+=-A=+—H 9,596
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31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance
of a subsidiary of the Group in providing services for a
modernisation project with not more than HK$60,000,000
(2016: HK$60,000,000) and claims of infringement of third
party’s intellectual property right. As at 31 December 2017,
the Company does not recognise any liability in relation to
the Performance Guarantee Agreement as the Directors of
the Company consider the possibility of reimbursement is not
probable.

In 2017, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt Microelectronic Technology (the “Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Guarantee Agreement, the
Company agreed to provide Megahunt Microelectronic
Technology with a guarantee to repay the due and unsettled
debts of Megahunt Microelectronic Technology payable to
a supplier, should Megahunt Microelectronic Technology
cease or fail to honour its obligations, with not more than
HK$46,800,000 (equivalent to US$6,000,000). As at 31
December 2017, the Company does not recognise any liability
in relation to the Guarantee Agreement as the Directors of
the Company consider the possibility of reimbursement is not
probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2016 and 2017.

f o B 5 e o I

31 HAREE

RIZE—RHF AARE—FZEFFIRRER
W ([REERBZE]D - RERBERBZ®

ARBRERAEE —FHWBQEEE RN E
REFIEB RHRGE 2 RE  MREEPRET
% 160,000,000/ 7T ( =Z — 75 : 60,000,000/
TZEREBILE=ZFNEBEEZBHR-NZ
T—+tF+_A=1+—H BRERREZRA
RERE AN S AR BN BEERE
=ERERBEAEMEE-

RZZE—+tF AAQAHEMegahunt
Microelectronic Technologya] 37 #& 1R % ([
RipaEl) - FE L - &2 A [F B R Megahunt
Microelectronic Technology#2 it~ % 746,800,000
# 7T (%746,000,0005 7T ) MY £ 1R - LA B 3&
Megahunt Microelectronic Technology/f& 1< £ —
HZHERN B RBERED M iMMegahunt
Microelectronic Technology#% |F S REEEITH R
F-RZZE—+F+=A=1+—H BHRAAF
EERBRERENARETS SRR B &
HREBMERGRZEAAEE-

BEXREEN R-B-AER-B—LE
+ZB=t+—R ARBUFEAEARAS
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32 COMMITMENTS 32 AfE
(@) Operating lease commitments (@) REHERIE
As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had future R_B—FR-B-RF+A=+—
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B REER A BEHEGEROET ZARE
operating leases as follows: REEENFRBENT
Land and buildings
THREF
As at 31 December
R+=RA=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx THET
Not later than one year TR —F 25,790 17,248
Later than one year and not later than B —FETHEBEHF
five years 50,293 55,325
Later than five years BB R F - 8,840
76,083 81,413
(b) Capital commitments (b) EAERE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year REFRERTRERREEZ EAEFENT

but not yet incurred is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+t=B=+—~H
2017 2016
—ET—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET
Property, plant and equipment ME B MR - 41

33 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 33 D EARBEHEZHEHANINEER
CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE AND GAIN ON BERHENREB A TWE
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2016, the assets and liabilities related RZB-—RE+ZA=+—R AlLrEEZ
to Merchant Support Co., Ltd and its subsidiary (part of &I R @Merchant Support Co., Lid & B A
the payment processing solutions segment) (the “Disposal RAIZBEERBEBE(BXNRIBEBRTES
Group”), 100% wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group, have o) ([HEER]) - #A 2T Merchant
been presented as held-for-sale following a memorandum of Support Co., LtdR —B B B =HE] Lt
understanding entered by the Company, Merchant Support Co., BEAARHEREARNE 27 RFFELE (HE
Ltd and an independent third party to sell the Disposal Group FIH) o

in Japan (the “Disposal”).
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33 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 33 7 ¥AEEHEZHEANINEER
CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE AND GAIN ON BEREEHRBRARWE (&)
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

On 27 June 2017, the Group disposed of its 100% equity RIB—tFRAZ+LH AEEEEERE
interests in the Disposal Group for a cash consideration of EHR AR - HER(ER66,21500087T °
HK$66,215,000. A gain on disposal of HK$63,262,000 was B EI5563,262,00078 T B R IR E W E R
resulted and had been recognised in the consolidated income MR

statement.
As at
27 June
2017
IS
—F-t#F
AB=t++tH
HK$'000
FTERT
Cash consideration received EURENRE 66,215
Analysis of assets and liabilities over HREEBZEERBBENDIT:
which control was lost:
Property, plant and equipment W% BB MR (7,580)
Long-term deposits and prepayments REIGFE R FAR RIE (256)
Receivables from payment processing SNRGREBATRERZ
solutions business FEUR SR I8 (123,078)
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReEED (90,289)
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits e SER Tﬁﬁmﬁ Nige (3,926)
Amount due to the Company FERI AR R FRIE 129,364
Other payables and accruals E A A5 R IE N e AT RRIR 1,182
Payables for payment processing solutions business %2 5 R R R TR T 2
& 3R 96,553
Net liabilities disposed of | _________________ DR Ay . 1970
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HEMBAREEL 2 EL#E
of subsidiaries 1,699
Professional fees directly attributable to the Disposal E#FEBENEEFEH  EXEH (6,622)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE BT A Al Es 63,262
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33 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES OF DISPOSAL GROUP 33 7 ¥AEEHEZHEANINEER
CLASSIFIED AS HELD-FOR-SALE AND GAIN ON BEREEHMB QRN (&)
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BRHEFHE RS RRSEBYRNFEZD
respect of the Disposal is as follows: ronTs
For the
year ended
31 December
2017
S
—E—+t5F
+=A
=t+-—H
LFE
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration ReERE 66,215
Settlement of amount due to the Company BN AR RIKIA 129,364
Cash and cash equivalents disposed ERBEZRENAEEEY (90,289)
Professional fees EEER (6,622)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FHLEFRZEER
respect of the Disposal ReEEMRAFRE 98,668
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2017, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held.

(@) Transactions with related parties

A B B 5 e o i

4 BEFRS

—tFE+TZA=T—B - REBR

LES

sFAKAZ 2 Rich Global Limited B AN A &122.22%
B 17 o 88 T77.78%M M A ARALTEES -

@ HREETZRZ

Except as disclosed below and elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has no REE—
significant transaction with related parties during the year
ended 31 December 2017 (2016: same).

Transactions with PAX Global,
an associated company:
— Rental income (Note i)
— Purchase of electronic payment
products (Note ii)
— Sales of mag-stripe card security
decoder chips (Note iii)
— Commission charges (Note iv)
Transaction with Cloopen,
an associated company:
— Technical and support services
charges (Note v)

BTG AMBREABH BEES
B+t A=+ HILEE:
AR EL WEBE TR EAR S (=
T H8R) -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$/000 HK$'000
FExT FHEIT
HEENRABRRZRZ S
—MEBWA (HaEi) 1,460 1,505
-BEETINER
(Hiatii) 135,774 134,889
— SEE MR D02 AR A
(H7atiii) 59,966 31,726
—REemZ (Hitiv) 139 -
B2 2 /A A Cloopen 2325
— Bt R IERIEER
(Kiatv) 58,146 55,538

Notes:

() Rental income from an associated company was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

(i) Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant (ii)
to the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company on 19

Hrat -

() RE-FABELRZEASRATARETHE
15 5E 2 [E1E e P U -

BEEFXNEMDIREASEE-ABER
ARV BESR -2 —F+-A+NBZIE
PR B PSR R R I EIT R B - R IE SR 3

December 2012. The terms and conditions of the framework ZERREHER_E—AF+=-A=1+—H
agreement has been renewed on 31 December 2015. BT

(iii) Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted (i) SHEMER RS AR R AN S B B —
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework BEARR_E—=F+ - A=+—HilLZ
agreement entered into by the Group and an associated TERBEFBRIGERRIEIETR D - ZER D

company on 31 December 2013. The terms and conditions of the

BRI ER - —RF+=A=1R

framework agreement has been renewed on 30 December 2016. AT
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34 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv) Commission fee to an associated company was charged at a rate
mutually agreed between the two parties.

(v)  Technical and support services fee were charged pursuant to
the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement
entered into by the Group and an associated company on 9 May
2016. These related party transactions were also the continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Balances with investments accounted for using the
equity method

34 BERRS (&)

(@)

(b)

REER2XS (1)
Fifst - ()

(v BN—HBERRNEEETZRETHE L
BRGE-

V) BT ER RIS B TR RS S B — R A
AR =E—RFRANBRISLZER

R RGN - ZEE ST X5 TME E TR
BT NASSUE I ERER 5

LR EARZRE &

As at 31 December

Bn+=—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Amounts due from associated companies &t & A 7 58 16,289 13,258
Amounts due to associated companies BB & N B FIE (H15E)
(Note i) (57,755) (81,480)

Note:

(i) As at 31 December 2016, an amount due to an associated
company of HK$12,000 has been classified as held-for-sale.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2017, these balances
are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Key management compensation
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’
emolument as disclosed in Note 37.

(9]

Hret -

() R-ZE—RE+-_A=1+—8 EABHLQ7
ZFIBA12,0008 7T EE S BARELE -

RZE—RFR-ZZFE—+F+=HA
=t+—B ZEEBUAREHE B
B TRt B REESREE-

TEEEE HE
HE_Z—tFE_F—"F+=A
= t+t—HIEFE FEEEBEEZFMEME
ERMFI7AIEECEEME -
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35 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

0]

(i)

On 15 January 2018, the directors and shareholders of
VBill have passed a resolution to conditionally grant
options to several management (the “Grantees”) of VBill
pursuant to the terms of a share option scheme for VBill
(the “VBill Share Option Scheme”) a right to subscribe up
to approximately 12% of the enlarged registered and paid
up capital of VBill at the exercise price of RMB12.51 for
every RMB1.00 in the registered and paid up capital of
VBill within a period of 3 years from the date of grant.

The exercise of the options shall be conditional upon and
subject to the fulfilment and satisfaction of the following
conditions:

(1) the Grantees shall have been under full time
employment of VBill or its subsidiary(ies) for at least
5 years on the date of exercise and the remaining
term of employment under each of their respective
employment contracts with VBill or its subsidiary(ies)
shall not be less than 12 months from the date of
exercise; and

(2) all necessary consents, waivers and permits (including
but not limited to approval from the relevant
regulatory bodies such as The People’s Bank of China)
in respect of the exercise of Options having been
obtained by the relevant parties, who shall also ensure
that such exercise shall have no adverse effect on the
business of VBill and its subsidiaries.

The options were granted on 5 February 2018 pursuant to
a shareholders’ resolution at the special general meeting
(“SGM”) passed on 5 February 2018.

Assuming that all Grantees exercise the options in full, the
Grantees will, in aggregate, own additional approximately
12% of the enlarged capital of VBill and the Group's
interests in VBill will be diluted from approximately
80.04% to approximately 70.44%. The relevant employee
share option expenses will be recognised in the
consolidated income statement of the Group for the year
ending 31 December 2018.

On 28 February 2018, the Group entered into a share
subscription agreement (the “Series D Subscription
Agreement”) with Cloopen and certain other investors.
Pursuant to the Series D Subscription Agreement, the
Group has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 2,434,015
Convertible Series D Preferred Shares (the “Convertible
Series D Preferred Shares”) of Cloopen at the consideration
of HK$39,000,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000). The
relevant financial impact of the transaction will be reflected
in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ending 31 December 2018.

f o B 5 e o I

35 HEBRSEE

()

RZZE—-N\E—A+HB BEINHNEER
RERBBRER URBETHNZEEEE
([HEBEA D) BRI EAE - BIREET T
RS ([BEr TR TS Mgk -
EBE TR AR R B B = ENIRRETT
EMRAEEATREAREIOTIEEAR
BE12 51T T (E - REBRE T TS IB A RE ]
DR A RS HI12% °

BRSO IR BT Mg IR T3 7]
1T :

) AERARITEEEACK AT E
WEARZzZ2HEEZLREF BEH
HEETT SR B AR ZERAEH
FraEtRIgrE A 8 B 1718 B HB#eT T~
R12E A &

2 MEESHTERTEBERERS —INE
RE #elkaFr (BRETRRPE
ARBRITEEMEERBEZHE) %
FALTERREBITETSHBETN
REMBRRZEBEETFZE -

BE-_Z-N\F-_ALERBRERIKE
(TBERFRIAR ) BBARERARE 2R
“E-)\F-ARBEROERE-

RREAARABBITERRE  AEAR
B HEAETNEEABRANERINGLY%
28 S B BET TS B M 56 4980.04% HEB 5=
#70.44% ° 158 1R B BRI S SN AR
BE-T\F+-A=1—HLFENE
B RFER

R-ZE—NF-_A-+NB KNEFH
Cloopen & & T H % & & 7] LD REW
# ([DRAREHZ]) - BREDRYIRER
FAKE DA KRHREREE2,434,0150%
CloopenFI 8 DZFIEFE ([ AIEADZS
B ]) R {E A39,000,000% 7T (FHE 7
5,000,000 7T ) ° 5% 2 5 AR 7 2 2 1
RAEREE-_Z—N\F+A=+—HL
FEMNGETHRETARM -
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36 AATIZEEEERREEEH
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company ARARZEERER

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—8
2017 2016
—E—tfF ZE—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investment properties REME 2,310 2,568
Leasehold land HE T 21,992 22,751
Investments in subsidiaries KRB AR ZEE 713,127 713,127
Investment accounted for using the NEREARZKE
equity method 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 997,199 998,216
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits  E fth FEU IR ~ TR RIB Rz & 955 2,504
Financial asset at fair value through BAVEAABRZCREE
profit or loss 2,702 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries A= NGIE | 580,112 307,823
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EY 438,251 539,761
1,022,020 850,088
Assets of disposal group classified DERFHELEZ
as held-for-sale HEHRBNEE - 128,856
Total current assets RBEEHAE 1,022,020 978,944
Total assets EEMAE 2,019,219 1,977,160
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36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
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36 ARFZEERBREREED (5

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) KRRz EEEER (B)
As at 31 December
R+=B=+—8
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZET-RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to 22 T #EH A
owners of the Company BiERAR R E
Share capital fi& 7 6,942 6,942
Reserves & Hiit(a) 1,406,836 1,368,677
Totalequity _____________ mme® 1,413,778 1,375,619 _
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H A & A< FRIE K AT kIR 25,083 20,648
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHB B A R FIE 565,558 566,093
Current income tax liabilities EHMSHAE 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities nBEEEE 605441 601,541
Total liabilities AfER® 605441 601,541
Total equity and liabilities ExRkEaEHEE 2,019,219 1,977,160




184

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f B B 5 e o i

36 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36 BAARIZEEEBRERZERE (8
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued) KPRz EEEEBR (B)
Note (a): Reserves movement of the Company Wiit(a) - K272 #1E &
Share  Contributed Other Retained
premium Surplus reserves earnings Total
(Note)
R} R E BHER Hit %% REER ast
(Hrit)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR T#x TR TR TR

At 1 January 2017 R-E-+%-A-8 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 (2,8200 1,368,677
Profit for the year FREM - - - 38,159 38,159
At 31 December 2017 RZB-tH+ZA=+-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 35339 1,406,836
At 1 January 2016 R-Z-X"E-A—H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 17,946 1,389,443
Loss for the year FREE - - - (20,766) (20,766)
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+ZA=+-H 1290857 46,417 34,223 (2,8200 1,368,677
Note: Bist

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the NRRIZ BEHBHERIEEAE 2 WB R RRNH AT
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the EEBARRARURMBEHTRNEEZ E - RER
reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in RE-NN—FREE ARAAEETER TREMZ S
exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company AR SRR A T LR AEH D )R

may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under
certain circumstances.
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2017:

A o B 5 e o I

37 EEZEMNRER (REB QAR
(58622F) 5838315k - 1 & (MBESR
BmER) RO (F622GE)REEBL™
RAUBRFHIKE)

@ EERTRARZMS
BREERTHRAHZMSEIINT

BE-F—tF+-A=+—ALLFE:

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director’s other

services in

Remuneration  connection with

Employer's paid or - the management

contribution receivable  of the affairs of

Estimated  to aretirement inrespectof  the Company

Discretionary Housing  money value of benefit -~ accepting office ~ or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits scheme as director undertaking Total
RESARER
ARASENE
REREME AABHzEM
AfpEA BIZBK REZZEM BHzZEAR
ik #e BfgEAa BEBERE fHEMEE  BAFEMER REUHE ERHE &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn FiEn TET TEn FiEn TET TiEn T TET
Executive Directors BEs
Cheung Yuk Fung RIl 810 - 1,200 - - - - - 2,010
Kui Man Chun %87
(Chief Executive Officer) (f1Bta#) - 2,190 5,600 - - 18 - - 7,808
Xu Wensheng (3¢ - 2,370 5,200 - - 18 - - 7,588
Li Wenjin 2NE - 1,710 5,600 - - 18 - - 7,328
Xu Chang Jun %#EE - 2,018 4,600 - - 18 - - 6,636
Independent Non-Executive BUKHTES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai #iRE 180 - 150 - - - - - 330
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2R 180 - 150 - - - - - 330
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard Fi 180 - 150 - - - - - 330
Total i 1,350 8,288 22,650 - - 72 - - 32,360
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37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 37 BEECEARER (REB D AEH

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF (%£622F) 5£383f% - A7) (HEESR
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE w=ER) A (Fe2R2GE)REB LT
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE RAERELHEE) (&)

OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ ESERTHEARZzME (B)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE_T—RFTA=t+—HIFE:
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of

director’s other
services in
Remuneration ~ connection with

Employer's paid or - the management
contribution receivable  of the affairs of
Estimated ~ toa retirement in respectof the Company
Discretionary Housing  money value of benefit  accepting office ~or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits scheme as director undertaking Total
HESERER
RRARFANE

HEXRE AREHIAML

EtEN  BIsEK  AEZZEN REZENH
fieEa #& B FEAE (GE%EE  BAFHAR  SEKEHE RREE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T TEL L T TEL L T TEL L

Executive Directors H7ES
Cheung Yuk Fung RILk 360 - 1,000 - - - - - 1,360
Kui Man Chun £BE
(Chief Executive Officer) (fTB&#H) - 1,920 5,300 - - 18 - - 7,38
Xu Wensheng 3¢ - 1,906 4,800 - - 18 - - 6,724
Li Wenjin FNE - 1,440 4,000 - - 18 - - 5,458
Xu Chang Jun %2% - 1,565 4000 - - 18 - - 5,583
Non-Executive Director FATES
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard* RiE 2 - - - - - - - 21
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai AR 162 - 120 - - - - - 282
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 162 - 120 - - - - - 282
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard* Kbz 146 - 120 - - - - - 266
Xu Sitao** HFRE 19 - - - - - - - 19
Total Ehi 870 6,831 19,460 - - 72 - - 27,233
*  Mr. Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard was re-designated as an O ORBEAENR T -RE_AZHNEERE
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company on 26 RARBBILIRTES-
February 2016.
** M. Xu Sitao ceased to be an Independent Non-Executive Director »* FBBLTERZT-—REZAZ+AREEER
for the Company on 26 February 2016. RAVBMIEMITES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

37 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2016: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2016: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2017, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2016: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
to indirectly; subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2016: Nil).
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Summary of Financial Information

B?Ji"%ﬁﬂiﬁi%

A summary of the published consolidated results and of the — ##B&BEZV MK MBERBRETZ NEER
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five — EREMBFED MRS EENGEEERABR
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements — Z1F:

and restated as appropriate, is set as below:

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t-BLEFE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—2-tf TR —T-HF —F-WFE —T-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TET TET TERT

Results E4

Profit/(loss) attributable to s e AN

owners wF/ (BE) 346,144 283,964 183,486 397,071 30,045
Assets and liabilities EEREE

Total assets BELE 5,657,451 5,499,041 4,576,515 4,110,752 3,576,445
Total liabilities aEeE (1,493,906)  (1,913,374) (1,238,571 (896,549) (830,469)

Capital and reserves attributable to the ARREEAERL
owners of the Company BRAK #E 4,059,342 3,531,216 3,308,828 3,192,381 2,759,360
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